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Financial Summary

o “ELIEE  ZITRE  ZEERF  ZTTtE  ZBENE
UBEE TSR HKS$ Million 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
hRES Shareholders’ funds 8,242 9,096 10,045 10,469 9,892
BEEB Subordinated notes 972 3,290 3,480 5,148 5,269
RPRER Deposits from customers 43,303 58,107 66,989 78,728 80,418
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 8,452 7,713 8,768 8,843 4,655
FREE Total deposits 51,755 65,820 75,757 87,571 85,073
AERE Total liabilities

(BEREER) (including subordinated notes) 64,997 82,479 96,638 111,427 108,243
EFER Advances to customers
(BRESEE) (including trade bills) 32,528 44919 49,909 61,295 60,999
BERE Total assets 74,973 93,496 109,048 124,209 120,180
B R IE( &7 Profit attributable to shareholders 2,031 1,019 1,397 1,050 106
EE including:
EHER Reorganisation costs (57) - - - -
HERBAA Profit on disposal of interests in
Syl vl subsidiaries 445 - 189 - -
RIELERBAA Profit on deemed disposal of interest in
ERZEH a subsidiary 493 - - - -
TEENEBEEZ Profit attributable to shareholders
BRI ER excluding the above 1,150 1,019 1,208 1,050 106
2ERENE Total dividend distribution 714 519 588 375 176
BT SR HK$
BREART Basic eamings per share 8.21 4.09 5.59 4.20 0.42
(Bi5E) (note) 1 (B35) (note) 1
BRRE Dividends per share
RS Ve Interim and proposed final 2.08 2.08 2.35 1.50 0.68
Al Special 0.80 - - - -
ERBEEH Total dividends per share 2.88 2.08 2.35 1.50 0.68
KBS RIIT Percentage %
THRRESER Return on average shareholders’ funds 15.3 11.8 12.6 10.2 1.0
(BH5E) (note) 2 (M3 (note) 2
THBEERR Return on average total assets 1.7 1.2 1.2 0.9 0.1
(BiH5E) (note) 2 (FF35) (note) 2
ERHFERLE Loan to deposit ratio
(BRERTH (including certificates
FRE) of deposit issued) 63.9 69.2 66.8 70.0 .7
MIEE - Notes:
1. BAEEER) EEERA R EEGELEN 1. Basic earnings per share calculated on the basis of profit attributable to

BARER OEMORRBIEENE B2
EENF+ - A=+—RIFER-_TTXRF+
ZA=t - RLEFEEZEREREN D B H4.65

BT N4.83ETT ©

2. BEZTTNFF A=+ HUEFER-ZET
RETZAZ+—HUEFEZ FHRRESER
NP @EERRIATNRE (NER) EEER
Ko 6 HAR A (BT B8 A R &5 2 D 7 B9 P SR8

I METHE o

shareholders excluding, where applicable, reorganisation costs and profit
on disposal and deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2006 is HK$4.65 and
HK$4.83 respectively.

Profit attributable to shareholders excluding, where applicable,

reorganisation costs and profit on disposal and deemed disposal of
interests in subsidiaries is used for the calculation of return on average
shareholders’ funds and return on average total assets for the year ended

31 December 2004 and the year ended 31 December 2006.

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH
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Financial Summary
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Total deposits Advances to customers Total assets

(including trade bills)
O— EREERLE (BESBITHNERE)

Loan to deposit ratio (including certifcates of deposit issued)

RRES BRELXEF / BRRE

Shgr(_eholders’ funds Basic earnings per share /

ERBIT HKS Million Dividends per share
__i2000 fﬁ e

BRES = SRRe SRELRF

Shareholders’ funds Dividends per share* Basic earnings per share

* FeAEERIRE. excluding special dividend
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Corporate Information

BT 4 R A R A R DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TP David Shou-Yeh Wong

o

JE B4 0.B.E., J.P.

Chairman

Chung-Kai Chow 0.B.E., J.P.

BIEEFIFHTESE Vice Chairman and Non-executive Director
RANF I Kunio Suzuki
HERITEF Non-executive Director

Peter Gibbs Birch c.B.E.

Peter Gibbs Birch Cc.B.E.

BIHNTEE Independent non-executive Director
£ E Robert Tsai-To Sze
BIHNTEE Independent non-executive Director
AKX fm B.BS., JP. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
BIHHTEE Independent non-executive Director
RE Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)
BIHNITEF Independent non-executive Director
A ERS Tatsuo Tanaka
FMITEF Non-executive Director
ENESs Eiichi Yoshikawa
FHITEF Non-executive Director
EEE John Wai-Wai Chow
HHTEE Non-executive Director
h#2 A Yiu-Ming Ng
HHTEE Non-executive Director
Epr il Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
EERSIBRITIARE, Managing Director and Chief Executive
ZiEA Roderick Stuart Anderson
HITEE Executive Director
TRz Gary Pak-Ling Wang
HITEE Executive Director
BEE Nicholas John Mayhew
HITEE Executive Director
KAE— Kenichi Yonetani
PRI EFEE Alternate to Kunio Suzuki
AN B K Tetsuya Wada
HAFERBZETESE Alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka
REKFMEEE Nomination and Remuneration Committee
SERE Robert Tsai-To Sze
FE Chairman
Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E. Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.
B Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)
% Kf® BBS., JP. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
TFE David Shou-Yeh Wong
Eprdi] Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH
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Corporate Information
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Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

REGISTERED OFFICE
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108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
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Web Site: http://www.dahsing.com

SECRETARY
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AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE
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17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(a) HEHE

IoEELE
o

RENB - —ANELFEZERARFEE - K
FRTTERBARAR - KHBITERAQA - E8
RITERAR  RFBHRRITERAR ~ KFA
SRERARAR RPIRRBROARAF - RPT
ABRBENHBRAR - HEMBBERAR LS
BMARIRE - BB +FRITREBEBLR
FEERHAZESRE  BAERTAS  BEE
BT AGREEMRBENE - BERTEE
gk - ARFTBRERITRRBHEHBEHR
TEFTHELEEZR -

FEIRMESTE 0BE, JP.
BIEEFIENTESE

NTOR - R—NAWNECFRZER/RRBESR
BIEF - REMBEXERARNIFEREREH
BEx - BRALTFHE HBNREREBER -
LEMEXEANERES  HBEERNEZES  IX
FHRE® BABHOGRRRBHAHAZES
EHFEBRLZERELE - AR S (IFRTES
BRELEEZR -

RIS
FHITEF

RNTNR - R-TE=FREZER/RNRBHT
EE - REMMARASHEFTEER -

Peter Gibbs Birch %4 c.B.E.
BB TESE

t+—® R—NWNEFEZEREQRNES -
B—AANFERNLEERBR A RITHRAAE R
1% BERVEIE AN ARBIMIENITES K
RITBERARRKTIASRBER AR ZELIE
WITES  WAKARBEZEE S - 124 KEH
ZEEZ8 - H{ETrigold plc.X & - Travelex plc.
= 4% 3E#1 77 = % B2 Cambridge Place Investment
Management LLP/EE ] o

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH

(a) Board of Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Aged 68. Appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 1987. Chairman
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah Sing Bank, Limited, MEVAS
Bank Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited,
Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, New Asian Shipping Company,
Limited and various other companies. Over 40 years of experience in
banking and finance. Member of the Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission, the Hong Kong Association of
Banks, the Chinese Banks Association Limited and the Hong Kong
Shipowners Association. Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, an executive Director of

the Company’s key operating banking and insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Chung-Kai Chow 0.B.E., J.P.

Vice Chairman and Non-executive Director

Aged 84. Appointed as a Director and the Vice Chairman of the
Company in 1987. Currently the Chairman and Managing Director of
Winsor Industrial Corporation Limited. Over 50 years of experience in
property, textile and garment business. Had been member of the Cotton
Advisory Board, the Textile Advisory Board, the Industry Advisory
Board, the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory
Board, and the Securities Commission. Father of Mr. John Wai-Wai

Chow, a non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Kunio Suzuki

Non-executive Director

Aged 69. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
20083. Currently Chairman of Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Ltd.

Mr. Peter Gibbs Birch c.B.E.

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 71. Appointed as a Director of the Company in 1997 and served
the Board in an independent role since his retirement as the Chief
Executive of Abbey National plc. in 1998. Also an independent
non-executive director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Chairman
of Trigold plc.. Senior non-executive Director of Travelex plc.. Advisor,

Cambridge Place Investment Management LLP.
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HEAfmiEL BBS., JP.
BIIHTESE
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 68. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 1997. Also an independent non-executive Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Currently the Chairman of the Audit
Committees, the Nomination and Remuneration Committees of both
the Company and DSBG, and a non-executive Director to a number of
Hong Kong listed companies. Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Also a former partner of an international

firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

Dr. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 58. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 2002. Currently Chairman of China-HongKong Photo
Products Holdings Limited and Fuji Photo Products Company Limited.
Vice Patron of the Community Chest, a founding member of the China
Charity Federation and Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong
Management Association. Awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
Government of Hong Kong SAR in 1999. Appointed as a Justice of The
Peace by the Government of Hong Kong SAR in 2002.

Mr. Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 67. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company and Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited in 2004.
Member of the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Currently the Chief Executive Officer of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited. Active in a number of trade

associations, government advisory bodies and community activities.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(a) EHET @)

Az R SE A
FHITEE

Ik e REEZRNFEZERARTIERNTT
B -F_ZTN\FHARE BAR=ZRR
UFJERTT ([BTMUJ) 42778117 & - IRERE AT
B 48 # &% Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group
(fMUFGJ)%ﬁWEE\&Z BEERTEBHRE
o BB —NE=FHRTERNER ZRRIET
ﬁiiﬁiﬁi}é\ﬁﬁii‘/%fﬁﬁ%ZBTMU) F BRI S
=1+ AT - Hf 2 & EBank of Tokyo Trust
Company (3 &4t 4 Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ Trust Company) &2l € K « RN ¥RTT
¥BIFERLE REFBOITHRELRE - D
TR EE  ARFEBPEEBEEELIERT
AAH - BREDMNEAFR (B3R AREZE)
ERITEBEEERER -

HFINHE—EE
HHITEE

ATZ5R c RZETEFREZERAATERIT
EF - BA=ZFRUFJRTT ([BTMUY) Z#77
Z8 - BEARETERBBDITRLE - BR—N1
N—FENARRRIT (A FREBS O RER
ZBTMU) ° LB EAM - B &R BB BB (A1
RESBERSRREE) « BANHAEHEE -
Tokyo-Mitsubishi Securities (38 & Mitsubishi UFJ
Securities Co., Ltd.) T1E o fFlE D EIRITEBK

Wé B ERE - BE -+ EFRITR

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH

(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka

Non-executive Director

Aged 59. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
2006. Effective from April 2008, Deputy President, Chief Executive
Officer of Global Business Unit of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ,
Ltd. (“BTMU”) and the Managing Officer, Deputy Group Head of
Integrated Corporate Banking Business Group of Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group (“MUFG”). He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now
becomes BTMU after several mergers over the past few years) in 1973.
Over 35 years’ experience at BTMU including Senior Vice President of
Bank of Tokyo Trust Company (currently Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
Trust Company in New York), Chief Manager of Corporate Banking
Group No.2 in Tokyo, General Manager of Shimbashi Branch in Tokyo,
Regional Head for Hong Kong Branch and Managing Director, Chief
Executive Officer for China. Rich expertise in Corporate Banking in Asia

and Oceania as well as Japan and the U.S.

Mr. Eiichi Yoshikawa

Non-executive Director

Aged 52. Appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company in
2007. Currently the Executive Officer, Regional Head for Hong Kong
and General Manager of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
(“BTMU”) Hong Kong Branch. He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now
becomes BTMU after several mergers over the past few years) in 1981.
During this period, he has been appointed to work in Ministry of Finance
of Japan (currently Financial Service Agency of Japan), New York Office
of Treasury Division, Tokyo-Mitsubishi Securities (currently Mitsubishi
UFJ Securities Co., Ltd). Strong expertise in the area of Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Corporate Planning activities. Over 27 years of

experience in banking and finance.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. John Wai-Wai Chow

Non-executive Director

Aged 59. Appointed as a Director in 1994 and currently a non-executive
Director of the Company. Deputy Managing Director of Winsor Industrial
Corporation Limited and Managing Director of Winsor Properties
Holdings Limited. Over 20 years of experience in textile, garment and
property business. Son of Mr. Chung-Kai Chow 0.B.E., J.P, the Vice

Chairman and a non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Yiu-Ming Ng

Non-executive Director

Aged 72. Appointed a Director in 1997 and currently a non-executive
Director of the Company. Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company’s Banking Group, in 1985 and
was promoted as a Director in 1991. Retired in 2002 but continued to
serve the Boards of the Company and Dah Sing Bank in a non-executive

role. Over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and leasing finance.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

Managing Director and Chief Executive

Aged 56. Appointed as a Director in 1993 and promoted as the
Managing Director of the Company in January 2002. Joined Dah Sing
Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the Company’s Banking
Group, in 1977 and has served and managed various departments
before appointed as a director of Dah Sing Bank in 1989 and was
promoted as its Managing Director in 2000. Managing Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited, President of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group.
Director of Great Wall Life Assurance Company Limited and Bank of
Chongging, in which the Group has an interest in shares. Associate of
The Institute of Bankers (U.K.), Founder Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council of the

U.K. Over 30 years of experience in banking.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(a) EHET @)
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(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Roderick Stuart Anderson

Executive Director

Aged 61. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2000
and a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited
(“DSLA”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company, since 2004.
Joined DSLA in 1993 and had been its Chief Executive and Managing
Director for over 12 years. Also a director of Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life
Insurance Company Limited and Great Wall Life Assurance Company
Limited. Formerly, President of The Actuarial Society of Hong Kong,
Councillor of The Life Insurance Council, Chairman of the Governing
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers and Chairman of
the Board of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau. Fellow of The
Institute of Actuaries with 40 years of experience in financial services

and insurance in particular.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Executive Director

Aged 48. Appointed as an executive Director of the Company in 2001.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was promoted
as a Director of Dah Sing Bank in 1997. Currently Group Finance
Director responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group. Qualified accountant, Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Over 20 years of experience in financial management mainly related to

banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew

Executive Director

Aged 41. Joined the Company in 1998 and currently an executive
Director of the Company, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited,
Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited, Dah Sing Bank and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Head of
Treasury and Corporate Finance of Dah Sing Bank responsible for its
treasury and corporate finance activities. Over 19 years of experience

in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(a) Board of Directors (Continued)

Mr. Kenichi Yonetani

Alternate Director to Mr. Kunio Suzuki

Aged 58. Appointed as an alternate to Mr. Kunio Suzuki, a
non-executive Director of the Company, in August 2006. Currently a
Director of Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Ltd. He joined Mitsui O.S.K. Lines in
1974, and has over 20 years of experience in the Financial area including

Ship Finance and Investor Relations.

Mr. Tetsuya Wada
Alternate Director to Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka

Aged 55. Appointed as an alternate Director to Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka, a
non-executive Director of the Company, in August 2008. Currently the
Managing Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer for Asia and
Oceanic, of BTMU. Rich expertise in Retail banking and Corporate

Planning, with over 32 years’ experience in banking and finance.

(b) Senior Management

Mr. Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)
Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 59. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 1986 and was appointed as an executive Director of Dah
Sing Bank and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in 1995 and 2004
respectively. Currently the Chief Executive and Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. incorporated in Macau. 30 years of

experience in banking.

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 39. Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of
the Company, in 2000, and appointed as an executive Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited in 2004. Currently a Director of Dah Sing
Bank, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank, Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited and Dah
Sing Insurance Company Limited. Qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and Hong Kong. Son of David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of
the Company and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited.
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(b) Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau

Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 57. Appointed as an executive Director of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited in 2007. Also an executive Director of Dah Sing Bank,
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and MEVAS Bank, key operating
subsidiaries of the Company. Currently Head of Group Risk of the
Banking Group, responsible for the strategic direction, overall business
and risk policy, ongoing management and control of risk of the Banking
Group’s portfolio. Chartered Financial Analyst and Ph.D in Economics.
Member of Board of Trustees of Global Association of Risk
Professionals. 20 years of experience in governmental or quasi-
governmental departments in supervision of financial related

corporations.

Mr. John Cheung-Wah Lam
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank and MEVAS Bank

Aged 54. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and appointed as its executive Director in 2005 and as the
Head of Retail Banking Division responsible for retail banking business.
Also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank and
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Fellow of The Institute of
Canadian Bankers. Approximately 30 years of banking experience in

Hong Kong and North America.

Mr. Kwok-Leung Kwong (Thomas Kwong)
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 60. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and was appointed as its executive Director in 2007, and a
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008. Currently Head of
Commercial Banking Division in Dah Sing Bank, responsible for
overseeing and supervising commercial banking business and asset
based and trade financing. Over 30 years of experience in banking and

finance.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

(b) Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Xiaojiang Yan

Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 54. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 2006. Appointed as an executive director of Dah Sing Bank
in 2007, and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008, responsible for the
banking development, and branch supervision and management in the
Mainland China. 20 years of banking experience in Hong Kong and
China.

Mr. James Chien-Kuo Wong

Executive Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Life Assurance

Aged 59. Appointed as an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, a key operating
subsidiary of the Group, in August 2006, responsible for overseeing the
operation of long-term insurance business. Appointed as a member of
The Banking Advisory Committee by the Financial Secretary since 2005.
Concurrently being the Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation
of Insurers and also a member of the Governing Committee of the Hong
Kong Federation of Insurers and Life Insurance Council as well as
members of the General Committee of the Insurance Claims Complaints
Bureau. Has been an Honorary Vice President of the Advisory Board of
the Economics & Finance Society of The University of Hong Kong since
2006 and a member of the Advisory Board on Insurance, Financial &
Actuarial Analysis of The Chinese University of Hong Kong since 2003.
Fellow Member of Life Office Management Association (FLMI) USA. An
industry veteran of 40 years’ experience in managing different insurance

business and wealth management business in Hong Kong and Canada.

Note: Interests of Directors and Senior Management in shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations, if any, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2008 are disclosed in the “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” of the Report of the Directors as included in this 2008 Annual
Report of the Company.
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In the second half of 2008, economic conditions continued to
deteriorate, both in Hong Kong and globally. Whilst growth in
Mainland China remained positive, there were signs of a slowdown,
particularly in the export sector, despite the announcement of a
substantial stimulus package. Similarly, in Macau, the economy has
slowed significantly after several years of above trend growth.
Conditions in the banking sector globally have remained extremely
difficult, with bailouts of a number of major global financial
institutions having taken place.

Against this backdrop, with the increasingly likely outcome of the
first global recession for many years, our results for the full year
2008 were disappointing, with profit attributable to shareholders
falling by 90% to HK$106 million.

Profit before impairment charges was down by 35% to HK$1,467
million, due mainly to much weaker fee and commission income in
our banking business. Our profit for the year was significantly
affected by the mark-to-market losses on our insurance investment
portfolio, and a substantial increase in overall impairment charges
on loans and securities investments over the previous year.

During the year, we were pleased to complete the acquisition of a
further 3% in Bank of Chongqing, bringing our total shareholding
to 20%. However, as the transaction was completed in October
2008, we only recorded the additional contribution to our results for
a period of just over two months during the year.

In March 2008, we announced that our long term strategic
shareholders, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., a subsidiary
of The Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (“MUFG”), increased its
shareholding in the Group to 15%, raising proceeds of
approximately HK$471 million. MUFG and Dah Sing have been
working together with a view to a closer relationship in key areas of
business.

Banking Business

Our separately listed banking subsidiary, DSBG, reported a
decrease in profits for the year, with profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$189 million, a decrease of 76% compared with
the previous year. Whilst net interest income remained robust,
growing by around 7%, fee income was weak, principally due to
reduced activity in the wealth management business.
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Chairman’s Statement

A BAHER 2 FERETAREFURER However, the major reason for the substantial reduction in profit
BEE - RFE %?‘x’é{ﬁ BEREBEFEES TR was due to sharp increases in impairment charges on loans, as well
Bo#E .ﬂ'%m FREREE =8 — T as continued high impairment charges on securities investment. In
ER- v ﬁ%ii maEsz N\ e aggregate, impairment charges for loans and securities totalled

HK$1,314 million, an increase of 8% compared with the previous

year.
BEREESRBETRE #MATHFFEERTXK Lending volumes remained relatively flat. Whilst loan demand
HERS  ~&EH TBZ:JF IR LAFESE weakened considerably in the second half of the year, we were able
% BRAFEEFBEHE_TT+FEHE to continue business to support our customers as appropriate, with
& o Eﬂ@ MHREET I%’E C REEERFPER the result that aggregate loan volumes for the year were similar to
BEIBFAEAD I ZER - 2007. Despite the difficult market environment, our customer

deposits grew 4% year on year.

RFRIT (P ED) AR A B ARITRITAH IR Dah Sing Bank’s wholly owned and locally incorporated subsidiary
WK~ WERERE BRI BTN bank in China, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, commenced
FNAR—BRME - LM ERITAIEZR business on 1 August 2008. This subsidiary bank is headquartered
N SRRINERE -7 REERZ—K in Shenzhen, with a sub-branch in Shenzhen and a branch in
D17 ° Shanghai.

R AT (P D A R 2 ]

€Y DASINGBANK (CHINA) LIMITED

it (ﬁlls)fgﬂ%"‘* PRy

i

[ I,-ll'l“' B o]

i A h] l 1 '“"a_‘__}

The inauguration ceremony of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited on 5 December 2008 was attended by Mr. John C. Tsang (eft 6), Financial Secretary
of the Government of the HKSAR, Mr. LU Rui Feng (right 5), Vice Mayor of The People’s Government of Shenzhen Municipality, Mr. Y.K. Choi (left 4),
Deputy Chief Executive of HKMA, Mr. Luan Feng (right 1), Deputy Director General of CBRC Shenzhen Office, Mr. Liu Xueqiang (right 4), Secretary
General of CPC Shenzhen Municipality Luohu District Committee, Mr. LiLin (right 3), Director General of Office of Financial Development Service of
the People’s Government of Shenzhen Municipality, Ms. Zheng Wei (right 2), Vice President of PBOC Shenzhen Central Sub-Branch, in addition to
Mr. David S.Y. Wong (left 7), the Chairman, and other directors of Dah Sing Groups including Messrs. Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung (left 5), Derek Wong
(left 3), Keisuke Tahara (left 2) and John Wai-Wai Chow (left 1).

AFRT(FE)ERRAAN_ZFZNF+_AARRTEARERR  HEZEATBRERNYRA AR GEELE (£6) - AMARKAE
MRAHBLLE (A5  BELRMERRAARSERELLE o)  TRERTEEEEEZEIRIIEERBRREBELL (A1) - FHRRIITEMN
ERECRBRELE (B0 FITARBRAERBERBRBBRAZEIEFTMEL B3) PRARBRITRITHLOZTETESRNE (F2) X
MEBMEEETERE £ ERBEEREREBERE (£5)  BERELE (£3) - BREVMELE (Z2) RARBRE (£1) °

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Insurance Business

Whilst the efforts to grow our insurance business in recent years
were still able to generate an increase in total premium and other
insurance income of around 12% for the year, this represents a
significant slowdown from the growth rates over the previous two
years of more than 30% per year.

The major reason for the decline in the insurance performance for
the year was the negative mark-to-market to the income statement
of insurance investments. However, it is of note that whilst the
insurance investment performance was negative, it was still able to
outperform market benchmarks in one of the most difficult years
for investment on record.

Board of Directors

During the year, Mr. Keisuke Tahara ceased to serve as an alternate
director to Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka and Mr. Tetsuya Wada was appointed
in his place. Mr. Keisuke Tahara remains a non-executive director
of DSBG.

Mr. Chung-Kai Chow, the Vice Chairman and a non-executive
Director of the Company, will not seek for re-election upon retirement
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
1 June 2009 after 22 years of directorship in the Group. | would like
to express my heartfelt gratitude for his invaluable contribution to
the Group especially for his guidance and wise counsel all these
years.
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Future Prospects

Recent economic data has indicated that the current economic
downturn is likely to be one of the most severe in recent years.
Whilst the Mainland China economy continues to record healthy
rates of growth, and the stimulus measures announced recently are
expected to be supportive of the economy, it would not be prudent
to expect that this will overcome the more general global economic
slowdown entirely.

Therefore, our strategy into 2009 will be one of caution. However,
we must also be mindful that in times of adversity there are often
opportunities, and that in the medium to longer term we expect
that our market presence in Hong Kong, Mainland and Macau, and
the continued long term prospects for the China market will enable
us to continue to grow our business in future years.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support of our customers.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009
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Financial Highlights

The highlights of the Group’s financial performance for the year are
summarised in the table below:

—EENE —ETEF g5
2008 2007 Variance
BEAT HK$ Million
MR EFORER Operating profit before
2 i A loan impairment 1,467.2 2,254.6 -34.9%
HETHRENREEEEKRZE Operating profit before gains or
BB AT Z &8 T losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 808.6 2,073.8 -61.0%
B B4 A s A1 Profit before income tax 183.0 1,358.5 -86.5%
1% B P& A8 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 106.2 1,050.2 -89.9%
BEESGT Total assets 120,180 124,209 -3.24%
BEE Total liabilities 108,243 111,427 -2.86%
FERES Shareholders’ funds 9,892 10,469 -5.51%
SFRBEWA S ERA Net interest income/operating income  74.7% 59.9%
XA U A LY 2R Cost to income ratio 53.7% 39.0%
15 488 = O 5 Return on average total assets 0.1% 0.9%
T REE & B Return on average shareholders’ funds ~ 1.0% 10.2%
Fo 5 I e Financial Review

TR N\EHOBTERERRBERALE
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B Z WADREME R FAZ - A > ZEIEFAEE
EEERREL  RAKERITERBREBES
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WAEAED 2+  TEREEMBREEES
BZIER - ARTISFETH  EREREE
EZMEURESKA TR - AEBEEFEE
H-EE+LF AP Z_H— " TREAZ
—E——
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2008 was one of the most challenging years for financial services
businesses in recent decades. The Group was able to maintain
steady core banking and insurance revenues on a pre-impairment
basis. However, our overall results were disappointing, adversely
affected by deterioration in the credit quality of our loan book, and
mark-to-market losses and impairment charges in the securities
investment portfolios of both of our banking and insurance
businesses during the year.

Net interest income in the year increased by 7%, mainly contributed
by a higher balance of other interest earning assets despite a flat
loan book for 2008. Both the yield of loans and interest earning
assets, and the funding cost decreased in response to the lower
market interest rates. Our net interest margin decreased to 2.11%,
compared with 2.16% in 2007.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Non-interest income fell by 46% during the year, despite an increase
in our net insurance premium income. This was due both to a
weaker performance in fee income, reflecting the softening of
demand for investment and securities broking products and
services in the second half of the year, as well as weaker trading
performance, mainly representing the negative movements on
mark-to-market trading and fair value assets held by our insurance
businesses during the second half of the year.

A combination of weaker overall performance in our insurance
business, as well as lower fee and commission and trading income,
resulted in a total operating income before net insurance claims
and other expenses falling by around 10% to HK$4,977 million.
With net insurance claims (including transfer to insurance reserves)
only increasing marginally, due to the slower business growth and
adjustments on actuarial reserving and policyholders benefits to
reflect changes in market conditions, total operating income net of
insurance claims reduced by 14% to HK$3,170 million.

Operating expenses for our core business were broadly unchanged
from the previous year, although together with additional one-off
expenses during the second half of the year, total operating
expenses increased by 18% relative to 2007.

Operating profit before impairment charges was HK$1,467 million,
down 35% relative to 2007.

Credit quality deteriorated significantly, mainly due to increased bad
debts in our commercial banking business, and particularly related
to customers in the trade, manufacturing and export sectors. Whilst
impairment charges relating to our retail banking business increased
somewhat, the rate of increase was relatively milder than that for
the commercial banking segment.

Operating profit after loan impairment charges was HK$809 million,
61% lower than 2007.

There were also further significant losses relating to our securities
investments, mainly caused by the bankruptcy of Washington
Mutual Bank, as well as further markdowns on our remaining
leveraged/structured investment portfolio, which has now been
marked down, on a cumulative basis, by 91% to a carrying value of
HK$146 million at the end of 2008.
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Financial Review (Continued)

We completed the acquisition of a further 3% interest in the Bank
of Chongging (“BOCQ”) in late October 2008, taking our total
investment to 20%. Principally due to the strong performance of
BOCQ and also with the full year effect of our investment in 2008,
our share of results of associate increased to HK$121 million for
the year, despite only accounting for the increased contribution from
the additional 3% stake in BOCQ for a little over two months.

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Group decreased by 90%
to HK$106 million.

AT Banking Business
—E2ENF ZETLF =
2008 2007 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 2.11% 2.16%
BEET HK$ Million
Mk ERZORER Operating profit before
2 EE RN loan impairments 1,459.0 1,690.4 -13.7%
BTIRENEEEEWZK Operating profit before gains or
BB AT 2 & & m losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 800.5 1,509.6 -47.0%
IR 3R FE A1 4 ) Profit attributable to shareholders 188.6 800.2 -76.4%
EPEX Advances to customers 60,999 61,295 -0.48%
BEPFR Customers’ deposits 82,362 79,083 4.15%
BRITZFRGE Certificates of deposit issued 4,655 8,843 -47 4%
Foast Total deposits 87,017 87,926 -1.03%
BBRTZEBES Issued debt securities 2,804 2,795 0.31%
‘IBER Subordinated notes 5,672 5,148 10.2%
EREFREE (BEFRE) Loan to deposit (including
certificates of deposit) ratio 70.1% 69.7%
B S YA L 2 Cost to income ratio 51.6% 43.0%
REIREEER RN ER IR © R e B SR AR Against the backdrop of a severe financial crisis and rapid slowdown
ZEET  NEERTER-ZZNFZ2EE in the global economy, our Banking Group reported much weaker
RERBAF  RARERI 22 ERNETK results in 2008, although pre-impairment operating profit was down
Aozt e by only 14%.
XFeMmEBERLT —TENFFF
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Banking Business (Continued)

Net interest income in the year increased by close to 7%, driven
mainly by a higher balance of average interest earning assets.
Despite a higher net trading income mainly derived from higher
foreign exchange trading gains and fair value gains on financial
instruments, a much lower net fee and commission income resulted
in a drop in total non-interest income, and a moderate increase in
our operating income by 1.7%.

With a much higher level of operating expenses including one-off
special provisions, and a significant increase in loan impairment
charges, our Banking Group’s operating profit after operating
expenses and loan impairment in the year was 47% down from
2007.

Further impairment losses recognized on our securities investments
including the remaining holdings in the leveraged/structured
investment portfolio, together with valuation deficit on our
investment properties, combined to depress our profit in the year.
Decrease in the values of our investment properties at the end of
the year brought to us a net revaluation loss of HK$79 million,
against the revaluation gain of HK$182 million in 2007. Our share of
profit of the Bank of Chongqging, in which we increased our
shareholding to 20% in October 2008, totaled HK$121 million for
the year, an increase of 67% over 2007.

The Banking Group’s profit attributable to shareholders in the year
was down by 76% to HK$189 million.

As at 31 December 2008, the Banking Group’s total gross loans
and advances amounted to HK$61 billion, broadly flat relative to
the end of 2007. Portfolio composition did not change very
significantly during the year, although trade finance dropped by
around 17% reflecting the overall reduction in trade volumes and
exports caused by the global economic slowdown, particularly in
the second half of the year.

Customers’ deposits totaled HK$82.4 billion, representing an
increase of around 4% over the previous year. The aggregate
balance of certificates of deposit issued decreased by 47%,
reflecting a much more difficult debt and money market for new
issues in 2008. The loan to deposit ratio as at 31 December 2008
was 70%, broadly unchanged relative to the end of 2007.
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Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the retail banking, VIP
banking and private banking market segments of Hong Kong and
Macau, encountered one of the most challenging years in our history
during 2008. With lower operating income, higher operating
expenses and higher loan impairment charges, profit before tax was
73% lower than 2007.

The lower operating income was attributable to lower net interest
income caused mainly by lower margins on customer deposits
especially during the second half of 2008, and lower fee and
commission income earned especially on lower sales of wealth
management products and lower investment trading volumes by
customers. With a slowdown in the local economy and rise in
unemployment particularly in the second half year, a modest
deterioration in asset quality was noted in our unsecured retail
lending portfolio, and a higher level of loan impairment charge in
the year was recorded.

Against the more challenging operating environment, we pursued a
more cautious business and lending strategy, with the result that
overall loans to individual customers contracted by close to 2%
when compared with 2007, and was mainly caused by a lower
residential mortgage loan balance, reflecting our less active pursuit
of new lending in this business when mortgage loan margins were
tight, especially in the first half year.

During the year, we continued to promote credit card and unsecured
personal loan businesses with a series of programs to bring to our
customers more benefits and product varieties. We also
strengthened our retail securities trading services by expanding and
upgrading securities trading centres in some of our branches.

Our focus on expanding the retail deposit customer base and efforts
to strengthen our customer deposits brought to us a notable
increase over 2007 in the customer deposit balance of our Personal
Banking business.
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Personal Banking (Continued)

The collapse of Lehman Brothers in September 2008 caused
significant and adverse fallout to the global financial market, and
also a far-reaching impact to many retail banks and retail investors
in Hong Kong having distributed and bought Lehman Brother-
related investment products respectively in the past few years. We
have devoted a large amount of resources to address issues arising
from this incident, including handling customer complaints and
regulatory investigations.

As of the end of 2008, our branch network includes 48 retail
branches in Hong Kong under the name of Dah Sing Bank and
MEVAS Bank, and 14 branches in Macau under Banco Comercial
de Macau, and one subsidiary private bank in Guernsey, Channel
Islands providing offshore private banking services.

Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking, which includes trade finance, commercial
lending, syndicated lending, equipment finance and vehicle finance,
reported a much lower profit before tax relative to 2007.

Overall loan balance under Commercial Banking businesses was
flat on 2007, with growth in property lending and vehicle finance
offset by contraction in trade finance and equipment finance
balances. A mild contraction in customer deposits from our
commercial customers was recorded in the year.

Despite the much higher net interest income earned in the year, the
operating performance of our Commercial Banking businesses in
2008 was significantly affected by the rapid deterioration in asset
quality in the second half of 2008 caused by a drastic slowdown in
global demand, trade and manufacturing activities. With the much
higher loan impairment charges incurred, Commercial Banking’s
profit contribution was significantly lower than the previous year.

Cashflow difficulties and the decline in the value of collaterals for
some of our commercial customers resulted in notable increases in
impaired assets and individual impairment losses. Against the
unfavourable market conditions, we had implemented measures to
further tighten our credit criteria and monitoring, and step up our
collection actions.
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Treasury

In response to the deterioration in the global financial crisis and
weakening in market confidence in the year, our Treasury in 2008
increased its focus on liquidity and counterparty risk management.

Our Treasury division generated an overall loss in 2008. Despite the
stronger core operating results driven mainly by higher net interest
income, Treasury’s operating performance was adversely affected
by the global financial crisis in general and specific impairment loss
recognised on securities investments, including the bankruptcy of
Washington Mutual Bank, impairment and fair value losses on
externally managed leveraged/structured investment vehicles
managed by third party portfolio managers. The Banking Group’s
US$200 million investment in structured investment vehicles was
written down to HK$146 million as of the end of 2008, after a further
charge of HK$377 million in 2008.

New surplus funds investments in the year were much more
selective and were made mainly in short-term and high-quality
treasury bills and debt securities, including government guaranteed
securities.

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”)

BCM in 2008 achieved moderate loan and deposit growth, but
reported a drop of 40% in net profit relative to 2007. BCM’s less
than satisfactory operating results in the year was caused mainly
by a lower net interest income with a tighter net interest margin,
and higher loan and securities impairment losses.

Macau’s economic growth in the second half of 2008 recorded a
significant slowdown when compared with the first half, resulting in
a full year GDP growth of around 13%, much lower than the growth
of 25% in 2007.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a wholly owned new
subsidiary locally incorporated in China, commenced business on
1 August 2008 after receiving all regulatory approvals. DSB China
initially focuses on commercial banking businesses and is operating
with its headquarters in Shenzhen together with a sub branch, and
another branch in Shanghai. DSB China will shortly expand its
branch network in China with the addition of more branches in other
cities in China.

—EENFFR
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Dah Sing Bank (China) (Continued)

DSB China was profitable in its first year of operation and reported
a small net profit in 2008.

MEVAS Bank

MEVAS Bank, the separately branded Hong Kong banking
subsidiary under the Banking Group focusing on the personal
banking sector, recorded a significant drop in net profit in 2008 as a
result of lower operating income, higher operating expenses and
the recognition of a property revaluation deficit charge.

Bank of Chongqing

After our acquisition of an initial 17% interest in Bank of Chongging
(“BOCQ”) in April 2007, we are pleased to report that Dah Sing
Bank received regulatory approvals during 2008 to increase our
interest in BOCQ by another 3% to a total of 20%, which was
completed in October 2008.

BOCAQ is the leading city commercial bank in Chongqing, the largest
city in Western China, and is operating with a branch network of
over 70 branches. BOCQ’s total assets, as of 31 December 2008,
driven mainly by loan and treasury asset growth, reached RMB56.4
billion, up 26% relative to 2007. Net profit for the year ended 31
December 2008 was RMB655 million, up 18% on 2007.

The Group’s share of BOCQ net profit, on equity accounting basis,
amounted to HK$121 million in the year, an increase of 67% over
2007.

Insurance Business

Our insurance business, consolidating the results of the life and
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau, reported
disappointing results in 2008, largely caused by mark-to-market
losses on securities investments.
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Insurance Business (Continued)

Our insurance business continued to report growth in revenues,
driven by the increase in net premium and other income. Our agency
force remained similar in size in the second half of the year,
compared with strong growth in the previous periods.
Bancassurance distribution remained slow, similar to the
performance of our other wealth management products and
services. However, the mark-to-market losses on securities in our
insurance business investment portfolio resulted in an overall loss
for the insurance business for the year of HK$117 million. In a year
of extreme difficulties and unfavourable market conditions for
financial investments, our investment results in the year had
outperformed market benchmarks.

Net insurance premium and other income (including increase in
embedded value) grew 12%, while the net insurance claims and
expenses were flat on 2007. The growth in premium income was
attributed mainly to a higher average number of agents in the year.
The increase in embedded value amounted to HK$259 million in
the year, compared to the increase of HK$205 million in 2007, and
contributed to lift other income.

As at 31 December 2008, the total value of our Hong Kong and
Macau in-force life assurance businesses as calculated in
conjunction with the independent actuary was HK$1,275 million
(relative to HK$1,016 million at the end of 2007), and shareholders’
funds employed in our life and non-life insurance businesses
decreased to HK$806 million, giving an overall value for the
insurance business in the accounts of the Group of HK$2,210
million, a decrease of 10% when compared with 2007.

Our two Macau insurance subsidiaries, Macau Insurance Company
Limited and Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, recorded
operating losses in the year versus profits in 2007. The less than
satisfactory results were caused mainly by a net investment loss
(vs. a net gain in 2007) and payment on guarantees/returns to
policyholders.

Great Wall Life Insurance (“GWL"), a life insurance company
established in Beijing, China in 2005 with the Group initially holding
a 20% interest, increased its paid-up capital in early 2008. The
Group did not take up its pro rata share in this capital raising, and
therefore our interest in GWL was diluted to 11.87% with effect
from early 2008. Following this development, the Group had ceased
treating GWL as an associate, and carried this investment as a fair
value investment commencing 2008.

—EENFFR
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Review of Operations

Risk Management and Compliance

The unfolding of the subprime crisis to a full-blown financial crisis,
with far-reaching and tumultuous impacts to the global economy in
the second half of 2008, was of such a scale that few could have
predicted. The significant stress and near meltdown in the financial
market during the course of 2008, and the rapidity and scale of
government intervention with substantial liquidity and capital
support, were unprecedented since the Second World War.

In the light of the severe financial turmoil and new challenges, the
Group had undertaken review of its risk management system and
business strategies pursued in the past few years, and adopted
more cautious business strategies particularly in respect of the
Group’s treasury and lending businesses. The Group will continue
to improve its risk management practices, taking into consideration
new regulatory guidance and market development.

During the year, we continued to strengthen our compliance
function, and promoted added compliance awareness and best
practices in all our key businesses and operations, riding on the
themes communicated in our first group-wide compliance
conference held at the end of 2007 to promote communication and
sharing of our Group’s increased emphasis on compliance and
internal control.

Capital and Liquidity

—BENE —TTLHF
Banking Group 2008 2007
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Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Combined Capital base of
banking subsidiaries
(HK$ million) — at 31 December

— Core capital 5,175 6,102
— Supplementary capital 5,174 4,309
Total capital base after deductions* 10,349 10,411

Capital adequacy ratio

— Core 6.8% 9.1%
— Overall* 13.6% 15.5%
Liquidity ratio (average for the year) 48.9% 52.4%
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Capital and Liquidity (Continued)

*

The total combined capital base as at 31 December 2008 shown above
includes the consolidated capital base of Dah Sing Bank (“DSB”)
calculated on a regulatory consolidation basis specified by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”). The total combined capital base as at 31
December 2007 includes the capital base of DSB, which was stated after
adjusting for capital deduction in respect of DSB’s investment in Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) (a reporting basis agreed with the
HKMA prior to 2008). The risk weighted exposures of BCM were not
included in the combined risk weighted exposures of the Group’s banking
subsidiaries in computing the capital adequacy ratio for 2007, whereas
the risk weighted exposures of BCM and Dah Sing Bank (China) were
included in the aggregate combined risk weighted exposures of the
Group’s banking subsidiaries in computing the capital adequacy ratio as
at 31 December 2008.

With higher unrealised mark-to-market losses on available-for-sale
securities held by Dah Sing Bank as a result of the deterioration in
the global credit market, and pursuant to the clarification from the
HKMA relating to deduction of such unrealised losses from core
capital rather than supplementary capital for locally incorporated
authorized institutions in Hong Kong, the combined capital base,
and therefore, capital adequacy ratio of the Group’s banking
subsidiaries, were depressed in 2008.

The Boards of Directors of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) and DSB, on
25 March 2009, resolved to repurchase and cancel the US$52
million subordinated note issued by DSB to DSFH in 2008, for DSFH
to lend a total of HK$1 billion to DSBG on normal commercial terms,
and for DSBG to use the proceeds of the loan to subscribe for a
total of HK$1 billion new equity issued by DSB. These capital
actions, including the HK$1 billion equity injection to DSB, were
concluded on 25 March 2009. If these actions were to be considered

MARFRITIEEHTEAT - MEIEER as having taken effect on 31 December 2008, the proforma capital
REEAER_ZEEN\F+_A=+—HB4E% position would be as follows:
FEBEERRRAT -

—EENF+=A=+—8 (EZ)
LAB &8 Tat HK$ million 31 Dec. 2008 (Proforma)
2 &R Core capital 6,175
Mg BEARER AR Total capital base after deductions 11,567
BEARFTRILE Capital adequacy ratio
— 0 - Core 8.1%
— R - Overall 15.2%

AKFeRmEBERLAT T \FFR
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Capital and Liquidity (Continued)

With our pool of liquid assets including cash and placements with
banks, and diversified marketable securities held for investment and
liquidity purposes, we continued to operate at prudent and high
levels of liquidity, and a sound level of liquidity ratio throughout the
year.

DSB’s long-term credit ratings, at “A3” and “A-" assigned by
Moody’s and Fitch respectively, were affirmed in 2008.

Human Resources

To improve the quality, skills and compliance awareness of our staff,
and to ensure sufficient professional training of our front-line staff
particularly in relation to banking services and securities business
continued to be our training and development objectives in 2008. A
new talent management initiative was launched in the year to
reinforce our talent development commitment for the long-term
competitiveness of the Group. We also continued our graduate
trainee development programme, and are pleased to note that the
programme has proved its success with highly motivated young
talents steadily progressing over the past few years to take up
managerial positions.

We are pleased to have been recognised again by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Services as one of the leading Hong Kong caring
employers, a recognition we achieved consecutively over the past
seven years.

In 2008, we continued our work to improve the service excellence,
teamwork, caring and trust culture throughout the organization.
Personal support and counseling services as well as crisis
management training were provided to staff-in-need through our
employee assistance program. Our staff social club continued to
promote staff and family well-being, and organized different social
and sports activities to help promote staff benefits, affinity,
friendship and health.

The Group’s headcount increased as a result of our business
development and increasing demand for human resources to
strengthen our capabilities mainly in China business. The total
number of employees of our Group, including our staff in Macau
and China, increased from 1,984 at the end of 2007 to 2,046 at the
end of 2008.
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Corporate governance practices

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance,
and follows all of the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”).

This report is issued in accordance with Appendix 23 of the Listing
Rules, and explains how the Company applies the provisions set out in
the Code.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted on 24 March 2009 a revised code for
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
prevailing required standard set in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the Directors of the
Company confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year 2008.

The Board of Directors
(1) The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
so as to promote its success and continued growth. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company has sound systems of risk
management, internal control and regulatory compliance. The Directors,
collectively and individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board sets
the business objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution

of those objectives by the management of the Company.

(2)  Board composition and meetings

The Board is made up of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, four
executive directors including the Chief Executive, six non-executive
directors, and four independent non-executive directors. Brief

biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to 13.

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at approximately

quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as necessary.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

The following table sets out the attendance record of each director at
the board meetings held in 2008:

Number of Board meetings in 2008 8

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Peter Gibbs Birch 6/8 75%
Robert Tsai-To Sze 8/8 100%
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 8/8 100%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 4/8 50%

Non-Executive Directors

Kunio Suzuki 0/8 0%
Chung-Kai Chow 5/8 63%
Tatsuo Tanaka 4/8 50%
Eiichi Yoshikawa 8/8 100%
John Wai-Wai Chow 6/8 75%
Yiu-Ming Ng 8/8 100%

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong 8/8 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 8/8 100%
Roderick Stuart Anderson 8/8 100%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 8/8 100%
Nicholas John Mayhew 8/8 100%
Average attendance rate 81%

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give all
directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the
Company Secretary, in writing, and at least seven days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept
by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committee,
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice

by any director.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. In
circumstances where directors believe that independent advice is
needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive in the first instance with their request. No such request will
be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive will endeavour to identify and engage an appropriate

professional adviser at the expense of the Company.

All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running the
Group to the executive management, and has delegated responsibility
for certain matters to a number of committees, which are described
more fully in the following sections. There are a number of matters which
require the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated to
the committees of the Board or the executive management. These

reserved matters include:

° Transactions that a substantial shareholder or a director has a

conflict of interest;

° Material acquisitions or disposals (i.e. an amount that exceeds
10% of the lower of the Company’s net asset value or market
capitalisation at the relevant time);

° Material investments or disposal of investments (except for
normal investment or dealing in securities in the ordinary course
of deploying the surplus funds of the Group);

o Any material change in the nature of the Group’s business;

° Appointment of new directors;

° Approval of relevant policies; and

° Approval of annual budget.

The Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal

action against its directors.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power
and authority, so that no one individual should have unfettered powers
of decision. The roles and objectives of the Chairman, Mr. David Shou-
Yeh Wong, and the Chief Executive, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong),
are therefore separated and have been approved by the Board. The
Chairman mainly provides leadership for the Board to ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Company to provide business direction and operational leadership
for the benefit of the Group’s businesses, enhance shareholder value

and ensure sound internal control.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has six non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. Each of the independent non-executive
directors has provided to the Company confirmation of independence

as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The term of appointment of non-executive directors is
normally for a term which coincides with their expected dates of

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive directors, as equal Board members, give the Board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance
and active participation. They attend regular and special Board
meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or special meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The non-executive directors make
a positive contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and informed

comments.

33



A8 56 IR O

Corporate Governance Report

A ST
HFZWHE

%‘%ZE&T“”l%ﬁrﬁé&é%A%ﬁ§$Z%
CRRBRAREBEREZRR o BUESEITAR
”JJ:M CEMEFECFEL - BREATHTES
EETLRBEHARAEERE  IHRTESFS
ERKNEBARAZTAZRNIEHZSERE -

HFZHW

ARBR-_ZZERFNARILFMEE S LA
EERBTAEARBESE  JREACKE
B - ARAR-_ZERNFNA -  BEREGEHE
KARRENGFMEES  UWEHRABESRE - =2
HLRFMEEe (APER) AEEIHNEZT 2R
B URHEREERSRERABZHM - %
BEeXEXTEMBUINTESLHE -ZEBRZ
BEGETTNARR ZEMRFRER -

RELRFWEEGN _ZZN\FEAH RS
# - ZERREZERERKER _TTNFZ
HE LT

“EEN\FAEHERRY

BB (/)
Peter Gibbs Birch
YN

B

T

M

FHHRE

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH

Nomination and Remuneration of Directors
Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management of the
Company, and require that such appointments are made after

deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its role
and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is responsible, among
other things, for the review of the nomination of new directors, approval
of the remuneration of directors and senior management. The majority
of the members are independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference for the Committee are available for inspection at the

Company’s registered office.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held one meeting in
2008. The current members of the Committee and their attendance

records in 2008 are set out below:

Number of meetings held in 2008 1

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 11 100%
Peter Gibbs Birch 11 100%
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 11 100%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 0/1 0%
David Shou-Yeh Wong 11 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 11 100%
Average attendance rate 83%
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors (Continued)

The work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2008

included:

- Determining and approving the bonus and remuneration levels

for executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing the nomination of directors to the Board and senior

management of the Company and of the Group

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages commensurate with market terms, and is based on business

needs, expertise and quality of the individual, and industry practice.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages

of executive directors:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s
responsibility

- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be

involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

¢
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Auditors’ Independence and Remuneration

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for

performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when the
Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the independence
and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external auditors can be

maintained. Otherwise, professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC during the year provided the
Group non-audit services by rendering regulatory compliance review
services, review of tax returns and computation, tax advisory services,
review of the Group’s interim financial disclosure based on agreed-upon
procedures, and review of the update of offering circular of the US$2

Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme of Dah Sing Bank, Limited.

Details of the fees payable to PwC for the year for audit and audit-

related services are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established by the Board of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the directors have exercised the
care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate

accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The Committee
reviews and monitors the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards.

The Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including significant financial

reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The Committee reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its
finding and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below, whilst for risk management,
these are shown in the Supplementary Financial Information under Risk
management and described with appropriate financial quantification in
the Financial risk management sections as notes to the annual financial

statements.

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available for

inspection at the Company’s registered office.

The members of the Committee are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Mr. Peter Gibbs Birch and Mr. Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue). All the
members of the Committee are independent non-executive directors
with extensive experience in banking, finance and business
management. The Committee’s chairman, Mr. Sze, is a qualified
accountant and was a partner of a predecessor firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. None of the other committee
members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the former or

existing external auditors of the Company.
The Committee members meet at least three times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit and the

external auditors. In 2008, a total of four meetings were convened.

The attendance record of individual directors at the Audit Committee

meetings in 2008 is set out below:
Number of Audit Committee meetings in 2008 4

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 4/4 100%
Peter Gibbs Birch 4/4 100%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 4/4 100%

Average attendance rate

To enable directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of

the Audit Committee, the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are

included in the board papers of regular board meetings sent to

directors.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during
2008 in discharging its responsibilities:

a. Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2007 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2008 Interim
Report;

b. Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2007 audit and financial
statements;

C. Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2007 for inclusion
in the Company’s 2007 annual report;

d. Review of an update and discussion on the valuation and
accounting issues on certain structured investments held by the
Group;

e. Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion revised and dealt with by the Audit
Committee in the second half of 2007 and the first half of 2008;

f. Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

g. Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of
external auditors;

h. Review of the findings and recommendations of the external
auditors;

i Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;
- Review and approval of internal audit plan;
k. Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations;

I Review of reports on applicable compliance and regulatory
matters and adoption of the minutes of the meetings of the
Compliance Committee;

m. Review of update from Group Risk on the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”)’s examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s
recommendations; and

n. Review and approval of the internal audit charters of Dah Sing
Bank’s banking subsidiaries.
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Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to develop
and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal control
system, operating through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended to allow the Board
to monitor the Group’s business performance and financial positions,
to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business practices,
to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against fraud and errors, to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to provide
oversight and guidance to management in achieving the Company’s
objectives. However, it should be recognized that the Group’s internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute,

assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an

effective internal control system are as follows:

° A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-

defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

° Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest

rate risks, operational risk and compliance risks.

° Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management committees
including the Executive Committee. Actual performance results
against budgets are closely monitored. The Board reviews the

Group’s business and financial performance on a quarterly basis.

° Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering), staff training,
IT development, IT governance and information security, business
continuity planning, financial control (including accounting,
regulatory reporting, financial reporting to comply with regulatory
and financial reporting standards, management accounting and
budget control, reconciliation of accounts), and system of
management oversight including the operations of various
functional committees.
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Internal Controls (Continued)
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The independent internal audit function monitors compliance with
management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal control
reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits and
operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency
and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head of Internal
Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the

Executive Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to the Board via the Risk
Management Committee and the Executive Committee, and
operates to sustain a sound asset quality in the portfolio of the
Group’s businesses with due consideration of a proper risk and

return balance.

The Group’s banking business is working on the upgrade of its
risk management framework and capabilities to progress toward
the implementation of the more sophisticated risk management
practices under the Basel Il capital accord, with the banking group
starting on the basis of standardised approach for regulatory
capital reporting and management commencing 2007. This
development will contribute to enhance the overall risk

management and internal control process of the Group.

The Group’s Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability of
compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing and
guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure compliance
with all statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines. The
Legal and Compliance Division of the Group performs an
independent on-going monitoring role on the Group’s compliance

with relevant rules and regulations.
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Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the Board
has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and
executive management, and the findings of both internal and external

auditors.

The 2008 reviews included an annual assessment of internal control
system with reference to the provisions of the Code regarding internal
controls. Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s
Internal Audit in the year conducted an assessment covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management practices.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.
Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are shown in Note 33 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 61.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.68 per share
amounting to HK$176,984,045 which was paid on 18 September 2008.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
shown in Note 50 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 51 to the financial statements.
Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$655,000.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown in

Note 35 to the financial statements.
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Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Chung-Kai Chow 0.B.E., J.P.
Vice Chairman

Kunio Suzuki

*Peter Gibbs Birch c.B.E.

*Robert Tsai-To Sze

*Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
*Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)
Tatsuo Tanaka

Eiichi Yoshikawa

John Wai-Wai Chow

Yiu-Ming Ng

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Roderick Stuart Anderson
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Nicholas John Mayhew

Kenichi Yonetani

(alternate to Kunio Suzuki)

Tetsuya Wada
(appointed as an alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka on 19 August 2008)

Keisuke Tahara

(resigned as an alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka on 19 August 2008)

* Independent non-executive Directors
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Roderick Stuart Anderson, Chung-Kai Chow, John Wai-Wai Chow, and
Yiu-Ming Ng retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and Roderick Stuart Anderson, John Wai-Wai Chow and Yiu-Ming Ng,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, but Chung-Kai Chow
will retire as the Vice Chairman and Non-executive Director at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

and not offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors, and
the Company still considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent. The Company is aware that two independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Peter G. Birch and Robert Tsai-To Sze,
have served the Board for a period of more than nine years but still
considers that they provide valuable independent advice and roles to

the Board, and help benefit to the Board deliberation.

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive

At 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
have taken on were deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
and the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions

adopted by the Company were as follows:




HRFEHREEH

Report of the Directors

B RATH AR A () Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)
B ARAR A W) SR B A T B Z B4 HE 2 a) Interests in shares of the Company and associated corporation
FEERA
HEBEERT
REBFD L
Percentage
of share
RAgE interest
Number of shares in the
BA#ER HEER Hiris CEIR: 30 relevant
Personal Corporate Other Total issued
EE Director Interests Interests Interests Interests  share capital
BEALATERER Number of ordinary shares of
2BRMEBERR M HK$2 each in the Company
IF¥ David Shou-Yeh Wong - 5,367,695 94,909,411@ 100,277,106 38.53
Gkt A Chung-Kai Chow 668,832 8,619,252 - 9,288,084 3.57
EEE John Wai-Wai Chow 930,520 - - 930,520 0.36
Peter Gibbs Birch Peter Gibbs Birch 50,000 - - 50,000 0.02
ZiEE Roderick Stuart Anderson 60,801 - - 60,801 0.02
BEAHRTEBERAR Number of ordinary shares of
SREE1ETH HK$1 each in Dah Sing
EBERRAG Banking Group Limited
e David Shou-Yeh Wong® - 699,169,1709 - 699,169,170 74.96
B Chung-Kai Chow 130,135 1,693,410 - 1,823,545 0.20
AEE John Wai-Wai Chow 164,558 - - 164,558 0.02
Peter Gibbs Birch Peter Gibbs Birch 50,000 - - 50,000 0.01
K Nicholas John Mayhew 20,000 - - 20,000 0.00
Gl Notes:
1) EEVEERERTVIERHEBEE =D 2 — A L 1) The corporate interest is in respect of shares held by a company in which
mARFFB 2R’ - the director has an interest of one third or more.
2) WERND IR AETERERBR=MAY 2 E 2) Such shares are indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited, a
BEAZTAESEREEERABEERE - trustee of a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-
Yeh Wong and his family.
3) RZEZN\F+A=+—HzxHA - BEF 3) Such shares in DSBG represent the corporate interest of David Shou-Yeh
FISLERE A AR R100,277,1060% B 55 B (5 # Wong under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his beneficial interest in
% (GAERE BTN AR38.53% + A IR E H K 100,277,106 shares of the Company, representing 38.53% of its entire
HI B 15 DI SEXVER B TE 3 BAR VEE A i% B KHTIRTT share capital currently in issue as at 31 December 2008 being the record
EERMD 2 EERER © date.
4) B D T ER o RETIRITSRE RN - R 4)  In addition to his interest in DSBG, Nicholas John Mayhew is also

DSE Investment Services Limited ([DSE]) 71
BEET00#E T2 BERMER - DSETIARA A
2EMBRF REEELSE -

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

beneficially interested in all of DSE Investment Services Limited’s (“DSE”)
preference shares in issue totalling HK$700. DSE, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, is currently dormant.
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b)
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Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation
i) Share option scheme of the Company

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the
new Share Option Scheme (“DSFH Option Scheme”) on 28 April
2005.

Summary of DSFH Option Scheme disclosed in accordance with

the Listing Rules are as follows:
(1)  Purpose of DSFH Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSFH Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the

Group.
(2) Participants of DSFH Option Scheme:

Any director of, manager of, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in, the Group
as the Board may in its sole discretion determine to be

eligible to participate in DSFH Option Scheme.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2008:

The number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme is 9,580,462 shares, representing 3.68%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2008.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSFH

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSFH Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company and is specified when related options are
granted, but shares under the options must be taken up
within 10 years from the date of grant. All the existing share
options under the DSFH Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in varying amounts between the

first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one

year from the date of grant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
@)

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid;

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of
the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK?”) and is calculated as the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of
the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of DSFH Option Scheme:
DSFH Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 28 April 2005 and
expiring at the close of 27 April 2015.
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b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to DSFH Option Scheme, certain Directors of the

Company and its major operating subsidiaries were granted

options under DSFH Option Scheme. Details of the share options

outstanding as at 31 December 2008 which have been granted

under the DSFH Option Scheme are as follows:

AREAZZAATRAEE
Number of the Company’s shares in the options
R-EENE —SENER ZEENER ZEENER WIBINE
-B-8 B 1 ANEE t-A=t-8 il ]
BE Granted  Exercised Lapsed/ b2 EEn Exercise period
Held at during during  cancelled Heldat  Exercise RY¥EH ] Z
ARA Grantee 1/11/2008 2008 2008  during 2008 31/12/2008 price™  Grant date From To
B (BAE) (RIRE) (BIAE)
HK$ d/miy d/mly dimly
g% Directors
EER Hon-Hing Wong
(Derek Wong) 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
REE Roderick Stuart
Anderson 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
Tihz Gary Pak-Ling Wang 400,000 - - - 400,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
REg Nicholas John
Mayhew 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013
Easge Aggregate of
Employees® 250,000 - - - 250,000 51.71 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
500,000 - - - 500,000 67.80 7/9/2006 7/9/2007 7/9/2012
100,000 - - - 100,000 61.93 28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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R AT BRI MRS () Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)
L) AEAE] BB o ) Py il IR ERE AR (D) b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)
i) ARINE]ZRIRIER 2 (&) i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)
[ Notes:
1. BEET2TEEDRIRRIT EMBRAE 1. The exercise prices for each tranche of granting were determined

17.039)fk - 2EARRBRM(HEX T AR
BRPrEE 2 mE - BHERT AR
A5 ARBIAER 2 FHRTE - M
RAhzReEMEE - ESETRAAR

in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on

ARMHEHERNT the SEHK for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the respective dates of grant are set out below:

BFBAERDTARG
B P 2 T B
Closing price

#¥FH THEE of the Company’s shares on the SEHK

Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant

(B/R/4%) BT BT

(d/m/y) HK$ HK$

25/8/2005 51.71 51.05

7/9/2006 67.80 68.90

28/9/2007 61.93 60.90

2. RAEASBRETREZE-_ZTENF+_A=1 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements

—HILFERERITER R 28 K+
B AARRRTARATELENBA
AMAEEZRRME - WATBEMIED
BETEEAN] TIENESR -

3. HEARHEMBEERIT - WEARAE 3.
BTZREEALRZ B -

4. ERFeRMARRESET - WERERMAR 4.
RISk AR E MR M RS R R TR
i #E o

5. HE_ZZ)\F+_A=+—HIEFEAN 5.
BHRBRENEE

ﬁi*%fA¢+*H:+fE¢¢ﬁ%
BERREEEZ ETFBHNRUBHRE
M 5E55 °

RFERHEBERDA

during the year ended 31 December 2008 of the Company’s
outstanding share options which were granted to two employees
who are directors of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries
and are working under employment contracts that are regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

None of the grantees under DSFH Option Scheme were granted
share options exceeding respective individual limits.

No share options under DSFH option scheme were granted to the

Company’s or the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2008:

Details of the computation of the value of options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2008 are shown in Note 55 to the
financial statements.
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b)
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Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company

The Share Option Scheme (“DSBG Option Scheme”) of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) was initially approved by the
Company, as the sole shareholder of DSBG, on 12 June 2004.
With the approval of the SEHK, the terms of DSBG Option
Scheme as disclosed in DSBG's initial public offering prospectus
remained valid after its public listing commencing from 30 June
2004.

Summary of DSBG Option Scheme disclosed in accordance with

the Listing Rules are as follows:

(1)  Purpose of DSBG Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSBG Option Scheme is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the

Group’s business and growth.
(2) Participants of DSBG Option Scheme:

Eligible participants of DSBG Option Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
DSBG and its subsidiaries.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2008:

The number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme is 38,995,000 shares, representing 4.18%
of the issued share capital of DSBG as at 31 December
2008.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

ii)

RFERHEBERDA

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSBG

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSBG Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG
and is specified when related options are granted, but
shares under the options must be taken up within 10 years
from the date of grant. All the existing share options under
the DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vested
in varying amounts between the first and up to sixth
anniversaries from the date of grant, or in a shorter period

as the case may be.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSBG and is specified when related options are
granted. None of the existing share options under DSBG
Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one year from

the date of grant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSBG in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules and is calculated as the higher of (i) the closing
price of DSBG shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of DSBG shares
traded on the SEHK for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of DSBG Option Scheme:

DSBG Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 12 June 2004 and

expiring at the close of 11 June 2014.
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B RATH AR A () Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)
L) AEAE] BB o ) Py il IR ERE AR (D) b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
Company and associated corporation (Continued)
i)  AREBEEWEBEE — KFTRITE i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
BRI A2 RARKERE () a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)
RBARFIRITER ERRERTE - RERT Pursuant to DSBG Option Scheme, certain directors of DSBG
EEEREFECENBATINE TESE and its major operating subsidiaries were granted options under
BYRBH#E - RZZEENF+_A=+— DSBG Option Scheme. Details of the share options outstanding
H ERFRITEERRETE TR as at 31 December 2008 which have been granted under DSBG
B2 RBRNEFERTBEOT Option Scheme are as follows:
AREAZZAFRTEERALE
Number of DSBG's shares in the options
RZBENE ZEENER RIZBNE
-f-B ZEBENER ZBENER AWAH tZR=1-R filid:d
BE R i Lapsed/ bE:] fTEEY Exercise period
Held at Granted  Exercised  cancelled Heldat  Exercise RFAH # E
ARA Grantee 1/1/2008  during 2008  during 2008  during 2008 31/12/2008 price ™ Grant date From To

Ern o (RIAIE)  (BIAE)  (RIRE)
HKS (d/miy) (d/mAy) (d/mAy)

g% Directors
BEX Lung-Man Chiu
(John Chiu) 250,000 - - - 250,000 16.70  25/11/2004  25/11/2005  25/11/2010
e Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau 250,000 - - - 250,000 14.40 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
Easge Aggregate of
employees® 300,000 - - - 300,000 14.40 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
250,000 - - - 250,000 1432 30/12/2005  30/12/2006  30/12/2011
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.30 25/9/2006 25/9/2007 25/9/2012
100,000 - - - 100,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2010
250,000 - - - 250,000 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2013

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH
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Report of the Directors

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

KRNFFEZRBHE — AMRTE i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,
BlBR a2z R ERE () a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)
Notes:
BRK T 2TEETREBERIT EMRANE 1. The exercise price for each tranche of granting was determined in
17.03(9)1k + 2% AFiRTTER B MK ()EE accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules prevailing in
FTHREZMEZE 2WME -« Hi)EET force, being calculated as the higher of (i) the closing price of DSBG
AR AERZX S BRERMBEE 2 FHKH shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (i) the average
B MEFzZESEMEE E8KTAH closing price of DSBG shares traded on the SEHK for the five
RIARBBRMDBHELNT - trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The closing
price of DSBG'’s shares immediately before the respective dates of
grant are set out below:
BFAARFBITEERSD
REBXBHZWHE
Closing price
®FH THEE of DSBG shares on the SEHK
Date of grant Exercise price immediately before the date of grant
(B/A/%) T BT
(@/msy) HK$ HK$
25/11/2004 16.70 16.60
25/8/2005 14.40 14.15
30/12/2005 14.32 14.35
25/9/2006 17.30 17.04
19/7/2007 17.84 17.58
RAEASBRETREZE-_ZTSENF+_A=1 2. Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements
—HIEFEARIIRITEE B RITERR during the year ended 31 December 2008 of DSBG’s outstanding
2B RFE  MAHBRTERERTH share options which were granted to 3 directors and 4 senior
TELEBENBARI=REZRMNESMRIT executives of DSBG’s major operating subsidiaries and are working
BZ/\E\ZWHXE B AREBEMBKOIESR under employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous
TIEEEHNITIENEE - contracts” for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong.
EARFIRITEBRRESENT - WEAR 3. None of the grantees under DSBG Option Scheme were granted
ANERTZREEA LR ZRRRE - share options exceeding respective individual limits.
ERFIRITEBRRETEIT - WM 4. No share options under DSBG option shares were granted to
RN B A E B o AR TS R R DSBG’s and the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.
TRARRE -
BHE_ZTN\F+-A=1+—RHILFEFN 5. Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2008:

BEHARBRENEE

HE-ZZN\F+= )El + BIEFEAT
BERREEEZ ETFBHNRUBHEE
M 5E55 °

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Details of the computation of value of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2008 are shown in Note 55 to the financial

statements.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at
31 December 2008, none of Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO as recorded in the register of

directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Company.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

Shareholders’ Interests

At 31 December 2008, the register of shareholders’ interests in shares
and short positions maintained under section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had been notified of the following interests, which
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of Directors, being

5% or more held in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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JBE SRORE 25 (40 Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)
HEAR G2 E
BERITRAZ
Ao
Percentage of
share interest
held in the
KR g4 ROEE entire issued
Shareholder Capacity Number of shares share capital
TRES FAERBHEEATRERESMRIEAER
Christine Yen Wong Deemed Interest by virtue of 100,277,106 38.53%*
her spouse having a notifiable interest
fE @ RREEERAA BEREAREEER
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee and corporate interest 93,847,249@ 36.29%*
BEREAREEER
DSI Limited Trustee and corporate interest 46,559,426® 17.89%*
BEREAREEER
DSI Group Limited Trustee and corporate interest 35,452,4249 13.62%*
=ZURJe R & E EE RS
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Corporate interest 39,214,574 15.07%
= ZE R RUFJIRTT EnfEs
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd Beneficial interest 39,214,574 15.07%
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc WEKIE
MEEZEZH B AR
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc Investment manager 18,202,009 6.99%
and its subsidiaries under mandates
RERE
Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Ltd. Investment manager 18,048,800 6.93%
* N EEZLEE{ELER AR - DSI Limited 2 DSI *  Each of the interests of HSBC International Trustee Limited, DSI Limited and

Group Limited® B 5 2 #E a9 /@ T T R ST AT
£E#100,277, 106X AN 2 BIIR (A 2 &5 © A EEF
EEEZRREREWSEESRITHRERER]E
NIEETUEE THRESLTNRSENZSTT
EEEERARBNRGEH - At - BERN A
RIEA  MIRBREITELEFH 100,277,106

A RB WAz BB 2 AR o

Shou-Yeh Wong.

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

DSI Group Limited forms part of the 100,277,106 shares in the Company in
which David Shou-Yeh Wong has an interest as disclosed in the section
headed “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” on page 45. The interest
of Christine Yen Wong represents the whole of such shares. Therefore, these
shareholdings should not be aggregated, and rather form part or whole of
the same interest of 100,277,106 shares in the Company disclosed by David
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Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:
1.

Such shares represent the deemed interest of Christine Yen Wong by virtue
of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial shareholder of
the Company having a notifiable interest in the relevant share capital of
the Company (under the interpretation of section 316(1) of the SFO). This
interest comprises the same shares held by David Shou-Yeh Wong under
the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

Such shares are mainly comprised of the interest indirectly held by HSBC
International Trustee Limited in trust for a discretionary trust established
for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family. Relevant shares
have been included in the “Other interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as
disclosed under the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” above.

Such shares are mainly comprised of the interests indirectly held by DSI
Limited and DSI Group Limited in trust for a discretionary trust established
for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family. Relevant shares
have been included in the “Other interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as
disclosed under the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” above.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at

31 December 2008, no short positions were recorded in the register of

shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended

31 December 2008. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

RFEMEBERAT —ZTN\FFEH
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Report of the Directors

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Connected Transactions

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2008 have been set out in Note 54 to the financial

statements.

Five-Year Financial Information

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are included in the section of the annual report under

“Financial Summary”.

Major Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group derived less than
30% of interest income and other operating income from its five largest

customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the

Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

Compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors
of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the preceding three

years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

BHE_TT ) \F+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2008
(A8 % T T 51m) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

izt Z—ZTBNE —_ZTTLHF

Note 2008 2007
M EWA Interest income 4,738,962 5,975,014
FE > H Interest expense (2,369,497)  (3,760,320)
B E KA Net interest income 6 2,369,465 2,214,694
AR5 & KA e A Fee and commission income 612,513 717,920
AR & KA e Fee and commission expense (108,892) (105,267)
FREBRASWA Net fee and commission income 7 503,621 612,653
FEE (BB A Net trading (loss)/income 8 (104,295) 660,129
FIRE R H AU A Net insurance premium and other income 9 2,119,344 1,898,602
H b2 i@ I A Other operating income 10 88,575 110,350
@ EIBUK 3 Operating income 4,976,710 5,496,428
17% SRERY HFE Net insurance claims and expenses 11 (1,806,263)  (1,797,816)
HBRREE R E Total operating income net of

ZEBUA insurance claims 3,170,447 3,698,612
EES Operating expenses 12 (1,703,284)  (1,444,002)
MR E BB A 2 & EHER Operating profit before impairment losses 1,467,163 2,254,610
ERREBR 2 FHEEER Impairment losses on loans and advances 15 (658,535) (180,795)
ETRERBEEEEWRRS Operating profit before gains or losses

BB 2 EE R on certain investments and fixed assets 808,628 2,073,815
TERAtETAEHERER Net gain on disposal and revaluation of

W E premises and other fixed assets 16 1,410 27,643
REMELHENFHBAFEZ Net (loss)/gain on disposal of and fair value

F(E1R) s adjustment on investment properties 17 (60,437) 123,336
HEMHEEES Net (loss)/gain on disposal of available-

F (&R = for-sale securities (3,119) 115,304
BBt E A Al 2 ¥6E Share of results of associates 120,589 45,564
JE {5 [R5 | B B8 2 24 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 5,674 10,536
REINREF 2 REBERR Impairment losses charged on held-to-

maturity securities (357,684) -
B EFES 2R EEIERE Impairment losses charged on available-

for-sale securities 18 (332,069) (1,037,742)
BR 1 Al i A Profit before income tax 182,992 1,358,456
FHIEs Income tax expense 19 (29,375) (132,708)
FEBRN Profit for the year 153,617 1,225,748
D B R E A i A Profit attributable to minority interests (47,424) (175,548)
78 A 7 B 3R FE A % A Profit attributable to shareholders of

the Company 20 106,193 1,050,200
BE Dividends
B H AR B Interim dividend paid 21 175,814 187,566
¥R R EARR B Proposed final dividend 21 - 187,566

175,814 375,132

BREAER Earnings per share

%% Basic 22 HK$0.42 HK$4.20

e Diluted 22 HK$0.42 HK$4.19
FOTEEE268 2 MIFENINEGRERBREK 2 — The notes on pages 67 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

61



62

A EEREER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2008

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

fiex Z=ZBBENE —_ZTTLF
Note 2008 2007
BE ASSETS
R RIERITH LA Cash and balances with banks 23 12,808,527 11,868,465
FERIT—ZE+ =8 B A E B F R Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 1,656,950 1,919,342
T—rf’EEEﬁHLE’T Trading securities 24 2,303,141 4,668,816
NEEFEREEHT ABREL Financial assets at fair value through
@ BB E profit or loss 24 4,258,874 2,570,875
TESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 25 1,122,486 758,047
ERERREAMARE Advances and other accounts 26 70,508,863 66,151,544
T 4 1 28 5 Available-for-sale securities 28 14,724,195 25,826,991
T E?'JE@L% Held-to-maturity securities 29 6,384,931 4,500,725
9»4 BRFIRE Investments in associates 31 1,132,461 842,970
HEZEHEEIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 32 59,973 63,852
Fﬁ = Goodwill 34 950,992 950,992
BEEE Intangible assets 34 158,352 181,023
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 35 2,069,694 2,228,766
wEME Investment properties 36 459,304 547,574
BVEATRIE & B Current income tax assets 144,177 102,643
EEBIRE E Deferred income tax assets 47 162,804 10,385
RIISBREBZBRREEE Value of in-force long-term life
assurance business 37 1,274,452 1,015,538
BEEA Total assets 120,180,176 124,208,548
=R LIABILITIES
RITE Deposits from banks 2,443,594 2,651,668
TESHBMTEA Derivative financial instruments 25 2,268,155 970,781
%f’ﬁi%ifé}ﬂﬁm:é@ Trading liabilities 39 1,791,419 2,689,069
HEE ?@”r; BHESZ Deposits from customers designated
ﬁMe SR FEF R at fair value through profit or loss 40 471,065 3,142,488
EFPER Deposits from customers 41 79,947,078 75,584,849
BETHERE Certificates of deposit issued 42 4,654,985 8,843,414
BEBETHNERE S Issued debt securities 43 2,803,640 2,794,861
BEER Subordinated notes 44 5,268,716 5,147,837
HaBRE RTELR Other accounts and accruals 45 4,074,266 5,851,837
BNEAF TH & & Current income tax liabilities 15,440 38,369
FEERIER F Deferred income tax liabilities 47 9,910 98,562
HERBRBEAREFEAZEE Liabilities to policyholders under long-term
insurance contracts 46 4,494,456 3,613,540
B8EE5 Total liabilities 108,242,724 111,427,275
= EQUITY
DERIE R A Minority interests 2,045,251 2,311,970
NN} Equity attributable to the Company’s
PE{h RE = shareholders
& s Share capital 50 520,541 500,176
s Reserves 51 9,371,660 9,781,561
HOIR R HA R 2 Proposed final dividend 21 - 187,566
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 9,892,201 10,469,303
BEE Total equity 11,937,452 12,781,273
EERkAEET Total equity and liabilities 120,180,176 124,208,548
EERN_EENF=A-+RAIERERER Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
ffo ° 25 March 2009.
ErE HERE David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
= EFpaE Director Managing Director
FOTEEFE226E ZMFE ARG E B wEK 2 — The notes on pages 67 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2008

Balance Sheet

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

e Z=—BBENE —ZTLF
Note 2008 2007
B A RRE Investments in subsidiaries 33 3,593,110 3,168,027
MBE E Current assets
RITHE R Bank balances 7,114 3,456
FEURR & H At BR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 349 358
7,463 3,814
mEEE Current liabilities
THIRER R EMER B Accrued expenses and other accounts 13,872 13,916
=N EN=K 1= Net current liabilities (6,409) (10,102)
3,586,701 3,157,925
= EQUITY
f& 2 Share capital 50 520,541 500,176
i 5 Reserves 51 3,066,160 2,470,183
R R EARR B Proposed final dividend 21 - 187,566
Bz Total equity 3,586,701 3,157,925

BEERR-_ZETNF=RA-_+HBHERKESE

1 o

B EHERE
EF BEAEETE
FOTEEE226H 2 MizETHA
o o

MmRz—

25 March 2009.

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Director

financial statements.

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Hon-Hing Wong

Managing Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

The notes on pages 67 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_TT ) \F+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2008

(ABEE T Thz3R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

KARRRELER
Attributable to the Shareholders of the Company

DERR
k& ROEE HEitRE  REEA Bz Ema:
Share Share Other  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings interests equity
“EE\5-A-HEH Balance at 1 January 2008 500,176 984,286 1,014,002 7,970,839 2,311,970 12,781,273

AfHERF L ATERR

REEMRERTHEEESRE
MEBERER

HEAHHEES
RABMREHEDNER
EEHBEAE

TEERZATERR

63 GT ol
EERER

RTENEMBBERHE
EREEMN

RAHETEMBBERHE
EREARN

BERIMMELRRBRR
MEXZE

ERREHES2H (58 /A
AT
REBRN\EHR A () /WA
B EARRY
BURR S HTRALFRE
IR 8B B
HHNBRAZ RS

SNBETROER
HERARESERR
REBRE
“TTLERBRS
“ETN\ERHRE

“EENFt-A=t-REH

Fair value losses on

available-for-sale securities - - (1,283,752 - (350,310)  (1,584,062)
Investment revaluation reserve

transferred to income statement

upon impairment of

available-for-sale securities - - 257,486 - 74,583 332,069
Disposal of available-for-sale securities - - 1,751 - (4,632) 3,119
Deferred income tax assets recognised

on movements in investment

revaluation reserve - - 134,660 - 44,472 179,132
Fair value losses on revaluation of
premises - - (125,568) - (26,764) (152,332

Deferred income tax liabilities released
on movements in premises revaluation

reserve - - 37,454 - 12,511 49,965
Revaluation reserve transferred to retained

earnings for depreciation of premises - - (9,364) 9,364 - -
Revaluation reserve transferred to retained

earnings upon disposal of premises - - (3,636) 3,636 - -
Exchange differences arising on translation of

the financial statements of foreign entities - - 23,242 - 9,710 32,952

Net (loss)/income recognised
directly in equity = - (e11,727) 13,000  (240,430) (1,139,157)

Profit for the year - - - 106,193 47,424 153,617
Total recognised (expense)/income for 2008 - - (911,727) 119,193 (193,006)  (985,540)
Issue of ordinary shares 20,365 567,200 - - - 587,565
Additional net assets acquired via scrip

dividend arrangement - - 17,279 - 5,166 22,445
Subscription of additional interest in

a subsidiary via scrip dividend

arrangement at a premium - - (18,456) - (3,989) (22,445)
Payment of share issue expenses - (60) - - - (60)
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - (74,890) (74,890)
2007 final dividend - - - (193912 - (193,912)
2008 interim dividend - - - (176,984) - (176,984)

20,365 567,140 (177 (370,896) (73,713 141,719

Balance at 31 December 2008 520,541 1,551,426 101,098 7,719,136 2,045,251 11,937,452

BE+-A=t+-ALEE

Year ended 31 December
—BENE —TTLF
2008 2007

BERMMRERENAZ
BOR R HIRR

Proposed final dividend included
in retained earnings - 187,566

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued)

(LA T TAIIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
ARARRESES
Attributable to the Shareholders of the Company
DERT
kE  HRHEE HtRE REEA Bz Ema:
Share Share Other  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings interests equity
“ZTtE-A-HER Balance at 1 January 2007 500,176 984,286 1,043,495 7,516,785 2,364,803 12,409,545
MEHEES 2 ATERS Fair value losses on
available-for-sale securities - - (1,249,258) - (425,254)  (1,674,512)
REBHEERIHLERSHE Investment revaluation reserve transferred
ECEY e to income statement upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - 777,646 - 260,096 1,037,742
HEAMRNERS Disposal of available-for-sale securities - - (93,965) - (21,339 (115,304)
EmERFATEER Deferred income tax liabilities released
Rt E el on fair value losses and disposal of
LERFBAE available-for-sale securities - - 95,607 - 32,037 127,644
TEERz AT ERKE Fair value gains on revaluation of premises - - 440908 - 100215 541,123
TEERMERAZELHESE Deferred income tax liabilities recognised
on premises revaluation - - (36,802) - (12,309) (49,111)
BIfTEELR Restatement of premises revaluation - - 19,263 (19,269) - -
RIEMENEBEREE Revaluation reserve transferred to retained
ERERA earnings for depreciation of premises - - (10,824) 10,824 - -
BREBIHBEL AT BRE Exchange differences arising on translation
MERER of the financial statements of
foreign entities - - 27,932 - 7,313 35,245
EERANER OFEE Net loss recognised directly in equity - - (29,499) (8439)  (59,241)  (97,173)
ERRA Profit for the year - - - 1050200 175548 1,225,748
“ESLERAZAGE) S RA Total recognised (expense)/income for 2007 - - (29,493) 1,041,761 116,307 1,128,575
MEARRMELERRRERS Dividends paid to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - (169,140)  (169,140)
“EERERERE 2006 final dividend - - - (400,141) - (400,141)
“EELERERE 2007 interim dividend - - - (187,566) - (187,566)
- - - 87707 (169,140  (756,847)
ZERtETCA=T-HER Balance at 31 December 2007 500,176 984,286 1,014,002 7,970,839 2,311,970 12,781,273

67E £ 5226

e

w

BN AGE B HRRZ —

financial statements.

The notes on pages 67 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

%?:ggj\% T A=t+—BHLFE For the year ended 31 December 2008
(AT A5 ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

i —BEAE —FERLF

Note 2008 2007
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
L TRETAR S F5E Net cash from operating activities 52 (a) 3,160,003 3,954,557
RETBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
L g B 8 A A fE an Acquisition of interest in an associate (179,718) (703,339)
BETE REMER Purchase of premises, investment properties
H A [E] FE & 2 and other fixed assets (92,972) (107,455)
METE - REWEREAM Proceeds from disposal of premises,
EEEEMBHRIE investment properties and
other fixed assets 17,848 11,218
BEESMARE F5E Net cash used in investing activities (254,842) (799,576)
METBZ2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT RE Certificates of deposit issued 1,491,822 2,007,662
BEFRE Certificates of deposit redeemed (5,499,765) (2,049,334)
BITEBES Debt securities issued = 450,000
BITRERR Subordinated notes issued - 1,562,570
BATEERAR D Issue of share capital net of share
(FprEEITROHER) issue expenses 471,662 =
Bt 8 R Al A H D HUR R Dividends paid to minority
K 2 J% S, shareholders of subsidiaries (74,890) (169,140)
K 3% 3 38 AR AR S Dividends paid on ordinary shares (255,053) (587,707)
MEE (A MARLFE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (3,866,224) 1,214,051
fﬁ% FERBRSLIEH Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
W) R cash equivalents (961,063) 4,369,032
FYReRERRESIEHR Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 16,339,961 11,970,929
FARESRERRLSIEHR Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 52 (b) 15,378,898 16,339,961
FOTEEFE226E ZMFEI ARG E B wEK 2 — The notes on pages 67 to 226 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. General information

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide banking, insurance, financial
and other related services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s

Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing

Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 25 March 2009.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of properties
(including investment properties), available-for-sale financial assets, fair
value-hedged loans and receivables, financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities

(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

67



68

B 265 i A P i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

(@

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Amendments and interpretations to existing standards effective
in 2008

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
amendment on reclassification of financial assets permits
reclassification of certain financial assets out of the held-for-
trading and available-for-sale categories if specified conditions
are met. The related amendment to HKFRS 7 - Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, introduces disclosure requirements
with respect to financial assets reclassified out of the held-for-
trading and available-for-sale categories. The amendment is
effective prospectively from 1 July 2008. The Group has
reclassified certain financial assets out of the held-for-trading and
available-for-sale categories pursuant to this amendment. Details

are set out in Note 30.

HK(IFRIC) Int 11 - HKFRS 2 Group and treasury share
transactions, provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or involving group entities
(for example, options over a parent’s shares) should be accounted
for as equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment
transactions in the standalone accounts of the parent and group
companies. This interpretation does not have a significant impact

on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Interpretations to existing standards effective in 2008 but not

relevant to the Group’s operations

° HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 - HKAS 19 The Limit on a Defined Benefit

Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and Their Interaction.

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements.

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group

The Group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards that were issued
but not yet effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 January
2008:

° HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2009).

o HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs (effective from 1 January
2009).

° HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (effective from 1 July 2009).

° HKAS 32 (Amendment) —
HKAS 1 (Amendment) —

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on

Financial Instruments: Presentation and

Presentation of Financial Statements —

Liquidation (effective from 1 January 2009).

° HKFRS 2 (Amendment) —
January 2009).

Share-based Payment (effective from 1
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(A)
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MARER R AREB W EIRP P 2 2L (c)

RAEEZEFTR2E (B

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards

that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

MR EERIE3E (EF]) (KA 6 .
(B=ZZENFLA-BHELER -

BERMBRELERIFF(LEEXBDIR) .
(B=ZFTNF-HA—HELER -

72 (AR BHREREZEE)2ES13 .
F(EPHEHNBIHR) B_TTN\FLA
—BHRER) o

E/E:Elﬂ Efﬁ@ E/\\ ?

E T)\EF+ A E M .
FEM B REER 2 OE

(—) BBETELFE15% (B8] EIBHRE ©)
2 (AEThE—A—B#E4L
) e

() BEASHELFE165E (B:]) (WE - ©)
S MR (RBERH BB S ER]

FTFRRERBER) Z2EF
ZENFE A BHEER -

=]) (B=

(=) BAEESTEBIFE195R (B (BER ©)
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) e
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MRSt EE KRBT ENIEE) (8

“EENF-A-—HERER -
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) e
AKHFEeMmEBERA A

HK(IFRIC) —
(effective from 1 July 2008).

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations (effective from 1 July
2009).

HKFRS 8 Operating Segment (effective from 1 January 2009).

Int 13 — Customer Loyalty Programmes Statements

HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008

HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Presentation of Financial

Statements (effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 16 (Amendment) —
(and consequential amendment to HKAS 7 Statement of

Property, Plant and Equipment

Cash Flows) (effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 19 (Amendment) —
1 January 2009).

Employee Benefits (effective from

HKAS 20 (Amendment) —

Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance (effective

Accounting for Government

from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 23 (Amendment) —
January 2009).

Borrowing Costs (effective from 1

—ZENFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards

that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008
(Continued)

©6)

(12)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

HKAS 27 (Amendment) -
Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning

Consolidated and Separate

from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 28 (Amendment) —

consequential amendments to HKAS 32 - Financial

Investments in Associates (and

Instruments: Presentation and HKFRS 7 - Financial

Instruments: Disclosures (effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 31 (Amendment) — Interests in Joint Ventures (and
consequential amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7)
(effective from 1 January 2009).

HKAS 36 (Amendment) —
from 1 January 2009).

Impairment of Assets (effective

HKAS 38 (Amendment) —
1 January 2009).

Intangible Assets (effective from

HKAS 39 (Amendment) - Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (effective from 1 January
2009).

HKAS 40 (Amendment) — Investment Property (and
consequential amendments to HKAS 16) (effective from 1
January 2009).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008
(Continued)

(13) HKFRS 5 (Amendment) — Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations (and consequential
amendment to HKFRS 1, “First-time adoption”) (effective
from 1 July 2009).

(14) Other minor amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, HKAS 10 Events after the
Reporting Period, HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 34 Interim

Financial Reporting.

The adoption of the above amendments is not expected to have

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(d)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and not relevant to the Group’s

operations

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) — First Time Adoption of HKFRS and
HKAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2009).

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estates
(effective from 1 January 2009).
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Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards
that are not yet effective and not relevant to the Group’s

operations (Continued)

° HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 — Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation (effective from 1 October 2008).

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008

(1) HKAS 29 (Amendment) — Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies (effective from 1 January
2009).

(2) HKAS 41 (Amendment) — Agriculture (effective from 1
January 2009).

B3) Other minor amendments to HKAS 20 Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance, HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies, HKAS 40 Investment Property and HKAS 41
Agriculture.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group

controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in

the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less allowances for impairment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(b)  Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses to the
Group that are recorded in the income statement. Purchases from
minority interests could result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired

of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any

accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the

income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associate are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral

control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of the net

assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction

costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash

flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained a
part at the same effective interest rate for the other participants. Wealth
management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised

rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Financial assets
2.5.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition, except for subsequent reclassification

meeting specified definition of relevant asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it
is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with all

holding gains and loss recognised in the income statement.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit

or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases;
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial assets (Continued)

2.5.1 Classification (Continued)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such

as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for
trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale;
or (c) those for which the Group may not recover substantially all
of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.
Assets in this category are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For assets that are subject to fair value hedge
arrangements, the hedged elements of the assets hedged are

carried at fair value.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,

exchange rates or equity prices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 Financial assets (Continued)
2.5.1 Classification (Continued)

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. Assets in this category are carried at amortised cost

less any impairment loss.

2.5.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held for trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets
are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading category
only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual
and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition, the Group may
choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of
loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale
categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in
estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require adjustment

to the effective interest rates prospectively.

2.5.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks

and rewards of ownership.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 Financial assets (Continued)
2.5.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be recognised in the income statement.
However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when the

Group’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.
If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models refined to

reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

2.6 Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about the following loss

events:
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a

concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group
of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with

the individual financial assets in the group, including:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers

in the group; or

- national or local economic conditions that correlate

with defaults on the assets in the group.

The estimated period between a loss occurring and its

identification is determined by management for each identified

portfolio. In general, the periods used vary between 3 months

and 12 months; in exceptional cases, longer periods are

warranted.
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2.

2.6

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
that asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market

price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and

selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according

to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.
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2.

2.6

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis
of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of

conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status,
or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses
in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the

allowances for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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2.

2.6

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income

statement.

(c)  Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past

due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All

financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at

fair value.

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair

value are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through profit

or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel such as the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,
including the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives, are designated as such at inception or date of
transition to the new HKFRS. Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value and any
gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the

income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities

using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
balance sheet, and the difference between the carrying amount
of a liability and the consideration paid is included in net trading

income.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in
active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair

value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is
the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or

received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid

contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities.
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way

provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting

changes in fair values of hedged items.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss

over the period to maturity.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised

immediately in the income statement.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,

or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The counterparty liability in respect of securities sold subject to
repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to other
banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals, as
appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse
repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or
customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the
agreement’'s using the effective interest method. Securities lent to

counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The

obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the balance sheet with appropriate

amounts of impairment allowances made.

2.12 Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting policy, the
Group has determined that business segments be presented as the
primary reporting format and geographical segment information as the

secondary reporting format.

Business segments are distinguishable business divisions of the Group
that provide products and services to customer base or dealing with

the market that are different to those of other business segments.

Geographical segments are grouped by the location of the principal
operations of the subsidiaries or in the case of the subsidiary bank, of
the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results

including assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
business or geographical segments are reported directly under
respective segment, while revenue and funding cost arising from inter-
segment funding operation and funding resources are allocated to the
business segments by way of transfer pricing mechanism with reference
to market interest rates. Transactions within segments are priced based
on similar terms offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-

segment income or expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various business segments and products based on effort
and time spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on
the nature of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that
cannot be reasonably allocated to business segments, products and

support functions are grouped under unallocated items.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.13 Foreign currency translation

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the

functional currency of the major part of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income

statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investment in equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are

included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.13 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as

part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Leasehold properties comprising land and buildings held on which a
reliable estimate is not available on the split of the carrying value
attributable to each of the land and building elements are accounted
for as finance leases and shown at fair value, based on periodic, and at
least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged
against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are

expensed in the income statement.




B 265 i A P i

(AB®E T T3 7R)

2. EEGFEURME @)
2.14 F7 R Je HoAh [ 2 A ()

TEREMBEEEEZTERRAERATE - X
BTIMRZAERFROBEXNARERER
1A :

- f1E KR E & F 5
- B R W& ET LA 5
RN AE (—RERE+
FZE)

BOEREMBREESELRNRER K2
EERTEREAEZTENER  CHITEE
HRBEEREREANEAT -

A 2 T R RS P R 5
- LESBZERTELBE -

&8 A AT

WEEZEmESNREMGIREWEE @ BIZE
EZFEAESNEGREZEEATOKSEE (T
2.17) °

2.15 B &Y%

T%VEH&ZHX%HH%HiH&EY
SRYIFMEEET QA
BEWE °

HRE AR ERREF
PIKNPAE 38V

BREMFBRRELEHE
BHERAZET -

ERFA 2 L RIBIER

ERBLEEHEREZ TR ESREMEHRTE
FZIGM - ZELWBERAREMERBIE
TEREE - REMEEEFREHEETEE
# o

REMERNURAE(REEBERXSEM) 5t

=

= °

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.14 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Depreciation of premises and other fixed assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the remaining period of
lease

- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 5 and 10

years

The difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of premises charged to the income statement and depreciation
based on the premises’ original cost is transferred from premises

revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the

consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and

buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a

finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,

continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from

future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other fixed
assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous

impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit

from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or other
legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They include core
deposits, contracts and customer relationships intangible assets, and
trade names. Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation
based on estimated useful lives, and/or accumulated impairment

losses.

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

each reporting date.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is

recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit nor loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each
jurisdiction, is recognised as an expense in the period in which profits
arise. The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward
are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits

will be available against which these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is
also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant

investments.
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2.19

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by

the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to

vesting fully in the contributions.

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates a cash settled, share-based compensation
plan, which requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the
share option to a grantee at the date of exercise. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted. At each balance sheet
date, the Group will re-measure the fair value of the share options

and any change is recognised in the income statement.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

balance sheet date.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the balance sheet date are recognised when the Group has a
present or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be

made.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.20 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

2.21 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased
out are included in fixed assets in the balance sheet. They are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent
with similar owned fixed assets. Rental income (net of any
incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially retained all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included as liabilities. The investment properties

acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.21 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease (Continued)

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment

outstanding for each accounting period.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the

Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date
of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to cash and are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.25 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import

duties.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.25 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to

the income statement.

2.26 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control

of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.27 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk or both
insurance and financial risks. Contracts under which the Group retains
significant risk from another party by agreeing to compensate the
beneficiary on the occurrence of a specified uncertain future event (the
insured event) are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance contracts

may also transfer financial risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.27 Insurance contracts (Continued)

Insurance contracts are accounted for as follows:

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(i) Premiums

Premiums for long-term insurance business are recognised as
revenue when they become due. Premiums for general insurance
business are accounted for in the period in which the risk
commences. Unearned premium is provided and is calculated
on a time-apportioned basis as the proportion of the business
underwritten in the accounting year relating to the period of risk
after the balance sheet date. Reinsurance premiums are

accounted for on the same basis as gross premiums.

(i)  Commission expenses

Commission expenses for securing new contracts are charged
to the income statement on a basis consistent with premium
revenue recognition and are presented in the income statement

under “Net insurance claims and expenses”.

(i) Claims and benefits

Claims for general insurance business consist of paid claims and
movement in provisions for outstanding claims with related claims
handling expenses. For long-term insurance business, claims and
benefits are accounted for on notification of claims or when
benefits become payable. Liabilities to policyholders under long-
term insurance contracts are the amount recognised for future
claims and benefits of life insurance contracts as estimated by
appointed actuary in compliance with regulatory requirements.
Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for on the same basis as

the related claims or benefits.

(iv)  Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

The value of in-force long-term life assurance business is the
present value of expected future earnings to be generated from
in-force business, using appropriate assumptions. Movements
in the value of in-force long-term life assurance business are

reported as “Net insurance premium and other income”.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,

products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
under the authority delegated by the Board oversees and guides the
management of different risks which are more particularly managed
and dealt with by the Group Risk and different functional committees.
In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of

risk management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest

rate and other price risk.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group
seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term funds and
lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining sufficient

liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending
to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance and other

bonds.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currency, interest rate and commodity prices.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposure that can be
taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts

required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate term liabilities. Certain of these
financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms
of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value

hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties may
default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee and for each business
division a credit committee made up of certain Executive Directors and
senior credit officers and chaired by the Chief Executive. Each credit
committee has the responsibility for formulating and revising credit
policies and procedures for that division within the parameters of the
Group Risk Policy and regulatory framework. Credit policies and
procedures define the credit assessment and approval criteria and
guidelines, use of scoring, review and monitoring process and the

systems of loan classification and impairment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis, in
accordance with the credit approval and review policies, by evaluating
the credit-worthiness of different types of customers and counterparties
based on assessment of business, financial, market and industry risks
applicable to the types of loans, collateral and counterparty dealings
including dealing in or use of derivative financial instruments. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines. Credit exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly
monitored and controlled by management, credit committees and
Group Risk. The Group’s internal auditors conduct regular reviews and
audits to ensure compliance with credit policies and procedures and

regulatory guidelines.

The individual business’ credit policies also establish policies and
processes for the approval and review of new products and activities,
together with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes

and impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group reflects three components (i) the differentiation of credit
risk of the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; (ii)
current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future
development, from which the Group derive the “exposure at
default”; and (iii) the likely loss on the defaulted obligations after

considering recovery and collateral realisation.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(@ Loans and advances (Continued)

These credit risk measurements, which operate to control and
monitor credit performance of individual and pools of borrowers
through on-going credit review, loan classification, collection,
credit risk mitigation including realisation of collateral, and
provision of impairment on problem loans as required by the
Group’s credit policies and procedures, and regulatory guidelines,
are embedded in the Group’s daily operational management.
Based on the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance, the Group is also required to assess expected loss of
individual and portfolios of credits, and to set aside sufficient loan
loss reserve against any expected loss. The operational
measurements to also cover expected losses can be contrasted
with impairment allowances required under HKAS 39, which are
based on losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet
date (the “incurred loss model”) rather than expected loss (Note
3.2.3).

(i) The Group assesses the credit quality of individual
counterparties using internal rating tools tailored to the
various categories of counterparty. They have been
developed internally and combine general analysis and
judgements of credit officers, and are reviewed, where
appropriate, by comparison with externally available data.
Clients of the Group are segmented into three broad rating
classes. The Group’s rating scale, which is shown in Note
3.2.3, differentiates credit quality for each rating class. This
means that, in principle, exposures migrate between
classes as the assessment of credit quality and business
environment changes. The rating tools are kept under
review and upgraded as necessary. The Group regularly
reviews the performance of the rating and their predictive

power with regard to default events.

The Group uses both internal data and market information
(e.g. credit rating migration, credit scoring) for internal credit
risk assessment. Observed migration data per rating
category vary year on year, especially over an economic

cycle.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

(@ Loans and advances (Continued)

(i)  Exposure at default is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default. For example, for
a loan, exposure at default is the face value. For a
commitment, the Group includes any amount already drawn
plus the further amount that may have been drawn by the

time of default, should it occur.

(i)  Estimated credit loss or loss severity represents the Group’s
expectation of the event of loss on a claim should default
occur. It is based on actual loss experience and typically
varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim

and availability of collateral or other credit risk mitigation.

(b)  Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby
letters of credit — which represent irrevocable assurances that
the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot
meet its obligations to third parties — carry the same credit risk as
loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions — are
normally collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to
which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct

lending.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of

credit risk than shorter-term commitments.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external rating such as
Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents are used by Group
Risk for managing the credit risk exposures. The investments in
these securities and bills are made to gain a better credit quality,
to diversify risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain
a readily available source of funds to meet the funding and

liquidity requirement of the Group from time to time.

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps and
options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange and
equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for both
trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in using
derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by acting
as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to risks and
to generate revenues through trading activities within acceptable

limits.

(i) Derivatives held or issued for trading purposes

The Group transacts derivative contracts on behalf of
customers or to address customer demands in structuring
tailored derivatives. The Group also takes proprietary
positions for its own accounts. Trading derivative products
used by the Group are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives transacted based on interest rates, foreign

exchange rates, credit spread and equity prices.

(i) Derivatives held or issued for hedging purposes

Derivatives held for hedging purposes primarily consist of
derivative instruments or contracts used to manage interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk. All of these are over-

the-counter derivatives.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@

Derivatives (Continued)

The Group uses the following derivative instruments for both

hedging and trading purposes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase
foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered spot
transactions. Foreign currency and interest rate futures are
contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in currency rates or interest rates or to
buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a
future date at a specified price, established in an organised
financial market. The credit risk is negligible, as futures
contracts are collateralised by cash or marketable
securities, and changes in the futures contract value are

settled daily with the exchange.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result
in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates
(for example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination
of all these (i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). No
exchange of principal takes place, except for certain
currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk represents the
potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current
fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level
of credit risk taken, the Group assesses counterparties

using the same techniques as for its lending activities.

Foreign currency and interest rate options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the
purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or
during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign currency
or a financial instrument at a predetermined price. The seller
receives a premium from the purchaser in consideration for
the assumption of foreign exchange or interest rate risk.
Options may be either exchange-traded or negotiated
between the Group and a customer. The Group is exposed
to credit risk on purchased options only, and only to the

extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group may be exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not receiving
the expected cash value of a derivative transaction or upon the

expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure
to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and credit market conditions. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments
on hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or
unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative
financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time

to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the amount
subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to

express the volume of instruments outstanding.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages, controls and limits concentrations of credit risk
wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual counterparties

and groups, and to industries and countries.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing
limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or
groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such
risks are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual or
more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level
of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved

by relevant credit committees and Group Risk.

The exposure to any one borrower or counterparty including banks and
brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off- balance
sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items
such as forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against

limits are monitored daily.

Exposures to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of
the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by regular review and revision of

these limits where appropriate.

To avoid concentration of risk, large exposures to individual customers
or related groups are limited to a percentage of the capital base, and
exposures to industry sectors and countries/regions are managed

within approved limits to achieve a balanced portfolio.

(@) Loans and advances

In order to mitigate the credit risk and where appropriate, the
Group will obtain collateral to support the credit facility. To control
credit risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative
positions, the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved
financial institutions, and uses established market practices on
credit support and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk
exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for
each financial institution counterparty, including valuation limit
for derivatives, is approved by the Group Credit Committee with
reference to the financial strength and credit rating of each
counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are

the respective margins of finance.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(@ Loans and advances (Continued)

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile,

cashflow position and ability to repay.

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security
for funds advanced, which is a common practice. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types

for loans and advances are:
° Mortgages over residential properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory

and accounts receivable; and

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities

and equities.

Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are
generally secured; revolving individual credit facilities are
generally unsecured. In addition, in order to minimise credit loss,
the Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual

loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,

which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

(c) Derivatives

Since all counterparties for derivatives trading are financial
institutions, the risk is managed as part of the credit risk control
and monitoring process in respect of financial institutions
including credit controls such as setting individual limit for
valuation risk, daily settlement limits and performing periodic
credit assessment for each counterparty. Moreover, the Group
requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)
Agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice of
close-out arrangement in the event of default, settlement

procedure, valuation/pricing methods.

Collateral or other security is not usually obtained for credit risk
exposures on these instruments, except where the Group requires

margin deposits from counterparties.

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset
of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as transactions are usually
settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated with
favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement
to the extent that if an event of default occurs, all amounts with

the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.

The Group’s overall exposure to credit risk on derivative
instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change
substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each

transaction subject to the arrangement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating system described in Note 3.2.1 focuses more on
credit-quality assessment from the inception of the lending and
investment activities. In contrast, impairment allowances are recognised
for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred
at the balance sheet date based on objective evidence of impairment
(see Note 2.6). Due to the different approaches applied, the amount of
incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements may be
different from the amount determined from other loss estimation
approach that is used for internal operational management and banking

regulation purposes.

The impairment allowance shown in the balance sheet at year-end is
derived from each of the three broad internal rating grades. However,
the majority of the impairment allowance comes from the bottom two
gradings. The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-
balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowance covering on- and off- balance sheet amounts for

each of these broad internal rating categories.

—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
WAEE B
IHE R 15 ERERTE
Bokt Aot
BEFKREBFH Impairment =K #EFX  Impairment
Loans allowance Loans allowance
and as a % of and as a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
5 Group % % % %
£ Grades
1—mE 1 - satisfactory 97.1 0.3 98.3 0.2
2— R E 2 — special mention 1.0 8.1 1.1 6.0
3— IRARSLAT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.9 54.0 0.6 47.6
100.0 100.0

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,

the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows.

Grade 1 “satisfactory”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current
in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest

and principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the

Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Grade 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13 of the
Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in which
borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely to
jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account
the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that are considered

uncollectible after all collection options have been exhausted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether
objective evidence of impairment exists under HKAS 39, which is based

on the following criteria set out by the Group:
° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to

debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
° Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and

o Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above materiality thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred loss at balance sheet date on a case-by-case basis, and are
applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally
encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its
enforceability) and the anticipated receipts and liquidating collaterals

for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet
been identified, by using the available historical experience,

experienced judgement and statistical techniques.
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(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.4 Rt AN F#H Z HA7 fh s H b 15 1 1257 3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
Bl Z 5 1 B0 g 1 credit enhancements
—EENE _—TTLHF
3 Group 2008 2007
EHREEBBRANEEZEERBRAENT : Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:

e RERITH R Cash and balances with banks 12,808,527 11,868,465
ERITHF R Placements with banks 1,656,950 1,919,342
HIEEERAERES Trading securities 2,303,141 4,668,816
NAFEGFEEEZEFHTABS Financial assets at fair value through

MNEREE profit or loss 4,258,874 2,570,875
PTESHBMTEA Derivative financial instruments 1,122,486 758,047
BEREERRBR Loans and advances to customers

BAER Loans to individuals

—fEHAFR — Credit cards 3,482,972 3,395,440

—RB\ER - Mortgages 18,526,215 18,476,883

— H A — Others 3,802,967 3,988,516

PEER Loans to corporate entities

—BHEXR - Term loans 10,205,960 10,066,194

—RBER - Mortgages 8,496,416 8,629,646

—E5ME - Trade finance 4,638,482 5,615,014

— E A — Others 11,846,061 11,122,938
RITERRER Loans and advances to banks 179,226 160,426
H b & 7= Other assets 3,283,472 5,056,044
BREEERR Investments in securities

JE W SR IE B included in the loans and

ZBEEE receivables category 6,896,646 -
AHEEES Available-for-sale securities

—BES - debt securities 14,115,446 25,069,939
FEDHES Held-to-maturity securities 6,384,931 4,500,725

114,008,772 117,867,310

EHEEBREBERINEE Credit risk exposures relating to

ZEERBENT off-balance sheet items are as follows:
WEEREEMEER Financial guarantees and other

SAREE credit related contingent liabilities 1,075,576 1,578,407
B RERHE R B Loan commitments and other credit

EE&E related commitments 36,535,397 35,962,962

37,610,973 37,541,369

+=A=+—8 At 31 December 151,619,745 155,408,679
ERIWNAAEER=ZZEZENERZZETLF+= The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk
R=+—HBE—EREBEATHAIRERTR - Z A exposure to the Group at 31 December 2008 and 2007, without taking
RRAFTAFA BRI EMEERARZE into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
Rk - attached.
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(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Rt AN F#H Z HA7 fh s H b 15 1 1257 3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
Bl Z 5% 1 5 B B 1 (#) credit enhancements (Continued)

AEEZEERBEAZZE T35 prifEE The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

& with reference to the following:

. BERRBREEFI%H D IBAENTTHRR . 3% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top
GHERZ=BHERRN(ZZEELF three grades of the internal rating system (2007: 5%).

5%)

. HEFZHRADBE2RBERTIBEER @ . Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
ZIEE portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. B KRBT E R 95% 4 4 i H K 42 1 7| . 95% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
WE(ZEZEEFE  95%) neither past due nor individually impaired (2007: 95%)

. AR AEREZEPERRBREEF . Loans and advances to customers that are either individually or
ERNRBRBEN1.7% (: T F collectively impaired constituted 1.7% (2007: 0.46%) of the total
0.46%) : RITEFNR_ZTZENF+_A= loans and advances to customers. No advances to banks were
+— EIIEDZ@( giti D) )SZ impaired as at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil); and

o ERBSFNHEMESFIREDERIBO63% (— e More than 63% (2007: 65%) of the investments in debt securities
TLF : 65%) DEAEERT - and other bills have at least A- credit rating.

3.2.5 Bk KBk 3.2.5 Loans and advances

ERRBZBMAT Loans and advances are summarised as follows:

—BENE ZETLF
2008 2007
EFER RITEN BEFER RITER
kB KRB R E#R RE#R
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and

advances to advancesto advancesto  advances to

£ Group customers banks customers banks
e B N A RRUE Neither past due nor individually

impaired 57,882,997 179,226 58,415,480 160,426
0 EAE R (& B R E Past due but not individually impaired 2,102,897 - 2,626,217 =
(EDINCRES Individually impaired 1,013,179 - 252,934 -
BE Gross 60,999,073 179,226 61,294,631 160,426
B REEE Less: allowance for impairment (849,554) - (359,557) =
FRE Net 60,149,519 179,226 60,935,074 160,426
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Bk K #Hak () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
—EBEENE —ZTTLF
BEFER BFEEX
k&R EE
2008 2007
Loans and Loans and
advances to  advances to
= Group customers customers
BEERRBK Impaired loans and advances
—ERIRE GEF) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 1,013,179 252,934
— kG REGED) — Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 23,571 26,295
1,036,750 279,229

Ve RIERE Impairment allowances made
— &R GER) - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (550,909) (142,589)
— A FE GEL) — Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (22,367) (25,740)

(573,276) (168,329)

463,474 110,900
REEARARA Fair value of collaterals held* 463,556 105,043
TEE R KRB Impaired loans and advances

HEFERK as a % of total loans and
AFBEADLL advances to customers 1.70% 0.46%

* ER@A

FEDBREERDHEREFRREERS
7% MERREEEE °

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

*

collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market value of
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3. AR B B ()
3.2 fEEmEbE @)
3.2.5 Bk KBk (4)

i

H. ERREERDZEEMGERREEREET
— S taEEREN TR ERFEE ([1B
REMDWEFR - MBREFEEZERZ AT
ARBREREERTE @ WA EMMESE -

L. HBEREERRBTIEZFNGSEEERERT
HREER RN 2HACBHREEBENLTX
ZERRER o ZER L 25 REERGS
BT BB R AR EE ) — 2B o

A. UEEREEFEEEEERERRN T A=+
—HEZEMRREE -

BRI 2R 2 R (B % 1 42 58 /5 849,554,000/% 7T
(ZZZ £ & : 359,557,000/87T) * B LHE B
EE 2 % 1#550,909,0008 L (— T T+ 4F :
142,589,000/ 7T) & ¥ iz4r & EE HNER Z
47 A % {5 298,645,000 7T (= T T + F
216,968,000/ 7T) ° MizT26REEZEF  R1T
BREBRZBEEFEER

HE_ZTN\F+_A=1+—HILFE ~*5E
ZERRBREETER0.5% ° BAKEEANT
BRBEREMEGXDETRAERDRE - A%
BEEBRRMEFILAITABENEEN G - F6
RAtEF EERE - BETREFEERENER
REHzHBEREERH - RBADBEEINEER
B FIREN - AEBHEBEETAERER R
HEEMRZARARLENHRT  AAKRELE
EEREBRR BRI 2 EfmiEEA R K
REHEETFZL iz N EE  RRETER
F2WA - B FEFD  REZERZMS
RIERBRAFFZEERE - REAEMMEE
REETEERR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

Note:

(@) Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be reliably
estimated.

(b) Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date. The
collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a part
of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

(c) The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$849,554,000 (2007: HK$359,557,000), comprising an allowance of
HK$550,909,000 (2007: HK$142,589,000) for the individually impaired
loans and a collective allowance of HK$298,645,000 (2007:
HK$216,968,000) provided on loans assessed on a collective basis.
Further information on the impairment allowance for loans and

advances to customers and to banks is provided in Note 26.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group’s total loans and
advances decreased by 0.5%. When entering into new markets or
expanding business focus or allocation to different loan segments, the
Group undertakes proper risk assessment in accordance with credit
policies and procedures, review and approval of new risk limits, financial
and credit reviews with an emphasis on proper risk and return balance.
In order to minimise the potential increase of credit risk exposure, the
Group focussed more on the business with large corporate enterprises
or banks with good credit rating, extending credit to a diversified pool
of small-and-medium sized enterprises approved with proper
consideration of their risk profiles and collateral pledged to the Group,
and granting secured and unsecured credit to retail customers based
on customers’ income, occupation, credit scoring, collateral to be

pledged, and credit limit allowed for different loan types.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

impaired

Loans and advances neither past due nor individually

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were

neither past due nor individually impaired is normally assessed

with reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

EFEHR

BREE ROER

BA(BEEF) i 3 Total loans R BHEHE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans

£8 ik E5RE advances and

“EENE Group Credit ZBEX Hfh RRER Trade Hfh to advances

+ZA=t+-H At 31 December 2008 cards Mortgages Others Mortgages finance Others customers  to banks

& Grades:

1-hE 1 - satisfactory 3,414,884 18,184,315  3.681.508 8213246 4,247,311 9,867,871 57,717,347 179,226

2-RAIEE 2 - special mention - - - 21,265 14,206 96,897 145,965 -
3-RAFHNT 3 - sub-standard or

below 130 3,899 - 5,735 1,700 8,221 19,685 -

ait Total 3,415,014 18,188,214 3,681,508 8,246,246 4263217 9,972,989 57,882,997 179,226

EFEHR

BREE ROER

EA(BEEF) it Total loans RBHAE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans

£E ik E5pE advances and

“BRLE Group Credit ZBER Efh RBER Trade Hft to  advances

TZB=1-H At 31 December 2007 cards Mortgages Others Mortgages finance Others customers  to banks

R Grades:

1-WE 1 - satisfactory 3,287,391 17975904 3,871,380 8,156,057  5440,996 9,484,983 58,279,890 160,426

2-FAEE 2 - special mention - - - 18,419 12,515 60,612 91,546 -
3-RAFHNT 3 - sub-standard or

below 61 264 - 40,064 442 3,213 44,044 -

ait Total 3,287,452 17,976,168 3,871,380 8214540 5453953 9,548,808 58,415,480 160,426

ERBEHIATER 2 RBEREEEBEE
Hon 2 MU EREFERREE

Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were

assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the

values and recovery of collaterals.

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk K #Hak () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) BEIERBE.Z B R EH (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EFERR
BA(BEEF) % BHME
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
RS ESRE and
£ ] Group Credit  REBER At REBER Trade Hf advances to
“EEN\Et-B=1-H At 31 December 2008 cards  Mortgages Others  Mortgages finance Others  customers
BH-EARUT Past due up to 1 month 39,412 267,641 84,567 173,333 89,694 943,790 1,508,437
BH-HANLE=RA Past due more than 1 month and
up to 3 months 17,012 49,631 22,464 19,489 17,125 332,676 458,397
BH=HANLEAEA Past due more than 3 months and
up to 6 months 9,226 1,305 7,57 2,257 5,059 9,874 35,292
BEAEANE Past due more than 6 months 2,307 - 1,085 - - 7,379 10,771
Rt Total 67,957 318,577 115,687 195,079 111,878 1,203,719 2,102,897
BERARIATE Fair value of collaterals* - 317,972 3919 193,049 6,983 1,081,955 1,603,878
EFERR
BA(BEEF) % BHAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
BRF EaRE and
&8 Group Credit  RIBEH Efh  EBER Trade Eft advances to
“22tEtZA=1-H At 31 December 2007 cards  Mortgages Others  Mortgages finance Others  customers
AE-FEAIMUT Past due up to 1 month 63,726 405,033 88,722 369,861 88,123 1,262,024 2,217,489
BE-EANLZE=MRA Past due more than 1 month and
up to 3 months 25,779 71,718 15,304 9,39 4,209 145,569 271,973
AH=EANLENEA Past due more than 3 months and
up to 6 months 17,167 991 4,635 - 1,582 5,002 29,377
AENERNE Past due more than 6 months 1,316 3,239 3,178 18,756 2,497 18,392 47,378
H) Total 107,988 480,981 111,839 398,011 96,411 1,430,987 2,626,217
BABAm ATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 480,224 230 394,940 723 949753 1,825,870

. ERBz A FEDREERATERER
REEERR MEPREEME -

AR E R R BRE

TKBEFEBEREE
AME - BERHIM - &
ERIFEREERAM

B mzrFE
BRRAZGET
REETDRENS
B

value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of

collateral is based on valuation techniques commonly used for

the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value

is updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar

assets.

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk Rk Bk (4) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1E 55 B 2 5P B R #51 (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired
AREERGT AR B R 2 IR ERATZ The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
ERRERF ER&R#HA1,013,179,000 the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
BT (ZEZ L F : 252,934,000 T) © collateral held is HK$1,013,179,000 (2007: HK$252,934,000).
ERREER KRB BEERANEE T The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
VEIE(R 2 MR BRI 38 A R IR EE B 2 AT 40 and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
T collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
HEER
BA(BEEF) ¥ - AR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5RE allowances
£m Group BBER B EHER  ERER Trade At A3 -individual
“EENE+ZA=T-H  At31December 2008 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ARIREER Individually impaired loans 19,425 5,772 86,787 55,091 263,387 582,717 1,013,179 550,909
RERBRZATE Fair value of collaterals® 15,463 762 16,178 35,388 63,210 332,055 463,556
WEERE
BA(BEEF) i 3 - ARG
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
EoRE allowances
&8 Group RREX Ht  HFHER  REEX Trade B &3 - individual
ZEELEFZA=T-H  At31 December 2007 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
[ERREER Individually impaired loans 19,734 5,097 3,015 17,005 64,650 143,143 252,934 142,589
HEERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals® 16,583 1,393 2,887 12,245 10,420 61,515 105,043
* R AFEDBEREERRTERER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market
REBHERR  MEFBRIEEME ° value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

—EENE 2R LF
2008 2007
B R EE BEIREE
BRAE EReEs
Gross L4 %8 Gross H 4858
amount of Bob amount of ERase
overdue % of overdue % of
£H Group loans total loans total
REERFER Gross advances to customers
4@EE - @ H which have been overdue for:
— =AM EZERIEA - six months or less but
over three months 203,430 0.33 87,239 0.14
—~NEAREE—F — one year or less but
over six months 143,438 0.23 81,789 0.14
——F Lk — over one year 131,592 0.22 105,627 0.17
478,460 0.78 274,655 0.45

(i) BHREEERRBRZBEERR
Bt 30 (B

(i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances against
overdue loans and advances
ERRER Efm AEER
REEHE BhfE ER R ERR HiEE - AR
Outstanding Current FIAEDH REREDG EREEER Impairment

amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other allowances
8 Group loans and valueof  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual
ZBEN\FTZAZ+-H At 31 December 2008 advances  collateral  collateral  collateral  mitigation assessment
AHAREEFERRBR Overdue loans and advances

to customers

478,460 202,978 141,593 336,867 - 305,217

ERRER ERm REER
KEBUE B BRE AR HtGE - @R
Outstanding Current  FIRENG REREHH BRHELEE Impairment
amount of market Covered  Uncovered Other allowances

£@ Group loans and value of  portionby  portionby  creditrisk - individual
ZEEtETZAZT-H At 31 December 2007 advances  collateral  collateral  collateral  mitigation assessment
BAREREPERREH Overdue loans and advances

to customers

FRFERmEI2LAAE AW FERRY
E

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

274,655 177,869 122,297 162,358 = 113,852

Collateral held mainly represented cash, pledged deposits and

properties.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Bk K #Hak () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(%) #mEHEZ (BHIGEEREH=1E (e) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
AUEREZEENZ 25E) advances overdue for more than 3 months

G #858 gk
—EENF Aotk —ZEELF Bkt
&5 Group 2008 % of total 2007 % of total
EFPER Advances to customers 294,506 0.48 66,121 0.11

BB Impairment allowances 18,504 591

3.2.6 WL IE1 fG 1 4
REREFAZWEEFRROT ¢

3.2.6 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

—RRNE -TTLA

] Group 2008 2007
BEMHE Nature of assets

Uy [B] ) % Repossessed properties 53,075 7,517

H A, Others 26,090 21,125

79,165 28,642

W EHEHR RIRATEARREE - BWREIER N Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the

WMIEREEET

proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.7 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency

designation at 31 December 2008.

AHHE  BEIH REN

BEEE RE RE AQV{EHE EAR

BREE  Available- Held-to- Designated  EWFIE
£E Group Trading for-sale maturity atfair  Loans and Bt
ZEE\ETZAZ1-H At 31 December 2008 assets investments investments value receivables Total
AAA AAA - 410,039 93,831 1,849,300 - 2,353,170
AA-ZAA+ AA- to AA+ 1,844,721 2,297,849 245,154 682,042 103,097 5,172,863
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 289,166 5,927,231 3,712,244 619,011 2,987,195 13,534,847
Bt REERA- Rated but lower than A- 71,076 4,653,048 2,333,702 409,863 3,806,354 11,274,043
REAR Unrated 4,279 827,279 - 48,630 = 880,188
& Total 2,200,242 14115446 6,384,931 3,608,846 6,306,646 33,215,111

THEE  KEIY REN

BEEE RE R& ATV{EHE EAR

BBEE  Available- Held-to- Designated WA
&M Group Trading for-sale maturity atfair  Loans and &t
ZEELETZAZT-H At 31 December 2007 assets investments investments value receivables Total
AAA AAA 13,898 - 16,272 873,518 - 903,688
AA-ZAA+ AA- to AA+ 2,459,547 4,558,428 782,627 1,351,698 - 9,152,300
A-Z2A+ A- to A+ 366,097 10,424,640 2,622,466 85,070 - 13,498,273
B RBERA Rated but lower than A- 154,038 7,804,030 1,079,360 94,586 - 9,132,014
ABER Unrated 1511 2,282,841 - - - 2284352
Azt Total 2995091 25,069,939 4,500,725 2,404,872 - 34970627

FRALEAREBEEF (CFTTLF  E) -

RZZEZEELFE+_A=+—H A& E
1,560,000,0007% 7T 2 & 75 55 75 15 e 58 7 (& Bl
B WEEHERSET% ZMEERE - HEFR
B E - AR A&7 A% E7%1,030,000,00075 7T
ZRERZZEZNFAREERFTEIEREAR
FEGA=EEHEZHGTABENEMEE @« WiKY
1A HEREF 2 A F (264,000,000 T ABE ° EERE
O 2B -

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

There were no overdue debt securities in the year (2007: Nil).

As at 31 December 2007, debt securities with a principal value of
HK$1,560 million were identified as individually impaired and
impairment provisions amounting to 67% of the principal value had
been made. During 2008, a major portion of these impaired investments
with a principal value of HK$1,030 million was restructured and was
held as financial asset designated at fair value through profit or loss at
a fair value of HK$264 million on initial recognition. The remaining

balance was fully written off.
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3.2

3.2.8

S 25 o e L ()
i BB (20

FH A 1 B0 I e 2 < 4 2 J B
Vidis

(FF) =13

BEFERZBEASNHREEEERRE
Bl BHEMERIE - —RME -
SERNBERIEREXSHFTAZE
- ER GRS .

R-ZZEENE+-_A=1+—08 ' BEXA
FriEth z RIEES T - AEBEFPER
4RFEREBR0% (B IR A 2 REE R kE
HEFPER) BN HEERBET (LLIEHHE
“EELFEFZA=+—RHIER) -

TRAEREBEZRTHBARBEBERR
BR - BHERERERITHERMERZ
EIREREN T

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@ Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is
different from that of the counterparty.

At 31 December 2008, over 90% of the Group’s advances to
customers, including related impaired advances and overdue
advances, categorised on the basis of the geographical location
of the borrower were classified under Hong Kong (a position
unchanged from that as at 31 December 2007).

The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the
banking subsidiaries of the Group in relation to loans and
advances, investments in securities, and balances and
placements with banks.

RITRHEM
SRS
Banks DNERE
—EENF and other Public
+=A=+—H As at 31 Dec 2008 financial sector Hith Met
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAR  TEEBBEAN  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,415 240 9,761 19,416
EERE*E North and South America 602 - 3,051 3,653
B Europe 13,628 - 2,761 16,389
23,645 240 15,573 39,458
RITRHEM
SRS
Banks NEKE
—EZTLF and other Public
+=A=+-—H As at 31 Dec 2007 financial sector Hit et
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DRE TEESBEAN  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 10,510 252 10,080 20,842
EEREE North and South America 966 = 2,684 3,650
M Europe 13,648 - 3,574 17,222
25,124 252 16,338 41,714

bESEREAEEREARNER
& - IRIER 5 BT 00 BT A2 o 1 4% B B2 %141
WX ZHFREMANER - —RME
ERSGHFNEEEHETNRBRN S —
TR KETEER —FERITHNEND
7 MEABEERTRMNER - 1 &
RERH-—BERERES —BHXR - K
BEREIARNEEIREREEEE10% A X
WlE A R

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

The above information of cross-border claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk
lies, and is derived according to the location of the counterparties
after taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, transfer
of risk from one country to another is recognised if the claims
against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in a
different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in a different country. Only
regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border
claims are disclosed.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
(Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans:

—BBNFE —TTLF

&= Group 2008 2007
EBRABFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEsRt Industrial, commercial and financial
e/ EX - Property development 448,282 389,293
—MEILE — Property investment 10,102,405 9,523,416
— SR — Financial concerns 373,243 528,728
—REL&L — Stockbrokers 9,707 55,432
—HBETEE — Wholesale and retail trade 1,187,833 1,204,904
—BUER - Manufacturing 885,724 1,277,385
— B KB EH R — Transport and transport equipment 4,241,249 3,755,326
—REED) - Recreational activities 23,507 58,083
— BB — Information technology 418 2,214
— H A — Others 2,140,815 1,671,503
19,413,183 18,466,284
(PN Individuals
—-BEIEEBAHEEE - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FLAZZE R Home Ownership Scheme, Private
k[HEEEEEZ Sector Participation Scheme
BFER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,625,129 1,776,573
—BEEMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,715,925 11,330,250
—ERARER - Credit card advances 3,371,802 3,311,174
—HAh - Others 6,513,226 6,195,711
22,226,082 22,613,708
EEBEHANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 41,639,265 41,079,992
BomE Trade finance 4,457,618 5,393,581

ERABAIMERMER (FE)

it EEBMERANEREERTEERR
BEBBAIMERZ TR

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note) 14,902,190 14,821,058

60,999,073 61,294,631

Note: Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, Executive
Committee (“EXCO”), Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCQ”), and Treasury Risk Committee (“TRC”). Risk limits are set by
products and by different risk types. Limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. Risk
Management and Control Department (“‘RMCD?”) in Group Risk Division,
as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific action to ensure the overall and the individual
market risks are managed within an acceptable level. Any exceptions
have to be reviewed and sanctioned by the appropriate level of
management of TRC or by EXCO.

The launch of every new product is governed by the New Product
Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy in which the
relevant business units, supporting functions and Group Risk review
the critical requirements, risk assessment and resources plan. The
Group’s Internal Audit function performs regular independent review
and testing to ensure compliance with the market risk policies and

procedures by Treasury, RMCD and other relevant units.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”) which are subsidiaries of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”), run their treasury functions locally under their own set of limits
and policies and within the overall market risk limits set by DSB. RMCD
of DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operation of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures

in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

As part of the management of market risk, the Group undertakes
various hedging strategies. The Group enters into interest rate
swaps to match the interest rate risk associated with the fixed-
rate long-term debt securities. The major measurement
techniques used to measure and control market risk are outlined

below.
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a “value at risk” methodology (“VaR”) to
its trading portfolio to estimate the market risk positions
held and the maximum losses expected, based on a
number of assumptions for various changes in market
conditions. The Board sets limits on the value at risk that
are acceptable for the Group which are monitored on a daily
basis by Group Risk.

VaR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on
the current portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses the “maximum” amount the Group might lose,
but only to a certain level of confidence which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. The VaR model assumes a
certain “holding period” until positions can be closed. It is
also based on the current mark-to-market value of the
positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of the
market risk factors over a period of 250 days (or over one
year). The Group applies these historical correlation and
volatilities in rates, prices, indices, etc. directly to its current
positions using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to
test the validity of the assumptions and parameters/factors

used in the VaR calculation.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
(@)  Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside

of these limits in the event of more significant market

movements.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board annually for all trading portfolio operations
and allocated to business units. Actual exposures against
limits, together with DSB’s VaR, is reviewed daily by Group
Risk. Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading
activities during the year was HK$5,148,000 (2007:

HK$4,312,000).

The quality of the VaR model is continuously monitored by
back-testing the VaR results for trading books. All back-

testing exceptions are investigated, and all back-testing

results are reported to senior management.

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by Group Risk include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and ad hoc stress testing, which includes

applying possible stress events to specific positions or

regions.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior
management in each business unit and by the Board of

Directors. The stress testing is tailored to the business and

typically uses scenario analysis.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

BE-BE\Et-A=1-H BHE-ZZLE+-R=1-H
t+=fiA IE+=f8A
12 months to 31 Dec 2008 12 months to 31 Dec 2007

¥4 & RiE 1 &= &{&
£H Group Average High Low Average High Low
SNER Foreign exchange risk 2,769 5,353 670 1,383 3,550 506
=R R Interest rate risk 3,858 1,114 1,727 3,538 8,981 1,308
RERR Equities risk - - - 21 624 -
EERR Credit risk 260 1,117 - 343 766 125
2HER Al risks 5,148 9,181 2,700 4,312 10,507 1,758

3.3.2 I H $BRATHR Z 1l 53 ), B

REEZFTET  THERESRAREEE
SRERUEEE TSR -

() M5 R R ET %

EEExe TRZEeRMERREZES
RIYZEARERERREERS  RETH
FNERETEREER  HURTEEE
HAKERITRTEBINERR - FXE
ehRBECRBREIREE ZAR - K
SEETHETHEEABRARINGAS
ZHERBEMERMRDHEECRER —
BmisEBER N8BS 2 RIEE D & E
DR LHEEETHEERUGER
BRFERARNEBRITRA 2 W5 ER

N 5 (53R B I SRR R T 35 R B BU(EDA PAGT
ERERBITRP ZTHERR
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3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board, EXCO and TRC, various management action
triggers (“MATs”) are established to provide early alert to
management on the different levels of exposures of the Group’s
banking book activities to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
and liquidity risk. Sensitivity analysis and stress testing covering
shocks and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on- and off-
balance sheet positions, liquidity drift under institution-specific
and general market crisis scenarios are regularly performed to
gauge and forecast the market risk inherent in the Group’s

banking book portfolios against these MATs.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and

control the market risk of the banking book.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

The following descriptions on sensitivity analysis relate to DSB
and BCM.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD and MOP) as foreign exchange positions
and foreign currency balances arising from customer
transactions are normally matched against other customer
transactions or transactions with the market. The net
exposure positions, both by individual currency and in
aggregate, are managed by the Treasury of the Group on a

daily basis within established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, is normally

matched using foreign exchange forward contracts to

R-ZZENFE+=-B=+—8 -
BHMEERFTEMBITHETR
B1% @ NFE 2R ELE R T 1535 N
9,193,000 C (ZZ T4 : 1N
11,730,000/ L) * EEXERBRE
ETEERZINERG BZHRE
T A ER ZINEEISATIEHE

TR - f# FT7A E fh B BR B T2
BITEETHEI%  NEE R
&35 A #554°9,193,000/8 0 (Z 2=
+4F : JF 411,730,000 7T) °

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2008, if HK$ had weakened by 1% against
US$ with all other variable held constant, the profit after
taxation for the year would have been HK$9,193,000 higher
(2007: HK$11,730,000 higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gain on translation of US$ denominated financial
assets compensated by foreign exchange losses on

translation of US$ denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 1% against US$
with all other variables held constant, profit after tax for the
year would have been HK$9,193,000 lower (2007:

HK$11,730,000 lower).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

(i

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate
risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair
value and cash flow risks. Interest margins and net interest
income may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements arise.
The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored
daily by RMCD.

At 31 December 2008, if HK$ market interest rates had been
200 basis points higher and US$ market interest rates had
been 200 basis points higher with other variables held
constant, profit after tax over the next 12 months and
economic value would have been HK$91 million lower
(2007: HK$71 million lower) and HK$159 million lower
(2007: HK$192 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange and interest rate risk are on the
same basis for both 2007 and 2008.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the

Group’s investments in debt securities are also exposed to other

price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments could

change significantly depending on a variety of factors including

liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect

individual or portfolios of exposures.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

TRMIAEBRGE,E D RABEEETIHZ The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

EREERAGESR -

translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by currency.

58 Group BT E ik Hity &t
—EEN\F+=-A=1+-H As at 31 December 2008 HKD usD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
Be RERTMER Cash and balances with banks 3,832,678 5,611,154 250,412 3,114,283 12,808,527
ERT—ETZHEAA Placements with banks maturing

B HMER between one and twelve months 84,500 1,267,193 - 305257 1,656,950
BEEERENES Trading securities 1,839,662 418,783 - 44,696 2,303,141
NWATEGEEHEE Financial assets at fair value through

FAERREREE profit or loss 538,073 3,712,673 - 8,128 4,258,874
fTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 412,774 701,727 - 7,985 1,122,486
EEHERKEMER Advances and other accounts 55,118,393 9,314,225 1,844,626 4,231,619 70,508,863
At EE S Available-for-sale securities 1,826,308 10,762,226 2,573 2,133,088 14,724,195
BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 457,172 3,111,682 1,135,177 1,680,900 6,384,931
SREERT Total financial assets 64,109,560 34,899,663 3,232,788 11,525,956 113,767,967
& Liabilities
RITEH Deposits from banks 102,864 2,165,574 65,620 109,536 2,443,594
fTHEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 458,596 1,648,026 - 161,533 2,268,155
FEEEREMAR Trading liabilities 1,791,419 - - - 1,791,419
EENATEFEEEE Deposits from customers designated at fair

FABRNEFER value through profit or loss 462,618 8,447 - - 471,065
RERER Deposits from customers 53,580,739 13,884,915 4,084,719 8,396,705 79,947,078
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,553,427 329,117 223,262 549,179 4,654,985
BETNEBES Issued debt securities 459,654 2,343,986 = - 2,803,640
BEGEK Subordinated notes - 5,268,716 - - 5268,716
HfR A RIER Other accounts and accruals 1,787,278 1,606,376 419,891 260,721 4,074,266
SREEA Total financial liabilities 62,196,595 27,255,157 4,793,492 9,477,674 103,722,918
EEERBRLEBARE Net on-balance sheet positions 1,912,965 7,644,506 (1,560,704) 2,048,282 10,045,049
EEEBRNGEERTFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 4,398,489 (2,300,167 676 (1,748,609) 350,389
FERE Credit commitments 36,179,150 588,215 536,842 380,313 37,684,520
* BERBERIMNGFREERFHETZANBESE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

SNEZ BRI 2 INESBITE T AN BT FE © amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3.

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

£F Group BT E - dl Hit &t
ZZZ+FE+ZHA=1—H As at 31 December 2007 HKD usD MOP Others Total
BE Assets
Re REBRTNES Cash and balances with banks 1,208,410 7,596,044 286,944 2,687,067 11,868,465
ERT—ETZEARA Placements with banks maturing between

B HEER one and twelve months 530,000 1,357,301 - 32,041 1,919,342
FIEEERENE 5 Trading securities 2,552,707 1,795,936 - 320,173 4,668,816
NATEGEEEE Financial assets at fair value through

FAERREREE profit or loss 818,725 1,746,925 - 5225 2,570,875
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 407,538 195,434 - 155,075 758,047
EHERKEMER Advances and other accounts 58,214,234 4,670,341 1,945595 1,321,374 66,151,544
A HEES Available-for-sale securities 5,529,194 13,816,236 1,203,029 5,278,532 25,826,991
SREMES Held-to-maturity securities 73,408 2,322,041 - 2105276 4,500,725
SREEAH Total financial assets 69,424,216 33,500,258 3,435,568 11,904,763 118,264,805
aE Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 1,508,306 1,047,901 66,942 28519 2,651,668
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 438,322 511,438 - 21,021 970,781
BFEEEREMAR Trading liabilities 2,689,069 - = - 2,689,069
EENATEFERAZS Deposits from customers designated

FTABENEPER at fair value through profit or loss 2,551,973 590,515 - - 3,142,488
BPEH Deposits from customers 51,793,106 12,577,794 3,959,647 7,254,302 75,584,849
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 7,061,487 1,211,586 78,353 491,988 8,843,414
BREITNERES Issued debt securities 454,778 2,340,083 = - 2,794,861
BERR Subordinated notes - 5,147,837 = - 5,147,837
HihfR B KR Other accounts and accruals 3,683,045 1,131,809 538,672 498,311 5,851,837
SREBEAH Total financial liabilities 70,180,086 24,558,963 4,643,614 8,294,141 107,676,804
BEABERLEBERE Net on-balance sheet positions (755,870) 8,941,295 (1,208,046) 3,610,622 10,588,001
EEEERIGRERFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 7,368,424  (3,745,234) 249 (3,861,441) (238,002
EEEE Credit commitments 35,482,031 1,615566 606,118 867,801 38,571,516
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

TRBMIASE 2 A EERE - RABEASEIR The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
EHSBEC T ESREERAE  WIRETE Included in the table are the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets
BXRHSINMA (UAREERE) HE - and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of

contractual repricing or maturity dates.

EARE  -FUE

Z-f ZRE
ZEASNT Over Over TEUE T3t 8
8 Group 3months  3months  1yearto Over Non-Interest &5
“EZ\F+ZfA=1-H At 31 December 2008 or less to 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
B Assets
RERERTHES Cash and balances with banks 10,769,197 - - - 2,039,330 12,808,527
ERT-Z2T=EAR Placements with banks maturing
HHmER between one and twelve months 1,555,992 100,958 = = - 1,656,950
REBRERBNES Trading securities 698,242 860,185 578,867 71,948 93,899 2,303,141
DATEGEEAR Financial assets at fair value
FTABRNEHEE through profit or loss 558,731 15,671 418633 2,615,812 650,027 4,258,874
fTESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,122,486 1,122,486
FEEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 53,045983  3,825480 5,246,266 4,940,166 3,450,968 70,508,863
mfthEES Available-for-sale securities 1,844,418 4,194,637 2,744,427 5,291,076 649,637 14,724,195
REISER Held-to-maturity securities 4,896,998 230,171 363,305 894,457 - 6,384,931
SREEAT Total financial assets 73,369,561 9,227,102 9,351,498 13,813,459 8,006,347 113,767,967
af Liabilities
ROFER Deposits from banks 848,030 1,522,167 = = 73,397 2,443,594
TESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 2,268,155 2,268,155
KEEERGNERE Trading liabilities 944,493 802,038 44,714 174 - 1,791,419
BENATEFEEHEY Deposits from customers designated
STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss 428,767 42,298 - - - 471,065
RPRER Deposits from customers 70,847,888 5805222 1,551,362 - 1,742,606 79,947,078
BREINERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,666,445 1,439,314 549,226 - - 4654985
BRANEKES Issued debt securities 1,162,500 1,641,140 - - - 2,803,640
BEER Subordinated notes 2,325,000 - 1,040,438 1,903,278 - 5268716
HtfRA RER Other accounts and accruals 313,000 50,233 = - 3,711,033 4,074,266
SRARAT Total financial liabilities 79,536,123 11,302,412 3,185,740  1,903452  7,795191 103,722,918
FREREEEAT (RERE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (6,166,562)  (2,075,310) 6,165,758 11,910,007
FRFTETIAG N E Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,526,950 3,256,917 1,400,523 (9,222,477
FEREEES (KHE)* Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (1,639,612 1,181,607 7,566,281 2,687,530
* REARNERREER NIREERBRANEEM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
BENFRAEET - KHEFEKEEZEEA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
BUBE AR R 1T KITETEA LR takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
R into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

ZEANRL -EHRE
B-f Z20F
SEAGUT Over Over RENE e

&8 Group 3 months 3 months 1 year to Over  Non-Interest &5
ZEZtE+-F=1-A At 31 December 2007 or less to 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
58 RERTHEH Cash and balances with banks 9,991,220 - - - 1877245 11,868,465
ERT-ETZEAR Placements with banks maturing

HEHER between one and twelve months 1,557,301 362,041 - - - 1919342
BEEERENES Trading securities 1,201,899 1,173,286 408,621 32802 1762208 4,668,816
WATEGNEAEEH Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNERAE profit or loss 1,295,734 235,619 = 873518 166,004 2,570,875
fTEERIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 758,047 758,047
FEERRAME Advances and other accounts 52332379 3597464 4,087,118 748270 5386313 66,151,544
AHERF Available-for-sale securities 7878752 2,708,171 3,676,110 10,307,012 1,256,946 25,826,991
FEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 2,886,437 271,514 118625 1,224,149 - 4500725
SREEAT Total financial assets 77233722 8348095 8290474 13185751 11,206,763 118,264,805
g% Liabilities
BOER Deposits from banks 2,472,762 - - - 178906 2,651,668
fTEERIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 970,781 970,781
FEEERBNAR Trading liabilties 2,341,369 223,033 124,667 - - 2,689,069
BENATEFEEAEY Deposits from customers designated

FABRNERER at fair value through profit or loss 2,084,671 728,738 329,079 - - 3142488
KRR Deposits from customers 69,287,147 2,724,679 939,756 - 2633267 75584849
BEINENE Certificates of deposit issued 4,062,896 2,771,948 2,008,570 - - 8843414
BEINERES Issued debt securities 1,170,135 - 1,624,726 - - 2,794,861
T Subordinated notes 2,340,270 - 1163688 1,643,879 - 5147837
AR kAR Other accounts and accruals 58,955 107,088 - - 5,685,794 5,851,837
SRAEAH Total financial liabilities 83818205 6555486 6,190,486  1,643879 9,468,748 107,676,804
NEREZESH (REHR)* Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (6,584,483) 1,792,609 2,009,988 11,541,872
FRFETASHY Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,173,845 3220320 2676837 (9,973,242
NEREZESH (BF8)" Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (2,410638) 5012929 4776825 1,568,630
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due
and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may
be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil

commitments to lend.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis to ensure that a
sufficiently high liquidity ratio relative to the statutory minimum is
maintained throughout the year. The average liquidity ratio of the
banking subsidiaries within the Group during the period was well above

the 25% minimum ratio set by the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group’s Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
regularly reviews the Group’s current loan and deposit mix and changes,
funding requirements and projections, and monitors the liquidity ratio
and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate limits on
liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch are set and sufficient liquid assets
are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term funding

requirements.

The Group’s funding comprises mainly deposits of customers,
certificates of deposit and medium term notes issued. The issuance of
certificates of deposit and medium term notes helps lengthen the
funding maturity and reduce the maturity mismatch. Short-term
interbank deposits are taken on a limited basis and the Group is a net

lender to the interbank market.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and
projections for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are
key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial

liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

ALCO also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and
type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities
and the impact of contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit

and guarantees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risks management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

TROMAEBIZEEBEFBA LT HBEREK The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
FAERR (WER) 2 FnKE B EERE maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet
& e date to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable, the earliest
callable date.
-EANE  ZEANE
B=EAZAT B-f
DHEE  -f@AIUT  3monthsor Over -FHLZERE
&8 Group Repayable Upto less but over 3months  Over1 year BENE  EHWAR &t
ZBENETZAZT-H At 31 December 2008 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRESTHESR Cash and balances with banks 2,562,028 10,245,599 - - - - - 12,808,527
ER-2r=fEAR Placement with banks maturing
S|B0ER between one and twelve months - - 1,555,002 100,958 - - - 1,656,950
BEEERRNES Trading securities - - 645,758 860,183 569,821 133,480 93,899 2,303,141
WATEEAAZS Financial assets at fair value
FABRNEHAE through proft or loss - 497,580 30,677 15,671 387,628 2,668,291 650,027 4,258,874
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 240,968 24,049 107,842 328,649 420,978 - 1,122,486
SRS REMER Advances and other accounts 6,962,811 5,896,425 5,147,063 6,866,385 20,106,979 24,871,375 657,825 70,508,863
P Available-for-sale securities - 21,153 245,211 4,476,954 3,866,599 5,458,641 649,637 14,724,195
REIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 531,323 507,080 746,327 2,263,967 2,335,334 s 6,364,931
BELARE Investments in associates - - - - - - 1,132,461 1,132,461
LRAHERRE Investments in jointly
controlled entities - - - - - - 59,973 59,973
B2 Goodwil - - - - - - 950,992 950,992
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 158,352 158,352
AERAtEREAE Premises and other fived assets - - - - - - 2,069,694 2,069,694
RENE Investment properties - - - - - s 450,304 459,304
Il Current income tax assets - - - 144,417 - - - 144,477
ERiRaE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 162,804 - - 162,804
RAERER. Value of in-force long-term
ERREER Ife assurance business - - - - - - 1,214,452 1,274,452
BEAH Total Assets 9,525,739 17,439,048 8,165,730 13,318,497 27,686,447 35,888,099 8,156,616 120,180,176
& Liabilities
RN Deposits from banks 53,287 14,143 214,297 1,169,417 232,500 - - 2,443,504
fiE2BIA Derivative financial
instruments - 276,423 24,115 69,461 338,952 1,562,204 - 2,268,155
REEERENAR Trading liabilties - 944,493 - 802,038 44,714 174 - 1,791,419
BENATEREAAEY Deposits from customers
FABRNEPER designated at fair value
through profit or loss - 418,831 9,935 42,299 - - - 471,065
RFE Deposits from customers 17,960,845 31,711,283 23,588,052 5,864,973 821,975 - - 79,947,078
BEANESE Certificates of deposit issued - 2,507 961,000 2,444,829 1,246,649 - - 4,654,985
BRONEEES Issued debt securities - - - 2,803,640 - s s 2,803,640
hERT Subordinated notes - - - - 3,365,438 1,903,278 - 5,268,716
EfEERAR Qther accounts and accruals 1,483,301 482,584 574,742 564,159 334,474 - 635,006 4,074,266
HBREAE Current income tax liablities - - - 15,440 - - - 15,440
BEHARE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - 836 9,074 - - 9910
HRBRRENREREAL Liabilties to policyholders
af under long-term
insurance contracts - - - - - - 4,494,456 4,494,456
BRAH Total Liabilities 19,497,383 34,610,214 25,369,141 13,777,092 6,393,776 3,465,656 5,129,462 108,242,724
FROMEE Net liquidity gap (9,971,644) (17,171,166) (17,203,411) (458,595 21,292,671 32,420,443 3,027,154 11,937,452
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3.

Financial risks management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

-f@ANL ZEARE
B=@ERZNT E-F
PHEE  -EAIUT  3monthsor Over —ELEZERE
H ] Group Repayable Upto  less but over 3months  Over 1 year RENL HIHAH At
TEELETCAST-A At 31 December 2007 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year toSyears  Over5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
RERERANER (Cash and balances with banks 2,398,825 9,419,255 50,385 - - - - 11,868,465
ER-ZT2EAR Placement with banks maturing
HHER between one and twelve months - - 1,557,301 362,041 - - - 1,919,342
BEEERRNES Trading securities - 161,557 857,205 1018200 626,521 373,098 1,632,235 4,668,816
NATEEALEY Financial assets at fai value
TABRNEHAE through profit or loss - 418,850 876,384 55,964 - 1,083,173 166,004 2570875
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 606 78,376 122,305 135,617 201,807 219,336 - 758,047
EEEHREAMER Advances and other accounts 6,537,031 8,087,494 5,345,593 6,731,629 17,793,629 21,412,714 243,454 66,151,544
THEES Available-for-sale securities - 1,458,772 3,623,701 2,841,619 5,870,631 11,271,138 761,130 25,826,991
REHEES Held-to-maturity securities 2,000 6,833 11513 180,797 1449117 2,850,465 - 4,500,725
BENARE Investments in associates - - - - - - 842,970 842,970
LRBHERRE Investments in jointly
controlled entities - - - - - - 63,852 63,852
BE Goodwill - - - - - - 950,992 950,992
EVEE Intangble assets - - - - - - 181,023 181,023
NEREREREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,208,766 2,208,766
FEVIES Investment properties - - - - - - 547 574 547 574
PEHEEE Current income tax assets - - - 102,643 - - - 102,643
RRENBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 10,385 - - 10,385
RASREB ANRERR Value of in-force long-term
life assurance business - - - - - - 1,015,538 1,015,538
BEAH Total Assets 8,938,462 19,631,137 12,444,887 11,428,510 26,952,090 37,179,924 8,633,038 124,208,548
& Liabilities
HTEHN Deposits from banks 178,572 1,550,972 679,007 - 234,007 - - 2,651,668
fEeRIA Derivative financial
instruments 18,788 117,821 140,696 145,565 185,091 362,820 - 970,781
RFEEERENAE Trading liabilties 439,152 954,494 047,724 223,032 124,667 - - 2,689,069
BENATERERASY Deposits from customers
FABRNEPER designated at fair value
through profit or loss - 919,885 2,015,733 154,821 52,049 - - 3,142,488
EPH Deposits from customers 18573822 41,032,965 12,074,331 2,963,975 939,756 - - 75584849
BRINENE Certificates of deposit issued - 271917 1,704,505 3,686,949 3,024,043 - - 8,843,414
BEANERES Issued debt securities - - - - 2,794,861 - - 2,794,861
faERH Subordinated notes - - - - 3,503,958 1,643,879 - 5,147,837
EMEARER Other accounts and accruals 1,043,831 3,067,489 703,411 392,034 13,682 3 631,387 5,851,837
il Qurrent income tax liabiiies - 564 - 33477 - - 4328 38,369
BRENBEE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 176 98,386 - - 98,562
URBRESORERAAL Liabilties to policyholders
af under long-term
insurance contracts - - - - - - 3,613,540 3,613,540
BEAH Total Liabilities 20,254,165 47,881,107 18,265,497 7,600,029 11,170,520 2,006,702 4249255 111,427,275
FROMEE Net liquidity gap (11,315,703 (28,249.970) (5,820,610) 3,828,481 14,781,570 35,173,222 4,384,283 12,181,273
138 XFeMmEBERLATE —TEZNFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risks management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of
the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types.
An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also
increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options; and

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, and other interest rate
contracts.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps;

° Equity derivatives: equity options; and

° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial risks management (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

-EARE Z@ANLE  -FHE
&H Group EEDSY Z=fR ZEt=f8A EiR:3 RENE &
“ZENFt-A=t-H As at 31 December 2008 Upto1month 1-3months 3-12months  1-5years Over 5 years Total
FTETARER Non-derivative cash flow
g% Liabilities
RTEH Deposits from banks 1,432,753 432,081 1,228,656 258,649 - 3,352,139
EENATETEEH Deposits from customers designated
BHAABRNEFER at fair value through profit or loss 425,412 - - - - 425,412
EFEEH Deposits from customers 49,800,656 24,242,827 5,970,309 885,868 - 80,989,660
EFEERZNAE Trading liabilities 1,725,500 138 22,306 44,839 104 1,792,887
ERTHERE Certificates of deposit issued 220,981 805,321 2,607,345 1,243,026 - 4,876,673
BRTNERRS Issued debt securities - 16,673 2,854,482 > - 2,871,155
rEER Subordinated notes - 100,742 136,304 3,741,817 1,894,341 5,873,294
AtEE Other liabilties 1,823,826 246,401 374,360 32,174 - 2,476,761
AT Total liabilities
(A#FHA) (contractual maturity dates) 55519128 25844,183 13,193,852 6,206,373 1,804,445 102,657,981
fIETIARER Derivative cash flow
RFEEELEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 800 20,097 29,751 69,426 40,049 160,123
REBLEEFTESRIA Derivative financial instruments settled
on a gross basis
RHAE Total outflow 35,096,876 | | 15,457,315 | | 10,922,997 | | 4,044,704 1,973,837 | | 67,495,729
AL Total inflow (35,075,157)| |(15,437,453)( |(10,842,954) | (3,684,250)| | (1,605,545)| |(66,645,359)
21,7119 19,862 80,043 360,454 368,292 850,370

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risks management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

-fHANLE Z=@EARE  -FNE
&H Group -@ASUT E=@EA ZEt=fA ZREF  AEHNE &
“EZtF+-fA=1-H As at 31 December 2007 Upto1month 1-3months 3-12months  1-5years Over 5 years Total
FTEIRRSR Non-derivative cash flow
B Liabilities
ROER Deposits from banks 2,483,018 275,415 5,851 - - 2764284
EENATEFZAE Deposits from customers designated
BB ANBRNEFER at fair value through profit or loss 914501 1,990,646 118,373 45,609 - 3,069,129
RPER Deposits from customers 60,650,893 12,223,728 3,134,577 486,342 - 76,495,540
KEEERENERE Trading liabilities 1,395,000 951,849 229,097 128,669 - 2704615
BEANEHRE Certificates of deposit issued 268,682 1,780,797 3,979,475 3,492,031 - 9,520,985
BREONEBES Issued debt securities - 20,799 11,281 2,921,434 - 3053514
{BEER Subordinated notes - 116,544 182,742 4,436,114 2005424 6,740,824
AR fE Other liabilities 4,446,849 316,191 495,978 13,051 - 5272,069
BEEE Total liabilities
(BH3IHA) (contractual maturity dates) 70158943  17,675969 8,257,374 11523250 2,005,424 109,620,960
ETEBRER Derivative cash flow
RFEEEZTEERTIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on net basis 759 5,378 (4,357) (5,384) - (3,604)
REEEEVTEERIA Derivative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
it 85 Total outflow 27,870,619 | | 12,123,061 | | 16,384,020 | | 1,173,543 696,360 | | 58,247,603
AL Total inflow (27,813,018)| |(12,130,970)| |(16,430,247) | (1,511,731)| | (675,032)| |(58,560,998)
57,601 (7,909) (46,227) (338,188 21328 (313,395)

ARARNAARBENRARERRREEAEZE
ERRERE AR RRITHARR  EREZIAR
LEEES - |RITERRBR  MEPERKE
Ko EAREEHT @ BOESOEKER —FR
NEZEFPEFKEEM - 1o - BEFERLE
EEFEREHRAREREE - AKELES
HERFMRBREINESRE (P  @BEMH)
AEMNRELEESFRE
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Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in the
course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to banks;
and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course of
business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable within
one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and treasury bills
have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group would also be able
to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and

accessing additional funding sources such as repo market.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risks management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 HBERMFEIHHA 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items
TREFEATER : Included in the table below are the following items:
. EAHERTEPEEREMRE 2 B . Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual

ERERAKEEEABRIIERMTAZ

SREESBH)

o  REIRBEARERER

%

RARAXNZHERENKEE &

s BEFERRBZERARE

amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments

that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

WA BA ST 5 2 B A . Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the

reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;
. AEE BAMA Z ] BUB L& 895 . The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

where a Group company is the lessee; and

o
L]

operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
—FHR —FHU#&
£8 Group No later ERE HFELE =i
—EENF+-HA=1+—H At 31 December 2008 than 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
B FURIE Loan commitments 35,615,524 919,873 - 36,535,397
ER AL REMS R Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
- &N - Acceptances 9,970 - - 9,970
-ERRERERL - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 554,939 45,808 110,571 711,318
- BB REEERT — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 354,288 - - 354,288
IS TR A A Operating lease commitments 73,112 49,419 24,300 146,831
B EE Capital commitments 99,587 - - 99,587
=) Total 36,707,420 1,015,100 134,871 37,857,391

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risks management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 HEAMFEINEH (#) 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
—F LR —FHE
£5 Group No later ERE TENE =i
—EZEtE+-H=1+—H At 31 December 2007 than 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
B Loan commitments 34,865,943 1,097,019 - 35,962,962
R AR REME RS Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
- - Acceptances 37,677 - - 37,677
-ERRERERT - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 486,521 66,118 110,793 663,432
- REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 873,606 3,692 - 877,298
TR AR Operating lease commitments 80,865 87,288 - 168,153
BRI Capital commitments 83,904 = = 83,904
At Total 36,428,516 1,254,117 110,793 37,793,426

35 W ERAMZATE

RERBTSEBEZEMIA (FIMAREEZHT
ATA #EEEAZNESMAIHEE 285)
ZRFHERGEERZMHER - AEBEAFER
BEMAZTER/AEREAE  MERAEE
AmERERELE -

EERTBEE ST A (PIMERS B4
TR) 2 ATENEAGERNEE - AEBE
REBH%  WREEHDENZDTRIEHR
% EMEANEAAEIAZ SERRSHE
ZHE - BEEBSMT Ay ATEERERL
AT - PIMFEHRBRRSRE - FIRERZA
FERGARASAB REHE o EHINE
& 0 2 /2 8.1 FR A 5 B 1 T 95 A
LR o
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded derivatives, trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is

the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such
as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest-rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet
date.
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3.  Financial risks management (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities for disclosure

purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows

at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for

similar financial instruments.

(@)  Financial instruments measured at fair value using a

valuation technique

During 2008 and 2007, there was no financial instrument

measured at fair value using a valuation technique which is based

on assumptions that are not supported by observable market

prices for the same or similar instrument or not based on available

observable market data.

(b)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values

of those financial assets and liabilities not presented in the

NEAE - Group’s balance sheet at their fair value.
REE AFE
Carrying value Fair value
—EENF CZTTtF C—TENF CTITLHF

£@ Group 2008 2007 2008 2007
SREE Financial assets
& RIERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 12,808,527 11,868,465 12,829,918 11,870,257
ERT—Z2T=EAR Placements with banks maturing

S EHRE R between one and twelve months 1,656,950 1,919,342 1,670,723 1,922,782
EEER Advances to customers

HAER(ZEER) Loans to individuals (retail customers)

-EAFR - Credit cards 3,482,972 3,395,440 3,483,173 3,395,440

-RIBER - Mortgages 18,526,215 18,476,883 18,537,337 18,476,608

- Hfth — Others 3,802,967 3,988,516 3,780,619 3,991,654
PEEN Loans to corporate entitles

-BHER — Term loans 10,205,960 10,066,194 10,206,200 10,066,194

-RIBER - Mortgages 8,496,416 8,629,646 8,511,550 8,629,646

-BIHMEAE - Trade finance 4,638,482 5,615,014 4,638,656 5,615,014

- HAt — Others 11,846,061 11,122,938 11,810,914 11,133,174
RITER Advances to banks 179,226 160,426 179,245 160,426
BIEEE R BB Investments in securities included

BRlzBHEE in loans and receivables category 6,896,646 = 5,905,929 =
SR EHES Held-to-maturity securities 6,384,931 4,500,725 5,808,369 4,284,174
cHERE Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 2,443,594 1,993,346 2,471,173 1,986,825
BERER Deposits from customers 79,947,078 75,584,849 80,184,672 75,679,102
BEEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,049,263 4,686,146 3,058,637 4,680,509
BEETNEBHES Issued debt securities 1,622,154 1,624,913 1,622,409 1,624,311
BEBR Subordinated notes 4,228,278 3,984,149 3,201,525 3,791,963

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risks management (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(®)
@)

(ii)

(il

(iv)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

Placements with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for

debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

Loans and advances to customers

The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents
the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are

discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held to maturity
categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets and loans
and receivables is based on market prices or broker/dealer
price quotations. Where this information is not available,
fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for
securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using

interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

Debt securities in issue

For those notes where a quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to

maturity.
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3.  Financial risks management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking and
insurance regulators in the markets where the entities within the
Group operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimize the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business.

3.6.1 Banking business

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS Bank Limited
(“MEVAS?”), are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel
Committee, as implemented by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA"), for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed
with the HKMA on a quarterly basis. The HKMA requires DSB and
MEVAS to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted
amount (i.e. the capital adequacy ratio) at or above the internationally
agreed minimum of 8%. These banking subsidiaries’ regulatory capital

as managed by the Group’s management is divided into two tiers:

° Core capital: share capital, profit and loss, and reserves created
by appropriations of retained earnings. The book value of goodwiill
and other intangible assets is deducted in arriving at core capital;
and

° Supplementary capital: qualifying perpetual and term
subordinated debts, collectively assessed impairment
allowances, regulatory reserve, and fair value gains arising on
revaluation of holdings of land and buildings and available-for-

sale equities and debt securities.

Investment in subsidiaries, significant investments in non-subsidiary
companies and shares, exposures to connected companies and
investments in other banks’ equity are deducted from core capital and

supplementary capital to arrive at the regulatory capital.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risks management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.1 Banking business (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognized by
the HKMA or other principles as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-
balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts
by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before
being classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet

exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and China’s banking subsidiary, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM?”) and the China Banking Regulatory

Commission (“CBRC?”) respectively for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk weighted exposures (i.e. the solvency ratio) at

or above the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as the Securities

and Futures Commission.
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3.  Financial risks management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.2 Insurance business

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries operate,
the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum amount and type
of capital that must be held by each of the subsidiaries in addition to
their insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital must be
maintained at all times throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries
are subject to insurance solvency regulations in the markets in which
they issues insurance and investment contracts, and where they have
complied with the local solvency regulations. The Group has embedded
in its ALM framework the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full
compliance with such regulations. The solvency requirement of each
insurance company in each market is subject to local requirements,

which may differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

In Hong Kong, the required margin of solvency for the Group’s life
insurance subsidiary, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, is
determined by the Group’s appointed actuary in accordance with the
Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency) Regulation. In
addition, dynamic solvency test is also required by Insurance Authority
to identify the solvency position of the company on a going concern
basis and plausible threats to satisfactory financial condition. For both

2007 and 2008, the results of dynamic solvency test are satisfactory.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give

rise to the risk that the Group will be accused of mal-administration.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.  Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies

41 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of
the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the Group
arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable

in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of recoverable
amounts. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and

actual loss experience.
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AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets, the
Group has witnessed observable declines in market liquidity and
the range of market quotations for certain securities have
widened. The Group applies judgment in selecting the most
appropriate quotation for valuation purposes based on its
assessment of the range of observable quotations, recent
observable transactions, the reliability and quality of the pricing

source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

The Group has invested in leveraged/structured investment
vehicles managed by third party portfolio managers, which are
included in the Group’s available-for-sale investment portfolio.
These vehicles typically invest in medium term high grade bonds
using short to medium term financing to provide an enhanced
yield to investors. During the year, the Group observed that these
vehicles experienced more difficult funding conditions, and were
reliant to varying extents on their managers or bank sponsors for
funding support. Falls in the prices of bonds during the year,
coupled with the leverage effect on the Group’s holdings has
resulted in a decrease in their values. As a result, the Group has
assessed that there are objective indications that the vehicles
have suffered impairment, and an impairment loss has therefore
been recognised at the balance sheet date calculated with

reference to valuations received from the portfolio managers.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be
generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates which
could be caused by major changes in market conditions and
outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values of such
assets. In the event that the expected recoverable amounts of
goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than their
carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be

recognised.
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JE A st BOR I 2 B2 wt Al oA 4. Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
Br (50 applying accounting policies (Continued)
R R () 4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(T) REZERESZBENIREEE (d)  Value of long-term life assurance business

ATERASREB 2B NREBBERAEE Estimates are made in calculating the value of long-term life

H&ET o assurance business.

FEZREBHRAT Key assumptions are summarised below:

() FETE - EBEEASEIIBENTERAE ()  Mortality. An appropriate base table of standard mortality
I WIEARRAR G 2 B EH is chosen with adjustment for the Company’s own
B experience.

(i) BRIRE o BRIAEBO% (ZTTLF - (i)  Discount rate. A discount rate of 9% (2007: 9.75%) being
9.75%) ' BERRAENEE 2% the risk free rate plus an appropriate equity risk premium is
B g m o applied.

(i) WERTR - BRI TRZETEEEE (iii)  Investment return. Investment return assumption ranges
ZERE  FHEEHBREN T FEE from 4.75% to 6.75% per annum (2007: 5.5% to 6.75%
4.75%E6.75% (T LF « FX per annum) depending on risk characteristics of
5.5%%6.75%) ° investments matching the liabilities of different plans.

(ivy BRIE  BRIHTIBEERER (iv) Renewal expenses. Renewal expenses based on actual
MBERKEBTEIMETE ° experience and with reference to future business plan are

adopted.

Rk e - Change in assumptions:

AEEEHBRAAEAZBSE  UREE Assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted based

A% 4 B 70 35 FRORI /B () FA 2 o on the actual experience and new forecasts.

RRIEE DT : Sensitivity analysis:

TRET = BES ke 3 75 B B AR £ 50 R LA The following table represents the sensitivity of value of long-

RSB EBEEZZZRREH 2 X term life assurance business to movements in the key

JEE ° assumptions used in the estimation of value of long-term life

assurance business.
—ZENF s S
2008 2007
REAER RHEB
EEZ28 BEzE
R&EmZ Value of A28 Value of A2 B8
Change in long-term Change in long-term Change in
variable business net profit business net profit

BRI K 2 32 Increase in discount rate +1% (123,190) (123,029) (91,245) (90,962)

RTRZE Worsening of mortality +1% (2,225) (2,223) (2,444) (2,444)

KA LR T Decrease in investment return ~ -0.1% (47,365) (47,108) (47,556) (47,068)

BRI M 23Em Increase in renewal expense +10% (11,751) (11,601) (11,640) (11,476)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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4.2

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgment, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but
also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to supply
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (‘HTM”) and loans
and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end of the year and
up to the date of the approval of the financial statements of the
Group. Assessment for any impairment, on individual and
collective basis, is made with reference to the financial strength
and credit rating of each issuer, industry development and market
conditions, and historical loss experience of a portfolio of similar
credits provided by rating agencies. Apart from the SIV
investments, and those AFS equity securities and HTM debt
securities having been assessed as impaired, the Group has
concluded that there are no objective or specific indications that
any of its other AFS, HTM and LNR securities is impaired.
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4.
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Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in
applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)
(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments

would therefore be measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgment is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need to
be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In
making this judgment, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and estimated
amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred to settle
the obligation after considering factors such as recent settlement

experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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5.

Segment Reporting

(A) By business segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BART BERT RBEH
Personal  Commercial BEEK  Insurance  KPEBEH ik @
£@ Group Banking Banking Treasury Business  Unallocated  Elimination Total
ELON Interest income from
-HRER - external customers 1,347,790  1,625788 1,559,960 107,974 97,453 - 4,738,062
-BER - inter-segments 914,893 - - 28,224 311,078 (1,314,195) -
MESH Interest expense to
-hREP - external customers (1,327,883) (376,481) (234,188) - (430,945) - (2,369,497)
-BEH - inter-segments - (324,257) (989,938) - - 1,314,195 -
AN EMA Net interest income 934,800 925,050 335,834 136,195 37,586 - 2,369,465
REERBLKA Fee and commission income 469,315 139,952 12,518 9,649 15,215 (34,136) 612,513
REERES TN Fee and commission expense (94,935) (1,084) (8,455) (2,959) (1,704) 245 (108,892)
FREBRES KA/ (HH) Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 374,380 138,868 4,063 6,690 13,511 (33,891) 503,621
FEEMA/ (BB) Net trading income/(loss) 15,016 13,677 87,7114 (341,564) 120,862 - (104,205)
FREREMMA Net insurance premium and
other income - - - 2,129,584 - (10,240) 2,119,344
b EBENA Other operating income 20,277 4,611 2,990 27,062 35,543 (1,908) 88,575
EENA Operating income 1,344,473 1,082,206 430,601 1,957,967 207,502 (46,039) 4,976,710
RBEZRERZLFE Net insurance claims
and expenses - - - (1,833,398) - 27,135 (1,806,263)
NBRRRZRE EENA Total operating income
net of insurance claims 1,344,473 1,082,206 430,601 124,569 207,502 (18,904) 3,170,447
BB Operating expenses (1,026,012) (293,376) (115,926) (147,934) (138,940) 18904  (1,703,284)
R EERR Operating profit/{loss) before
BB/ (BR) impairment losses 318,461 788,830 314,675 (23,365) 68,562 - 1,467,163
ERRBRAERR Impairment losses on loans
and advances (147,046) (511,489) - - - - (658,535)
ETRAREREERRKEER Operating profit/{loss) before
LEERN/ (BR) gains o losses on certain
investments and fixed assets 171,415 271,341 314,675 (23,365) 68,562 - 808,628
NEREMETEELERER Net gain on disposal and
FhaE revaluation of premises and
other fixed assets 20 - - - 1,390 - 1,410
RANFHERAEATELIEE Net loss on disposal of and
fair value adjustment on
investment properties - - - (32,066) (28,371) - (60,437)
HETHEERSTNE/ (BB Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 5,920 - 12,566 (24,955) 3,350 - (3,119)
EEBEARZEE Share of results of associates - - - - 120,589 - 120,589
FELRENESE EE Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - 5,674 - 5,674
BEIBES  REBRR Impairment losses charged on
held-to-maturity securities - - (357,684) - - - (357,684)
AfHEES 2 AEBRR Impairment losses charged on
available-for-sale securities - - (39,984) (29,085) (263,000) - (332,069)
BEaas/ (58) Profit/(loss) before income tax 177,355 277,341 (0,427) (109,471) (91,806) - 182,092
R=ZE\E+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2008
EEAG Total assets 26,527,884 35,156,157 46,407,827 8,956,613 4,065,588 (933,893) 120,180,176
BfEA: Total liabilities 60,811,234 18,600,935 12,557,171 6,746,814 10,460,463 (933,893) 108,242,724
HEZSEN\E For the year ended
TZA=ZT-HI%E 31 December 2008
e Depreciation 39,011 22,672 12,627 4,353 32,444 - 111,107
BATH Capital expenditure incurred 23,869 3,740 373 13,842 50,554 - 92,378

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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5.

Segment Reporting (Continued)

(A) By business segments (Continued):

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BART BERT RBEH
Personal  Commercial BEEK  Insurance  KPEBEH ik @
£E Group Banking Banking Treasury Business  Unallocated  Elimination Total
ELON Interest income from
-HRER - external customers 1755688 2,002556 2,067,856 99,921 48,993 - 5975014
-BER - inter-segments 1,244,272 - - 22,916 856,893 (2,124,081) -
Mex Interest expense to
-REP - external customers (1,964,856) (646,870) (do1,187) - (747,407) - (3,760,320)
-BEH - inter-segments - (586,451) (1,537,630 - - 2,124,081 -
FHBMA Net interest income 1,035,104 769,235 129,039 122,837 158,479 - 2,214,694
BBERASHA Fee and commission income 582,047 128,903 9,920 9,826 26,377 (39,353) 717,920
RBERES M Fee and commission expense (83,564) (1,011) (10,330) (3,900) (7,258) 79 (105,267)
FREBRES KA/ (HH) Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 498,683 127,892 (410) 5,926 19,119 (38,557 612,653
FEEMA Net trading income 10,760 9,087 98,953 518,953 22376 - 660,129
FREREMMA Net insurance premium and
other income - - - 1,908,104 - (9,502) 1,898,602
AhEERA Other operating income 60,613 8,021 7,037 750 35,789 (1,860) 110,350
EENA Operating income 1,605,160 914,235 234,619 2,556,570 235,763 (49,919) 5,496,428
RBEZRERZLFE Net insurance claims
and expenses - - - (1,831,472 - 33,656 (1,797,816)
NBRRRZRE EENA Total operating income
net of insurance claims 1,605,160 914,235 234,619 725,098 235,763 (16,263) 3,698,612
BB Operating expenses (858,485) (290,587) (88,667) (164,086) (58,440) 16,263 (1,444,002)
R EERR Operating profit before
LEBRT impairment losses 746,675 623,648 145,952 561,012 177,323 - 2254610
SRR AERR Impairment losses
(&) /m& on loans and advances
(charged)/reversed (97,637) (83,178) 23 - @) - (180,795)
ETREREREENESERR Operating profit before gains
LEERT or losses on certain
investments and fixed assets 649,038 540,470 145,975 561,012 177,320 - 2,073,815
TERAMEREELERESR Net (loss)/gain on disposal and
2% (E8) /e revaluation of premises and
other fixed assets 0 4 7 - 27,639 - 27,643
RENFHEREEATE L FHE Net gain on disposal of and
fair value adjustment on
investment properties - - - 1,786 121,550 - 123,336
WEM L EZH T Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 9,603 - 75,538 - 30,163 - 115,304
ElBENR £E Share of results of associates - - - - 45,564 - 45,564
FLERARHER %% Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - 10,536 - 10,536
AL EES A ERRRE Impairment losses charged on
available-for-sale securities - - - - (1,037,742) - (1,087,742)
BHATER/ (58) Profit/(loss) before income tax 658,634 540,474 221,520 562,798 (624,970) - 1358456
R=EE+%+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2007
BEA Total assets 27,267,243 35,957,780 48,482,583 7,675,020 5,193,208 (367,286) 124,208,548
BEAF Total liabilities 55411277 19761,043  17,146475 5224264 14,251,502 (367,086 111,427,275
HE-25+% For the year ended
TZA=+-BLER 31 December 2007
ne Depreciation 49,977 20,663 6,373 4,205 12,739 - 983,957
BARH Capital expenditure incurred 43,341 7,748 884 13,016 16,802 - 81,791

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2008
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Segment Reporting (Continued)
(A) By business segments (Continued):

Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits from
individual customers and the extension of residential mortgage lending,
personal loans, overdraft and credit card services, the provision of

insurance sales and investment services.

Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance to
commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the provision of
trade financing. Hire purchase finance and leasing related to equipment,

vehicle and transport financing are included.

Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange services
and centralised cash management for deposit taking and lending,
interest rate risk management, management of investment in securities

and the overall funding of the Group.

Insurance business includes the Group’s life assurance and general
insurance businesses. Through the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and 96% owned subsidiaries in Macau, the Group offers

a variety of life and general insurance products and services.

Unallocated items include results of operations, corporate investments
and debt funding (including subordinated notes) not directly identified

under other business divisions.
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5. oI @) 5.  Segment Reporting (Continued)
(&) %385y (B) By geographical segments:
B
2 18 K 8
EBREM Inter-
Hong Kong R segment HEt
and others Macau elimination Total
BE-ZEZ)\F For the year ended
TZA=+—HLEE 31 December 2008
MR RRREZ EERA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 2,929,157 241,565 (275) 3,170,447
BREATRA, (B8E) Profit/(loss) before income tax 213,099 (30,107) - 182,992
FERF/ (B18) Profit/(loss) for the year 189,732 (36,115) - 153,617
e Depreciation 90,047 21,060 = 111,107
AT H Capital expenditure incurred 86,452 5,926 = 92,378
R-ZZFZENF+-H=+—H  Asat31December 2008
BEAR Total assets 109,901,301 12,451,113 (2,172,238) 120,180,176
BEA Total liabilities 100,037,272 10,377,690 (2,172,238) 108,242,724
HRBEREE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 37,081,176 1,485,131 - 38,566,307
&1
2 18 [ 4K 8
EEREM Inter-
Hong Kong A segment st
and others Macau elimination Total
HE_ZZtHF For the year ended
TZA=1+—HLEE 31 December 2007
HRREREZEERA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 3,331,199 367,413 - 3,698,612
B 750 Al i A Profit before income tax 1,254,017 104,439 - 1,358,456
F & Al Profit for the year 1,136,158 89,590 = 1,225,748
e Depreciation 70,349 23,608 - 93,957
BARX Capital expenditure incurred 62,892 18,899 - 81,791
R-ZEZELF+-HA=1+—H As at 31 December 2007
BEA Total assets 113,667,708 12,775,637 (2,234,797) 124,208,548
BREER Total liabilities 102,929,552 10,732,520 (2,234,797) 111,427,275
A B R RAEIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 39,587,908 1,584,097 - 41,172,005

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)

6. FMEHWA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Net interest income

—BENE —TTLHF
2008 2007
FE WA Interest income
H & RERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 405,341 384,284
BHRE Investment in securities 1,347,861 1,879,574
BEEMBITER Advances to customers and banks 2,945,973 3,674,735
Hh Others 39,787 36,421
4,738,962 5,975,014
FEZH Interest expense
RITTFERBEFEX Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 1,804,020 2,800,864
BERITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 200,175 436,710
ERITHELES Issued debt securities 89,399 115,338
BEED Subordinated notes 209,818 311,402
Hh Others 66,085 96,006
2,369,497 3,760,320
FIEWABHE Included within interest income
EWREZFBWA Interest income on listed investments 1,110,479 957,198
JEETHIRE 2 F B A Interest income on unlisted investments 237,382 922,376
1,347,861 1,879,574
RKIETCARFEF=EHE Interest income on financial assets
TABEZHNEREEZFEHRA not designated at fair value through
profit or loss 4,657,125 5,389,841
BB E E R B WA Interest income on impaired assets 16,069 17,969
FEXZHEE Included within interest expenses
RIEEUARAFEFEALHE Interest expenses on financial liabilities
AFABZENEeRAEZFEZ T not designated at fair value through
profit or loss 2,069,560 3,121,501

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(AB®E T T3 7R)

7. WIRE#E &R

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. Net fee and commission income

—EENF CZTITLHF
2008 2007
BREEBERASWKA Fee and commission income
RIEEARFEFEEHEHTA Fee and commission income from
BamemEERARZ financial assets and liabilities not
AR 7% & kA WA designated at fair value through
profit or loss
-EEEEZREERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 65,262 62,166
-EB5mE — Trade finance 57,520 63,878
-=AF — Credit card 192,026 192,953
H th B 7% B R B & WA Other fee and commission income
-BERERBERG RS - Securities brokerage and investment
services 151,193 222,594
- RERGHE R EAD — Insurance distribution and others 22,759 22,979
-TEREBES RZIERS — Retail investment funds and
fiduciary services 44,490 80,660
- HMfR % & — Other fees 79,263 72,690
612,513 717,920
REERAESIH Fee and commission expense
FEENAES Handling fees and commission 97,103 91,989
B HME A Other fees paid 11,789 13,278
108,892 105,267

AEERAE=DRHERE - Z5t - CEEERR
BEERY - RENXBEAFORBEZEEL T
BEAENEHBRERA

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. Those assets that

are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. WHE (BH) WA 8.  Net trading (loss)/income
—EENE —ZTLF
2008 2007
NEEFEEEZHFABRD Dividend income from financial assets
EREEZRERA at fair value through profit or loss
- FTRE - listed investments 6,015 26,409
- LEMRE - unlisted investments 5,419 =
HNEE B B F W Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 234,550 172,055
BIEBERRNESZF (BE) ks Net (loss)/gain from trading securities (441,730) 457,389
HIEBEERBRMITETAEZF (BB) k= Net (loss)/gain from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose (137,357) 7,513
BAFES RS TAE 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge (15,510) (38,270)
EENRAFEFEEEZFHTABEN Net gain arising from financial instruments
Rl THEZF e designated at fair value through
profit or loss 244,318 35,033
(104,295) 660,129
9. FHREEIHMBKA 9.  Net insurance premium and other income
—EEINE Z25LE
2008 2007
Ek kiR sk —RER
Life General &t Life General =
Insurance  Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
REMABE Gross written premiums 1,787,953 252,807 2,040,760 1,633,322 372,656 2,005,978
RAURRZREZY Movement in unearned premiums - 76,155 76,155 - (86,619) (86,619)
ERMRBAS Gross earned premiums 1,787,953 328,962 2116915 1,633,322 286,037 1,919,359
REMABE 2 HRIVE Gross written premiums ceded
to reinsurers (47,661) (138,149) (185,810) (23,680) (266,058) (289,738)
RARRZREED 2 HRNE Reinsurers’ share of movement in
unearned premiums - (70,675) (70,675) - 64,221 64,221
ERRZRELE 2 HROE Reinsurers’ share of gross
earned premiums (47,661) (208,824) (256,485) (23,680) (201,837) (225,517)
RBWAFE Net insurance premium income 1,740,292 120,138 1,860,430 1,609,642 84200 1,693,842
RASREBZEWREEEZEN  Increase in value of in-force long-term
life assurance business 258,914 - 258,914 204,760 - 204,760
a5 Total 1,999,206 120,138 2,119,344 1,814,402 84,200 1,898,602
RFEeMEBMERLE —TTN\FFR
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10. H b= A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. Other operating income

—RRNE -TTLA

2008 2007
AIEEHEFFREZREWA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
- EmigE — listed investments 12,491 16,715
- EWmEE — unlisted investment 11,382 5,188
"EYE 2B WA BTE Gross rental income from
investment properties 20,281 18,385
HafHe WA Other rental income 5,462 6,678
Hfth Others 38,959 63,384
88,575 110,350
11, PRI A S 52 Y 11. Net insurance claims and expenses
—EENF 8 3
2008 2007
Bk -RREB =k —RRR
Life General A3t Life General At
Insurance  Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
BENRE  FZRER Claims, benefits and surrenders paid 542,469 84,067 626,536 225,376 39,688 265,064
EESE Movement in provisions 1,038,658 56,394 1,005,052 1,437,067 91,197 1,528,264
RELBRARE Gross insurance claims and movement
BFEANEECE in liabilities to policyholders 1,581,127 140,461 1,721,588 1,662,443 130,885 1,793,328
BERZRE - FERREZHRNE Reinsurers’ share of claim, benefits
and surrenders paid (6,328) (34,875) (41,203) (4,085) (8,918) (13,003)
EELEY HRNE Reinsurers’ share of movement in provisions (14,577) (25,668) (40,245) (4,244) (69,909) (74,153)

RBEREFERHRE
REANRRZE

RBAEX L/
(M) 8

Reinsurers’ share of insurance claims
and movement in liabilities to policyholders (20,905) (60,543) (81,448) (8,329) (78,827) (87,156)

Net insurance claims and movement in
liabilities to policyholders 1,560,222 79,918 1,640,140 1,654,114 52,058 1,706,172

Net insurance commission
expenses/(income) 171,393 (5,270) 166,123 107,451 (15,807 91,644

Total 1,731,615 74648 1,806,263 1,761,565 36,251 1,797,816

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. BEXH 12. Operating expenses
—EENE T
2008 2007
EEFHMERENZE (REESEHMH) Employee compensation and
(M45E13) benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 13) 755,509 814,279
TEMEMEEEES L - Premises and other fixed assets
TEEFE expenses, excluding depreciation
-1TEZME® - Rental of premises 84,218 71,142
- HAty — Others 84,611 85,631
& (47135) Depreciation (Note 35) 111,107 93,957
EEX Advertising costs 79,932 112,026
B EEHIHER Amortisation expenses of intangible
(P 5£34) assets (Note 34) 22,671 27,215
1% ERET B & Auditors’ remuneration 7,380 7,380
Hit Others 557,856 232,372
1,703,284 1,444,002
13. 8 B & 4 R 52 13. Employee compensation and benefit expenses
—EENE —ZZTLF
2008 2007
R E it AEEH Salaries and other staff costs 756,641 744,089
VARR {7 5 ZE i S B 25 5 ([0l 88) 4= 88 Provision for share-based
(P4 5E55) compensation (reversed)/charged
(Note 55) (52,610) 26,435
RReXH Pension costs — defined
- AEHFKEE contribution plans 51,478 43,755
755,509 814,279
e 2 A AL ¢ The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:
iy BeBst ()  The aggregate emoluments
B
Restated
—EZTN\F ZTTtHF
2008 2007
e BE - Bz EMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 26,930 64,778
RSB Pensions 2,290 2,220
29,220 66,998

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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13. @ B 35 K fm A 2 o)
(i) FERABSKAATHMSERNWT :

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13.  Employee compensation and benefit expenses (Continued)

(i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within

the following bands:

A
Number of
individuals
=gl
Restated
—EENF CZTITLF
2008 2007
B TT
HK$
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 1 -
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 2 _
6,500,001 - 7,000,000 1 1
8,500,001 - 9,000,000 1 _
9,500,001 - 10,000,000 = 1
10,500,001 -11,000,000 - 2
17,000,001 -17,500,000 -
5 5

ERNREMEBRAZALTA B4 (ZTZ+
F A7) AEBES - HRANESHE D 2
EREE 14 -

RERN - AEBVERAEFALUCZSEAALS
NS - (ERIMARINBEARE 2 RE BB

=
g o

ElFRERRAATHHEEEGBEEZT
EFTR AR S A A& B 2 ZEE R TRIR SR TEAL -
AEBEAETERMAESBTRAEREHAE
T N\FIRMRTS R F 8 A R
A MR -—BEENE+-_A=+—HIETERSE
BY{EAT -

/)

T

R FZEHNEERIINRRR _TTLF
ToA=t—HBRENESKRAALTHEE-F
TEFREIRE RZFEREER 2 RREAN
TARERE - ZELERE_SZLET A=+
—RRER -

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2007: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’

emoluments have been included in Note 14 below.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of offices during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered
and the Group’s performance for the financial year. The Group has
determined that no incentive bonuses are payable to all senior
executives in respect of 2008 performance and services rendered, and

as at 31 December 2008, no incentive bonuses have been accrued.

The information for 2007 has been restated to reflect the accrual basis
for incentive bonus accrued as at 31 December 2007 to be paid to the
five highest paid individuals in respect of 2007 performance and service.

The actual bonuses were paid after 31 December 2007.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
14. HHEWMWE 14. Directors’ emoluments
BEFZHM T The remuneration of each Director is set out below:
EBER
RAtRE 2
EREBEA
(1)
Incentive
bonuses
HER accrued in R A
ENfg respect of EROT A
Salary, services (3) fif
allowances rendered  Share-based (35)
ESZ@E  and benefits in the year payment B Total
BZ-ZE\E1-A=1-HLER Year ended 31 December 2008 Directors’ Fee in kind (Note 1) (Note 3) Pensions (Note 5)
IR Chairman
IFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 = = - 4,960
UrES Executive directors
FERLE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 - - 600 8,600
ZEERE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 3,950 - - 730 4,680
HHELE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,900 - - 360 4,260
RBBEE Nicholas John Mayhew - 3,000 - - 300 3,300
FUTES Non-executive directors
ARELE Chung-Kai Chow 25 - - - - 225
RABERE Kunio Suzuki 180 - - - - 180
B EE Tatsuo Tanaka 180 - - - - 180
RERLE John Wai-Wai Chow 180 - - - - 180
fhRALE Yiu-Ming Ng 180 - - - - 180
EllESeiEs Eiichi Yoshikawa 180 - - - - 180
BIFHTES Independent non-executive directors
Peter G. Birch’ £ Peter Gibbs Birch 269 - - - - 269
i Robert Tsai-To Sze 600 - - - - 600
VN ik Tal-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180
REEEE Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 180 - - - - 180
Chl Total 3,354 22810 - - 1,990 28,154

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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14. EHFHEWMWE &)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. Directors” emoluments (Continued)

BBER
Rt
ARERDTA
(#2%4)
Incentive
bonuses
HER accrued in R E GE
ENdlg respect of ERmx A (BE5)
Salary, services (iF8) (34R5)
allowances rendered Share-based Total
ESZfE  and benefits in the year payment Bk (Restated)
BECZELETZA=T-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2007 Directors’ Fee inkind  (Note 2and 4) (Note 3) Pensions  (Note 4 and 5)
iR Chairman
i ki David Shou-Yeh Wong - 3,570 6,000 - - 9,570
HTES Executive directors
BEREE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 7570 9,000 - 557 17,127
ZEETE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 3950 1,500 - 734 6,184
THRRE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,600 7,000 - 330 10,930
RBELL Nicholas John Mayhew - 2,790 3,800 - 279 6,869
FUTES Non-gxecutive directors
ARELE Chung-Kai Chow 225 - - - - 205
RARERE Kunio Suzuki 180 - - - - 180
B EBEE Tatsuo Tanaka 180 - - - - 180
Sohei Sasakift Sohei Sasaki - - - - - -
BN EE Kosuke Furukawa 83 - - - - 8
RERLE John Wai-Wai Chow 180 - - - - 180
hRREE Yiu-Ming Ng 180 = = - - 180
EllESeits Eiichi Yoshikawa 138 - - - - 138
BukidnES Independent non-executive directors
Peter G. Birch’t £ Peter Gibbs Birch 374 - - - - 374
i Robert Tsai-To Sze 600 - - - - 600
N bt Tal-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180
REEEE Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 180 - - - - 180
ChH Total 2,500 21,480 27,300 - 1,900 53,180

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)

14. EHFHEWMWE &)

i

1.

15.

AEBCHERTERNESHAREE_TTNF
IR MR FE 2 AR - =
ZENF+ A=+ B L ERIREBEAL -

HoDDEFERUTBREERFELEERRZ
A E-TTEF+-A=+—HEFHER
VWEZEENFE-FHEW -

ABAD RERZ TNBREREXA - HRESTT
EERBRERRR 2 mHRTEETEELE
o

R-ZRHF+ - A=+ HAnEHEE_TZT+
FREZBRBRZFEZEEMBRRE_TT
TET A=+ HRERTERES 2 EEE
A ERSIRBRE_STLFLERETNA -
BTN _ZELFNRBRERE_STAFRY
ZRBERZFEZER L  TREE_ZF
TFEEINEFA °

HRERE AR IRITEE AR A T REME
RAIEEZEE  HHZSHE A R 2 5
ERBELIZEEHMEFTA -

K B Bk Z WA I 1R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. Directors” emoluments (Continued)

Note:

1.

15.

The Group has resolved that no incentive bonuses are payable to the
Directors in respect of 2008 performance and services rendered, and no
accrual for incentive bonuses is made as at 31 December 2008.

Such bonuses, in respect of performance and services rendered in 2007,
were accrued as at 31 December 2007 and paid in the first quarter of 2008.

Share-based payment represents the cash payment, being the difference
between the closing market price and exercise price of the share options
on the date when a Director exercised the options granted.

Incentive bonuses in respect of 2007 performance and service accrued
at 31 December 2007 for distribution to relevant Directors subsequent to
31 December 2007 have been restated and included in 2007. Incentive
bonuses received by Directors in early 2007 in respect of 2006
performance and service are excluded from the restated 2007 amounts.

For directors who are also directors of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
or its subsidiaries, remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated total remuneration set out above.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

—RRNE -TTLA

2008 2007
EPER Advances to customers 658,535 181,570
RITER Advances to banks = (778)
FEETFI.B K E AR B Accrued interest and other accounts = 3
658,535 180,795
ERMBFREBRFIL Net charge of impairment losses
on loans and advances
- ERIFEE - Individually assessed 476,335 66,052
- iR E A — Collectively assessed 182,200 114,743
658,535 180,795
2P EE Of which
- FIEEE (BERFEANEEMIE 2 25) - new allowances (including amounts
directly written off in the year) 784,634 331,221
- [E & - releases (46,678) (66,049)
- Y= — recoveries (79,421) (84,377)
WS BR AP F X Net charge to income statement 658,535 180,795

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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16. A7 M Ath ] a2 5 8 4 M FLAY Z
&R

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. Net gain on disposal and revaluation of premises and
other fixed assets

—RRNE -TTLA

2008 2007
TEEGRE (RR) /B# Deficit (charged)/reversed on
revaluation of premises (263) 27,575
TELE 2 F K Net gain from disposal of premises 1,857 =
H A E R B E S 2% (B518) i Net (loss)/gain from disposal of
other fixed assets (184) 68
1,410 27,643

17. HBEWENE LB A P EZF (B
#) s

17. Net (loss)/gain on disposal of and fair value adjustment
on investment properties

—RRNE -TTLA

2008 2007
BEMERABRNFEZF (BER) M= Net (loss)/gain on fair value
adjustment of investment properties (60,437) 118,886
WEYHE D E 2 F = Net gain from disposal of
investment properties - 4,450
(60,437) 123,336

18. W i B i o < Yl A R 1

AEFBZAHHERAREBERE=ZITRER
BAEROERER REBERETA -

RAEEAN  AEBEHHEFEITER T L4F
+Z A=+ BT ADREZERR EiElE
A T BRI R (E E518257,346,00078 7T © &
b B B3 18 74,723,00078 7T 5 34 & H M (B 75 K A
mMEBEHEE o

19. BiYEZ H

78 T 15 B T 1% BR 4 P9 1 AT 8 AR A Uit ) DA B =R
16.5% (T T4 : 17.5%) ZBERF o TN
B TR NEIMESTHER TR MR A S B &
EREBHE ZBITHERGTHE o
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18. Impairment losses charged on available-for-sale

securities

The Group’s investment in available-for-sale securities included
leveraged/structured investment vehicles managed by third party

portfolio managers.

During the year, additional impairment losses totalling HK$257,346,000
were recognised on the Group’s holdings in leveraged/structured
investment vehicles, which had been assessed as impaired as at 31
December 2007. The remaining impairment loss of HK$74,723,000 is

related to investments in other debt and equity securities.

19. Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2007:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)

19. BiIEZH @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. Income tax expense (Continued)

—EENF CZTITLF
2008 2007
REZRIE : Current income tax:
BEBENEFH Hong Kong profits tax 14,487 82,611
IR IE Overseas taxation 18,782 24,266
RBEFETBEE Underprovision in prior years 8,080 =
EFERIE (M 5E47) Deferred income tax (Note 47):
-BRABEEH B — Impact of change of
Hong Kong tax rate (2,203) -
-BREREENEEREE — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (9,771) 25,831
BB Income tax expense 29,375 132,708

AREERBATDEN 2 HRBRIRGE

:Ff‘jTR—v—u‘l— ZE@HHE%(%EQDT

B AR INE

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

—EBEZTN\F CZTTtHF
2008 2007
B B4 BT Vs A Profit before income tax 182,992 1,358,456
R A& s T Tax calculated at domestic tax
ARG E 2 A rates applicable to profits in the
respective countries 30,194 237,730
MIE R BRI Tax effects of:
EREEZTRRVERE Different tax treatment of results of
life insurance business (8,223) (82,137)
H Bl 2R 2 S [F) B X Different taxation rates in
other countries (1,535) (10,268)
EEBE 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (44,514) (52,991)
TR B 2 HH Expenses not deductible 67,379 55,616
LA %R BEWZH U E N T Results of associates and jointly
HEZEGIEB ZFE controlled entities reported net of tax (20,293) (7,938)
7S ﬁE R EE Tax losses not recognised 649 404
2B AR R 2 I EE Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (159) (7,708)
BT ERERIE - R Remeasurement of deferred tax
- change of tax rate (2,203) -
RBEFEDREE Underprovision in prior years 8,080 =
HIEXH Income tax expense 29,375 132,708

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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20. B3R ME AN v A

PR AR A Rl R R Rz R R A i
218,667,000/8 7T (= T F L4 : 549,037,000/
L) °

2. BRE

REBEZE-_ZEEN\F+_A=+—HLEFEREZE
ZEEHF T A=T—HIEFEREXMNRKRE
% Bl A 363,380,000/ Jt (& % 2.287%5 Jr) A
587,707,000/ 7T (& A%2.35870) - B T 2%
EKBEZTT N\FERPRS o

n

al

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$218,667,000 (2007:
HK$549,037,000).

21. Dividends

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 December 2008 and 2007
were HK$363,380,000 (HK$2.28 per share) and HK$587,707,000
(HK$2.35 per share) respectively. The Directors do not propose the

payment of a final dividend in respect of 2008.

—SENF "TTLF
Company 2008 2007

BEfHRERE - SR EERA0.687% T

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.68

(ZZEZLF : FRERRO0.75%ETT) (2007: HK$0.75) per ordinary share 175,814 187,566
RS - & Proposed final dividend of HK$Nil
ZTELF  GRE®R0.755T) (2007: HK$0.75) per ordinary share - 187,566
175,814 375,132
22, HRERN 22. Earnings per share
—EENE _—ZTTLF
2008 2007
(B 7T) (&7T)
(HKS) (HK$)
FRER Earnings per share
BN Basic 0.42 4.20
e Diluted 0.42 419

GREARZR TR R EF106,193,0008 T (==
T+ : 1,050,200,00078 7T) & F N B 21T H%D
hn#E F 15 5 255,840,4770% (— BT + £
250,088,234f%) 5T & o

G E B A TR R EF1106,193,0008 7T (==
T+ : 1,050,200,000757T) & F N EB 21T H%D
B0 #E SF 15 #£ 255,840,477 (Z B F L &
250,639,267[%) W i FT A £ MRE T E SR
ETAFHESE o

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$106,193,000 (2007: HK$1,050,200,000) and the weighted average
number of 255,840,477 (2007: 250,088,234) shares in issue during the

year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$106,193,000 (2007: HK$1,050,200,000) and the weighted average
number of 255,840,477 (2007: 250,639,267) shares in issue during the

year after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)

23.  Bl& R AR AT M AR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. Cash and balances with banks

—EENE —ZZTHEF
3] Group 2008 2007
e RERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 2,514,066 2,498,578
BRI 2 HRTE 3R Money at call and short notice 10,294,461 9,369,887
12,808,527 11,868,465

24. FEHERBNES XA PEEHE
HEC S B 3k AR 25 B < il o

24. Trading securities and financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

—EENE —ZTZTLF
] Group 2008 2007
FIEEERBENES Trading securities:
BESES Debt securities:
-BE LM — Listed in Hong Kong 923,292 578,783
- BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 17,034 20,094
-3k — Unlisted 1,268,916 2,396,214
2,209,242 2,995,091
MBS Equity securities:
-BEEM — Listed in Hong Kong 2,587 185,284
- BB AN T — Listed outside Hong Kong 80,809 552,360
-JEET - REESHER — Unlisted, interests in
investment funds 10,503 936,081
93,899 1,673,725
BIEEERENESF BT Total trading securities 2,303,141 4,668,816
LAAFEGFZEEHE Financial assets at fair value
AFABZENEREE through profit or loss:
B ES Debt securities
- BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 135,364 =
S i - Unlisted 3,473,482 2,404,872
3,608,846 2,404,872
REEMES Equities securities:
-BELEM - Listed in Hong Kong 15,104 27,176
- BB AN T — Listed outside Hong Kong 140,608 105,931
-3k kT - Unlisted 494,316 32,896
650,028 166,003
ARAFERF=Z B HZE ABREN Total financial assets at fair value
CREELTE through profit or loss 4,258,874 2,570,875
FHIEEERZNESRURAFERTE Total trading securities and financial
BEESFHFTABENEMEELE assets at fair value through
profit or loss 6,562,015 7,239,691

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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24, FEHERBNES KA PEEHE
H I8 B 5t AR 35 9 S il & % (80

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Trading securities and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

—EBEENE —ZTTLF

£ Group 2008 2007

BREBKESFANER : Included within debt securities are:
BREERIEEERAERES — Government bonds included

Z BN ES in trading securities 1,812,779 2,233,712

- A WIFERE — Certificates of deposit held = 381,171

- EMBNES — Other government bonds 1,471,392 886,463

- HMEBHEH — Other debt securities 2,533,917 1,898,617

5,818,088 5,399,963

RZZEENGF+ A=+ — AW EERBFHIE
BNES (2 +F : FE LS EEER
BREHFRTIH{EE 52,033,947,00078 7T 2 N iE
Ao BEEISFEERTESRERUTNEAEHE
EIINEEREBHEFNEERTIHIEZIEE) °

NAFEFEAEEHABRGSNEREETER
BEMEABRITETAZKRERE - EM5ER
EARMBANFEAELEEFH T ABENE
P17 prsH o

REEAN  AEBRFEEEARKEEHHE
RES A MIHEEE51590,802,0008 T (=
THF E) ZRERVHIEEHA - BRALE
oMz FEHRHITES0 °

AFEGFEAHEH T ABENEREE (B
%HT’EEEFH/ BRE 7)) IREITHIBR RIS T 40
T~

As at 31 December 2008, there were no government or non-government
bond pledged (2007: Exchange Fund debt securities included in trading
securities above with a market value of HK$2,033,947,000 were
pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s trading and market-

making activities in Exchange Fund debts).

Included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
primarily investment notes with embedded derivatives. The market risk
of these notes is substantially offset by deposits from customers

designated at fair value through profit or loss.

During the year, the Group reclassified trading investments with a total
market value at the time of reclassification of HK$590,802,000 (2007:
Nil), into the available-for-sale category. Details relating to this

reclassification are set out in Note 30.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including trading

securities) are analysed by categories of issuer as follows:

—EBEENE —ZTTLF

£ Group 2008 2007
- PRI AI A RERTT - Central governments and

central banks 3,356,270 3,113,347

- NEHIE - Public sector entities 311,469 112,207
- IRIT R H A & RS — Banks and other financial

institutions 1,381,718 1,589,828

-1 — Corporate entities 1,483,566 2,369,012

— HAt — Others 28,992 55,297

6,562,015 7,239,691

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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e TR

REZZENFT-_A=+—BARIBMITLETAS
HzBBEAREREQFEDT ¢

25.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Derivative financial instruments

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

their fair values as of 31 December 2008 were as follows:

RN EBELE ATE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =R
5 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) REEERECTETIA 1)  Derivatives held for trading
a) YMNEPTAETA a)  Foreign exchange
derivatives
EHREEEH Forward and future
contracts 62,042,858 266,145 (297,318)
Bk Currency swaps 1,045,229 8,362 (39,759)
B8 A Koo AN PE B A Currency options
purchased and written 23,321,550 40,001 (38,141)
b) FIEITETA b) Interest rate derivatives
F=HE Interest rate futures 323,175 7,710 (448)
7 &= 42 5 Interest rate swaps 16,743,546 202,140 (284,236)
B A Koo H A = AR e Interest rate options
purchased and written 1,547,570 23,205 (20,632)
c) BmMIUTETA c)  Equity derivatives
A R0 v s I R Equity options purchased
and written 79,323 4,943 (4,936)
d FEMITETA d)  Credit derivatives
ERBHNZKREDN Credit default swaps 236,586 16,709 (16)
RHIEEERAZZ2MAETA Total derivative assets/
BE/(BE) A& (liabilities) held for trading 105,339,837 569,215 (685,486)
2) FHEEHRABRIZITETIAR 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a) HEURFELH a)  Derivatives designated
ZITETA as fair value hedges
M) = 4= 5 Interest rate swaps 13,402,453 397,443  (1,568,246)
FHELE HRRZZITETLAR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BE A held for hedging 13,402,453 397,443  (1,568,246)
3) KREHEANHFEIEHF 3)  Derivatives not qualified as hedges
A& BEEEUARTE for accounting purposes but
FTEBEBEH T ABRN which are managed in conjunction
eI A —REE with the financial instruments
ZOTET A designated at fair value through
profit or loss
BikiEm Currency swaps 368,499 491 (14,423)
7| R 2 51 Interest rate swaps 3,658,750 155,337 -
PEEEHHRREZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BE A not qualified as hedges 4,027,249 155,828 (14,423)
EERZITESMITA Total recognised derivative
BE/(BR) A financial assets/(liabilities) 122,769,539 1,122,486  (2,268,155)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. fid4m T 2 @)

25. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

R-ZZELFT-_A=+—"BARIBMILETAS

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

NzaBAeREATFENT their fair values as of 31 December 2007 were as follows:
R BELHE ATE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =R
5 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) BEEBERABZMTETIAR 1)  Derivatives held for trading
a) SMEPTAETAR a)  Foreign exchange derivatives
Lﬁﬁ KHEEH Forward and future contracts 71,133,159 207,811 (289,621)
Bk Currency swaps 304,956 = (28,892)
8\ R0k H SN B Currency options purchased
and written 9,729,423 141,167 (139,271)
b) FIE{TETA b) Interest rate derivatives
| =tz B Interest rate swaps 18,454,045 97,786 (92,164)
B8\ R o ) o R Interest rate options
purchased and written - - -
) HEmMiTETA c)  Equity derivatives
BB\ Kok i o 1 HA A Equity options purchased
and written 628,909 4,641 (4,143)
d FEMTETA d)  Credit derivatives
EREHRBRED Credit default swaps 390,045 - (312)
HIEEER®RZMETA Total derivative assets/
BE,/(BfR) A (liabilities) held for trading 100,640,537 451,405 (554,403)
2) REHHRRABZITETA 2)  Derivatives held for hedging
a) EEULFEEHA a) Derivatives designated as
ZITETAR fair value hedges
i &4 55 Interest rate swaps 16,164,559 198,254 (399,531)
REH RS ZITETAR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (A& held for hedging 16,164,559 198,254 (399,531)
3) IREFERTFHE LR 3)  Derivatives not qualified as hedges
R#% - BEEENAATE for accounting purposes but
FEHHZEFAERN which are managed in conjunction
ERIAE—REE with the financial instruments
ZOTHET AR designated at fair value through
profit or loss
EkEGR Currency swaps 443,337 59,052 (34)
A % 4 2 Interest rate swaps 8,160,097 49,336 (16,813)
IEEIEH AR ZTETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BRE) A not qualified as hedges 8,603,434 108,388 (16,847)
EERZITEERIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/ (Aff) A assets/(liabilities) 125,408,530 758,047 (970,781)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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25. fid4m T 2 @)

BEREMTETAZ A FEREZ B AR &850
RERFNTE -

LR R B EEERIET B MR AR KBET L Z
EERREERII B BERERINAR (B
RERENXBAN) NEERRNESE £

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The effect of valid bilateral netting agreements has been taken into

account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures (including credit default swaps) calculated under Basel |l

basis and without taking into account the effect of bilateral netting

HIEAT : arrangement that the Group entered into, are as follows:
—EENE —ZTLF
3 Group 2008 2007

PTETH Derivatives

fERE %) Exchange rate contracts 528,816 508,850
FEEH Interest rate contracts 410,097 141,282
Hihead Other contracts 13,097 18,563
952,010 668,695

WETEZANHBEAERLEEHNAR S S
WARKRER R & -

EERRMEREHZ2EEELER HjZ<<$E
TEERN)RAMAE 28R FEMB 2
BARTRZEUFRZEEL 'Jﬁﬁﬁ’\éfﬂﬁm g

SRR R G R ) AR M k2. 85 5 o

ANEE BB AR R B 2 2 A B 8 R
BREERREBGRIEER 2 EFHFITE - AlE
EEBEHFREETABZBNRETEE R

¥ T B 7 #5148 41,049,171,0008 T (T =T+

F : 518/45314,815,000/87T) © ¥ 1A B FE(G Y

2| B2 2 U 25 7 1,033,660,0007%8 T (— T =+

4 : 25 5276,545,000/87T) °

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the balance sheet date, they do not

represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the

counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in
Note 2.8.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category,
available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities by fair value
hedges in the form of interest rate. The losses on the hedging
instruments were HK$1,049,171,000 (2007: a loss of HK$314,815,000).
The gains on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk were
HK$1,033,660,000 (2007: a gain of HK$276,545,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Advances and other accounts

—ERNE —TTLF
% Group 2008 2007
BAERKBK Loans and advances to individuals
-ERAF — Credit cards 3,482,972 3,395,440
- RIBE K — Mortgages 18,526,215 18,476,883
- HAfth - Others 3,802,967 3,988,516
TEERRBK Loans and advances to corporate entities
- BHIE — Term loans 10,205,960 10,066,194
- RIBE R — Mortgages 8,496,416 8,629,646
-B5mE - Trade finance 4,638,482 5,615,014
- EAfty — Others 11,846,061 11,122,938
XEERBE Gross advances to customers 60,999,073 61,294,631
IRITER AR Gross advances to banks 179,226 160,426
61,178,299 61,455,057
Wk - BEERE Less: impairment allowances
— (& B FE1& — Individually assessed (550,909) (142,589)
- tR G FTE — Collectively assessed (298,645) (216,968)
(849,554) (359,557)
H fth & 2= (Fi7E38) Other assets (Note 38) 3,283,472 5,056,044
BREEER K EKRZIELER Investments in securities included
2 BHEE (Mizxa7) in the loans and receivables
category (Note 27) 6,896,646 -
ZHEEREEMER B Advances and other accounts 70,508,863 66,151,544

LB FEREEDEE 5 E5449,373,000745 70
—EE L : 735,804,000/ 7T) ©

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Included in gross advances to customers above are trade bills of

HK$449,373,000 (2007: HK$735,804,000).
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(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. HHERLILMBIEE @)
(F) % P S0k S 3k = Nl 4R 1 i M 3 IR

7= and advances to customers

26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
BB 2 - 18 B A7 Ah

Impairment allowances -
Individual assessment

RZREXN Hit &5
£8 Group Mortgages Others Total
BABRRBFHMELEE 2®E  Movement in impairment allowances

on loans and advances to individuals
—TELE-HA-BREH Balance at 1 January 2007 9,190 2,443 11,633
(B &5 18 2] Impairment losses reversed (5,099) (156) (5,255)
ReLEEE M EE Loans written off as uncollectible (4,126) (1,073) (5,199)
WEBREEMIE 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 3,592 1,413 5,005
BT (B B 5 Unwind of discount on allowance (319) - (319)
—ET+FF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 3,238 2,627 5,865
“EENFE-A—BNER Balance at 1 January 2008 3,238 2,627 5,865
BB B Impairment losses charged 910 1,304 2,214
RELEBEFMHEE Loans written off as uncollectible (1,837) (1,161) (2,998)
W Bl B A sE 2 B Recoveries of advances written off

in previous years 1,810 468 2,278
(B 2 4 1 R (B o) 3 Unwind of discount on allowance (194) = (194)
—BENF+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2008 3,927 3,238 7,165

BEEE - GETME
Impairment allowances -
Collective assessment
R+ BBEN Hity =Ei
58 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERERBREELERFEZ Movement in impairment
) allowances on loans and

advances to individuals
—EELF A BN Balance at 1 January 2007 49,428 22,706 40,564 112,698
REEBERE (B #) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 77,459 (16,370) 37,813 98,902
RELEBEFMHEE Loans written off as uncollectible (120,562) = (67,282) (187,844)
W Bl B A s 2 B Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 49,330 - 22,672 72,002
—EEL+F+-F=+—H At 31 December 2007 55,655 6,336 33,767 95,758
—TENF-HA-BrEH Balance at 1 January 2008 55,655 6,336 33,767 95,758
HEBERE (B#) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 63,691 (8,351) 59,576 119,916
AEEEEFRMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (103,212) = (60,918) (164,130)
WEBREEMIEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 23,330 - 48,313 71,643
Hh Az Other adjustments - - 56 56
—EENFE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2008 39,464 2,985 80,794 123,243

RFEeMEBERLE —TTN\FER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. FHHEEHKAEMEE @) 26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(H) % 5 883K B Bk 2 s 15 4 45 1R JE 3R (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

= () and advances to customers (Continued)
A EER - 185G
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHEX EZRE
Term BEBEMN Trade Hith =Ei
£8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBH Movement in impairment
HEEEZ2E allowances on loans and
advances to corporate entities
—EELFE-HA-HNEH Balance at 1 January 2007 6,651 6,367 43,020 68,058 124,096
RE BB & Impairment losses charged 255 927 33,443 36,679 71,304
REEEEE M Loans written off as uncollectible (6,391) (1,850) (30,760) (21,824) (60,825)
W Bl E R EEME 2 &R Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 634 321 4,189 2,193 7,337
B ZE 4T 3 (A B 5 Unwind of discount on allowance (57) 17) (403) 4,711) (5,188)
S S S e = At 31 December 2007 1,092 5,748 49,489 80,395 136,724
—ZT N\F-A—HmNEH Balance at 1 January 2008 1,092 5,748 49,489 80,395 136,724
BB IR Impairment losses charged 86,950 21,988 195,395 169,788 474,121
REEEEERM R Loans written off as uncollectible (921) (2,120) (44,777) (18,643) (66,461)
W Bl B A S sE 2 5% Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 93 253 2,966 2,180 5,492
LB 2 45 1 R (B [0 3% Unwind of discount on allowance (14) (45) (656) (5,417) (6,132)
—EENE+=-A=1t—H At 31 December 2008 87,200 25,824 202,417 228,303 543,744
REEE - RETHE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEN BEZME
Term BREN Trade Hith &%
£8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBR Movement in impairment
HEEEZ2E allowances on loans and
advances to corporate entities
o e ==} =23 Balance at 1 January 2007 14,790 15,995 19,009 56,098 105,892
EEE (&) /IR #& Impairment losses
(reversed)/charged (2,410) 4,686 (1,653) 15,996 16,619
RAEEEEFMHEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (1,334) (1,334)
W Bl E R EEME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years - - - 33 33
—EELF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2007 12,380 20,681 17,356 70,793 121,210
—EENF-HA—HmNEH Balance at 1 January 2008 12,380 20,681 17,356 70,793 121,210
HEBERE (B8) Impairment losses charged/
(reversed) 4,231 (552) (2,964) 61,569 62,284
REEEBEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - = (8,043) (8,043)
W Bl E R EEME 2 &R Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years - - - 8 8
BE 5, B HL A 5 B Exchange and other adjustments 583 12 94 (746) (57)
—EENFE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2008 17,194 20,141 14,486 123,581 175,402

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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26. KSR H @0

(&) SA7 S0k B Bk - e MERH B A 3L At
HR JH 2 s 18 e 4 IR JE IR SR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

and advances to banks, and accrued interest and other

accounts
WAEZEE-
e
Impairment
allowances-
Collective assessment
BITERKR FEFIEM
B HhBR1A
Loans Accrued
and interest
advances and other
= Group to banks accounts
RITERRER » REGFASMEA1ARIE Movement in impairment
BEEEZ2EE allowances on loans and advances
to banks, and accrued interest and
other accounts

—ETLF-A—HNER Balance at 1 January 2007 778 -
B 5 18 B Impairment losses reversed (778) -
—EEt+HF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 - -
—EENE-A—BHNER Balance at 1 January 2008 = =
LB 5 98 2] Impairment losses reversed = =
—EENF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2008 - -
WA
18 Bl FE 4k

Impairment allowances-
Individual assessment

FEST R 20
H BRI
Accrued interest and
&= Group other accounts
FESHFI B F0 H f BR 18 Movement in impairment
HEEE 22T allowances on accrued interest

—EELFE-H-HNER
Rl BB 1R BT
RAEEE B RMIEER

“EELFT-A=+-A
—EE\F-A-BOEH
RERRRE

SR B 1 M 8

—2B\F+=A=+-H

178
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and other accounts
Balance at 1 January 2007

Impairment losses charged
Loans written off as uncollectible

At 31 December 2007
Balance at 1 January 2008
Impairment losses charged

Loans written off as uncollectible

At 31 December 2008
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(W) BAG7EF P Bk Je Bk 2 b i 15 HE
BRI

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(c) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease

receivables as follows:

—EENE _—ZTTLF
& Group 2008 2007
BEERERE 2 EIWARE Gross investment in finance
lease receivables:
—F A Not later than 1 year 3,667,280 3,437,842
—FUAEERF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 3,628,393 4,093,051
FFE Later than 5 years 3,110,168 2,905,324
10,405,841 10,436,217
BEMREZ KRR Z @& WA Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (1,363,390) (1,884,718)
BEHERE R Net investment in finance leases 9,042,451 8,551,499
MEMEREFHEAR 2HTWT ¢ The net investment in finance
leases is analysed as follows:
—F YR Not later than 1 year 3,293,847 2,984,690
—FUEERF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 3,216,505 3,517,454
FFE Later than 5 years 2,532,099 2,049,355
9,042,451 8,551,499
RZEZENF+-_A=+—H L@ EHEE There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross

BREBBNREEERINBER(CETLE
fm

—EE\F+Z A=+ -RZAEEERFREE
ERERTARE 2 BERE YR IEL A
& &t & 152,666,0008 T (=T T £ F :
63,355,000 7T) °

investment in finance lease above as at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included in

the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2008 of the Group
amounted to HK$152,666,000 (2007: HK$63,355,000).

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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27, SRETE RO M MR I S 8 2
&

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. Investments in securities included in the loans and

receivables category

—EBEENE —ZTTLF
5 Group 2008 2007
BREEERMERZIEERZEFEE Investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables
category
—RERF R R T AT E R — At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 5,113,559 -
— 1R SRR AN B BR — At amortised cost 1,783,087 =
6,896,646 -

BREERMEUGRIERR 2 BHEE TN EE
ARAEHERATEF E - BERELEFH B
2 FFIBE AT FESO ©

BIEEER R EBGRIAER 2 & F&E S
N

Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category

were reclassified from the available-for-sale category in the year. Details

relating to this reclassification are set out in Note 30.

Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category

are analysed as follows:

—EENE —“ZTTALF
S Group 2008 2007
BESES Debt securities:
— BB L™ - Listed in Hong Kong 187,820 =
—BBLAIN £ — Listed outside Hong Kong 5,496,534 -
—3EET — Unlisted 1,212,292 -
6,896,646 -
EmESZTE Market value of listed securities 4,828,680 =
BREEEHES Included within debt securities are:
—FEWNFERE — Certificates of deposit held = =
— HEihfE5E 5 - Other debt securities 6,896,646 -
6,896,646 -
BIETEE R R E R RIELE R Investments in securities included
L EHFRERFTHRBERN ST ¢ in the loans and receivables
category are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows:
—iR17 R H A m S — Banks and other financial institutions 4,763,102 =
— 1 — Corporate entities 2,133,544 =
6,896,646 -

R-_BEENF+_A=+—"HBH  E@EAE
57,429,000/ T (ZEZF : #) 2T ES
BRI ERZER T I ES s -

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

As at 31 December 2008, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$57,429,000 (2007: Nil) was pledged with unrelated financial

institutions under repurchase agreements.




B 265 i A P i

(AB®E T T3 7R)

28. Wt HEESR

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. Available-for-sale securities

—EENE _—ZTTLF

= Group 2008 2007
BEES Debt securities:
-BHELE™M — Listed in Hong Kong 1,408,161 1,737,690
- BB LASN TR — Listed outside Hong Kong 7,651,419 12,829,696
-3k — Unlisted 5,055,866 10,502,553
14,115,446 25,069,939
MBS Equity securities:
-BEEM — Listed in Hong Kong 37,189 97,690
- BB AN T — Listed outside Hong Kong 237,905 433,648
-3k LT — Unlisted
-RIEEES 2= — Interests in investment funds 30,868 152,024
- HA — Others 302,787 73,690
608,749 757,052
A EEAFARE Total available-for-sale securities 14,724,195 25,826,991
BEEEEES Included within debt securities are:
- BB NFRE — Certificates of deposit held - 970,338
- B ERE 5 — Other debt securities 14,115,446 24,099,601
14,115,446 25,069,939
Al B FE S5 Available-for-sale securities are
RETHBENSTAT analysed by categories of issuers
as follows:
- R RIEFA AR RERTT — Central governments and
central banks 1,037,592 2,339,796
- NEE — Public sector entities 91,063 112,226
- RIT R E S R - Banks and other financial institutions 5,773,998 12,628,589
-1 — Corporate entities 7,820,014 10,738,228
- HAftb - Others 1,528 8,152
14,724,195 25,826,991

RZEZENF+_A=+—H REERLE
399,022,000/ 7T 2 IEBTEH B 12 Bl B 17 s 47
TIHBESHREE (ST LF  MBEAEA
704,530,000/ 7T 2 INEE S EBBHEEFTH
BeERUIRAEBEIINEESEHRESNE
ERTHBHERED) °

REEAN  AEEBRAIHEEESFERRETS
R EF D A MI%EEA516,519,483,000/5 7T

ZETLF B EEIARERERRER
IR - BB D E 2 FIEHAMIFES0

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

As at 31 December 2008, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$399,022,000 was pledged with unrelated financial
institutions under repurchase agreements (2007: Exchange Fund debt
securities with a market value of HK$704,530,000 were pledged with
the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s trading and market-making activities

in Exchange Fund debts).

During the year, the Group reclassified investments in debt securities
with a total market value at the time of reclassification of
HK$6,519,483,000 (2007: Nil), out of the available-for-sale category into
the loans and receivables category. Details relating to this

reclassification are set out in Note 30.




182

B 265 i A P i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)

29. ¥HEIWBS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. Held-to-maturity securities

—RRNE -TTLA

£ Group 2008 2007
B FE Debt securities
- BB ETH — Listed outside Hong Kong 4,094,474 4,086,699
-k — Unlisted 2,290,457 414,026
6,384,931 4,500,725
rWmESZTE Market value of listed securities 3,572,127 3,880,589
BREEEHES Included within debt securities are:
- BB NFRE — Certificates of deposit held 265,000 4,833
- H A B H — Other debt securities 6,119,931 4,495,892
6,384,931 4,500,725
REIHES Held-to-maturity securities are
RETHBERSTAT analysed by issuer as follows:
- R R KA RERTT — Central governments and
central banks 1,135,177 -
AN - Public sector entities 14,917 10,532
- RIT R E A R - Banks and other financial
institutions 4,484,645 4,111,797
-1 — Corporate entities 750,192 378,396

R_ZZEZENF+_A=+—"8 EEALE
178,918,000/ L (ZZZT £ 4F : ) ZIEHIFES
BIEEERZER TIEEES BgE -

RER  AEBEFS>EREDBEAMBEES
i 1,201,087,000%8 &t (= T T £ &
4,141,610,000/5 ) 2 Al B E BB ESF BIFE
FEE S RMASEERAZSESFNEME
E AR T E

f

)DIJH

ki

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

6,384,931 4,500,725

As at 31 December 2008, non-government bond with a total carrying
value of HK$178,918,000 (2007: Nil) was pledged with unrelated

financial institutions under repurchase agreements.

The Group reclassified available-for-sale debt securities with a total
market value at the time of reclassification of HK$1,201,087,000 (2007:
HK$4,141,610,000) as held-to-maturity securities, reflecting a change

in the Group’s intention on holding these securities to maturity.




B 265 i A P i

(AB®E T T3 7R)

30. &RhEEZEN M

AEEAN  AEERFKERERSENTEH D
BHTESRMEERNHEERR - ZFHFITE
EREESTNTFEERREUKENESE - BT
BEFEEHALEZRE - AEEREE-F
ZNFE=FHRZRREBT LB LBERTE
WEBNBRIREKNFEREM -

BN REERAHEEEFERTEF VRS
BMEERERKEYGIBER - AEEREH S
BREEMEARENETRRRXKEZIHNAR
BEREEH DR 2R R EYGR -

BN BEZeRMEERNSENPER 2 AFET
RIDR

Financial assets reclassified in the
year ended 31 December 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. Reclassification of financial assets

During the year, the Group reclassified non-derivative trading financial
assets which do not meet the definition of loans and receivables and
are no longer held for the purpose of selling them in the near future out
of the held for trading category into the available-for-sale category. The
Group believes that the deterioration of the world’s financial markets
that occurred during the third quarter of 2008 represents a rare

circumstance that justifies such a reclassification.

In addition, the Group reclassified financial assets out of the available-
for-sale category into the loans and receivables category. The Group
had the intention and ability to hold these reclassified loans and
receivables for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.

The fair values of reclassified financial assets as of the respective dates

of reclassification are disclosed below:

BE-ZEENF+=-A=1+—H

LEEEREHIBEZEHEE REHFIBHZATVE

Fair values on date of

reclassification

RHEEBERRETSOBERAELEE
Reclassified from trading to

available-for-sale

RAEHESEFHEAEERRERIA
Reclassified from available-for-sale

to loans and receivables

RIFIEE B BB AR EH D8 AR HH S 5856
BER - BEESHEB A FEAE94,314,0007 7T
MEEHEEZLE  E1E 524,956,000/ T °

RZZBBENFE+T-A=+—H =REERNEHH
BrzemMEENAFTEREEED A
6,284,610,000/% 7T 12 7,275,321,000/ ¢ (ZZF
+&F  ABRHFZZEF SR o

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

REMESIREESRE

Investments in equity securities 590,802
and investment funds
BB FRE

Investments in debt securities 6,519,483

In relation to those trading assets that were reclassified to the available-
for-sale category, assets with a fair value of HK$94,314,000 at the date
of reclassification were subsequently disposed of at a loss of
HK$24,956,000.

As at 31 December 2008, the fair values and carrying values of financial
assets reclassified during the current year are HK$6,284,610,000 and
HK$7,275,321,000 respectively (2007: no such reclassification
permitted).
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30. &mEEZENSE @)

(FF) D441 S 2 PR 2 28 ) 50T 20 J9T 4 b
7 7 ] A3k 4 8 UR

AEBERBERAREB EN I BEREE
MR Tz e - BE - ARSI -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. Reclassification of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Reclassification of financial assets from the held for
trading category to the available-for-sale category

The Group has recognised the following gains, losses, income and
expenses in the income statement in respect of the reclassified financial

assets.

BE-_ZZ\F+-A=+-HLEE BE-TTLF
For the year ended 31 December 2008 @+ —-A=+—H
ENOREE BNoEA HFEE

After Before For the year ended

reclassification reclassification 31 December 2007

NEERE Fair value gains - 215,218 469,430
& B WA Dividend income 3,496 7,474 6,494
& 7 EE Loss on disposal (24,956) = =

REERXN -  RFHEEERSENEFH B AH
LEEzeMEE  EEHBEREATEERX
TE e am R 2 S 1 1 P T 5R 2 2 %E /91,386,000
BT ERGEPREIA/AREEEZEER
29,085,000 T (ZEFLF : NATAREEFHD
)

(&) € mY Bk £ 350050 50T 20 S5 <0 il 0 7
Bk e M Wk B UR

AEFBERBERAREH ER I BEREE
MR Tz e - BiE - ARSI -

During the year, a fair value loss of HK$91,386,000 was recognised in
revaluation reserve in equity and HK$29,085,000 was recognised as
impairment loss in income statement after the reclassification on
financial assets reclassified out of the trading category and into the
available-for-sale category (year ended 31 December 2007: no such

reclassification permitted).
(b) Reclassification of financial assets from the available-for-
sale category to the loans and receivables category

The Group has recognised the following gains, losses, income and
expenses in the income statement in respect of the reclassified financial

assets.

BE-SENFt-A=1t—-RALEE HE_TTLHF

For the year ended 31 December2008 @+ —-A=+—H

BN ER B2 EA tFE

After Before For the year ended

reclassification reclassification 31 December 2007

FMEHA Interest income 187,042 217,494 400,830

RUESHAOBSRMEEDEAFELRLZHE TN
MESTETEEH - WEEERN KRR EE S|
B EBESF O AEBRRER - WHEN 2 FR
METANATFEESEHRE - TR2FEELE
EREEMESAZ [AATFELFHHEEST
B 7 %] -

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Certain reclassified financial assets have been hedged by interest rate
derivatives under fair value hedge arrangements. The changes in the
value of these assets attributable to changes in interest rate risk has
been recognised in the income statement and have been offset by the
fair value changes in the hedging interest rate derivatives. The total net
loss shown below has been included in the “Net loss arising from

financial instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. Reclassification of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Reclassification of financial assets from the available-for-
sale category to the loans and receivables category
(Continued)

BZ-_ZZN\F+-HA=1+-HLEE HE_ZTTLF
A=

For the year ended 31 December 2008 @+ —-HA=+—H
ENOEE BN EA tFE
After Before For the year ended

reclassification reclassification 31 December 2007

W ZEFOEEREEZ
NFEWKE (BE)

RS 2 MEITET A
NFE (BB s

RN EFSE (BE)

REFARENDEA - AEBEERERAZE
HEEAZERTHEEESFERPEN »EA
BRREWRGEER e HEERARTFERBE
355,436,000/ 7T (TEAFE RN EFH 9 882 Al
BEE RZTTLF+-A=1+—BHHEHER
BReBGERZ2ENRRBENATEER A
437,883,000/ 7T) °

BN EARERMERFIEZ CRHEENERSF
R FE510% °

TRRRNEDBRAAEEFBEMAIEEH S
Z e @B EWE Z AR RER 2R BR ¢

Fair value gain/(loss) on the hedged 672,499 (111,038) 30,733

reclassified financial assets

Fair value (loss)/gain on the hedging (671,392) 95,889 (55,911)
interest rate derivatives

Net fair value gain/(loss) 1,107 (15,149) (25,178)

In the current year before reclassification, the Group recognised in the
revaluation reserve in equity a fair value loss in the amount of
HK$355,436,000 on financial assets reclassified out of the available-
for-sale category into the loans and receivables category (the fair value
loss recognised in revaluation reserve in equity as at 31 December 2007
on available-for-sale assets reclassified in the current period was
HK$437,883,000).

Effective interest rates on financial assets reclassified into loans and

receivables averaged to 5.10% p.a.
Presented below are the estimated amounts of undiscounted cash flows
the Group expected to recover fro these reclassified financial assets as

at the date of reclassification:

—FBE MELE

—FEHUTF EMEF ZERF BEELE

1year Between1 Between 2 Over

orless and2years and5 years 5 years

BEBEHEE Investments in debt securities 358,424 359,424 1,076,971 9,068,188

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008




186

B 265 i A P i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(AB®E T T3 7R)

3. BEAREZE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. Investments in associates

—RRNE -TTLA

£H Group 2008 2007
[EBIEEEFE Share of net assets 787,838 559,611
[EES Goodwill 344,623 283,359
A Total 1,132,461 842,970

—EBEENE —ZTLHEHF
55 Group 2008 2007
—H—H At 1 January 842,970 57,647
FRILEE Addition during the year 179,718 703,339
FRLE Disposal during the year (41,981) -
FEIEBRT B 4 Share of results, net of tax 120,589 45,499
B E b REE Share of other reserves - 4,696
MEHER Exchange differences 31,165 31,789
+=—HA=+—H At 31 December 1,132,461 842,970

R-FTN\F+-A=+—RAZ2HBLRTM
T~

The following is a full list of associates as at 31 December 2008:

= R & B it B FrikfEZB DL

Place of Percentage of

BB incorporation FEEKR interest in

Name and operation Principal activities ownership
BERTT hEARAFE HRAT

Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 20%

EEERITZIRARAARBZMERTARIR
IHA - KTRITR_ZZENFTA-+—HBE
PIBFS RSN 2 3% 1R - A BB RITHGDER
BE0% - R -_ZETLFERBE_ZTT/N\FTH
“t+—HZA  ERAKEREBSEBERTT
BEw 0 UNATERMOE L RIEMBER M4 E
BRTEBRENTEN  AEEREERITAE

BEAT .

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

The investment in Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”) is held by the
Company’s subsidiary, DSB. On 21 October 2008, following the
completion of a further acquisition of 3% equity interest, DSB’s total
interest in BOCQ was increased to 20%. In 2007 and prior to 21 October
2008, BOCQ was treated as an associate on the ground that the Group
through its participation in BOCQ’s board meetings, review and
approval of strategies and policies, could exercise significant influence
on BOCQ.
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31. Investments in associates (Continued)

The following is a full list of associates as at 31 December 2007:

11 % 8 it 1 ik fEZE DL

Place of Percentage of

Z18 incorporation FEEK interest in

Name and operation Principal activities ownership
R ASREBRD AR A A mEE AR AR RB2

Great Wall Life Insurance People’s Republic of China Insurance 20%

Company Limited

BERTT HREE A RHFE HRAT

Bank of Chongqging People’s Republic of China Banking 17%

EZZSTN\FEY  RBEASREROERAA
([RMAE] - fIRANEE—FEEEAR) EME
MRERER o RNEEZFE IR E (G H) L FIRRE I N
B AR S B R A SR ARE TR ZER
20% - EZEZENEFE— AR - AEEERBAS
IR E BB E N AR ERERIREHY BEN SRR
NATEFEEEEZ T A BERNESREE °

32. S H5E  EEE B

£H

Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited (“GWL”, a former associate
of the Group) increased its share capital at the beginning of 2008. The
Group did not subscribe in full its proportionate share of the additional
equity interest resulting in the Group’s shareholding in GWL falling
below 20%. The Group’s investment in GWL has been derecognised
as an investment in associate and reclassified as a financial asset at

fair value through profit or loss since January 2008.

32. Investments in jointly controlled entities

—EENE 2T LF

FE LMD - AR
H—HEEGE R 2 8 REUR

FE15 KB IR 1

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Group 2008 2007

Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
Loan receivable from a jointly

controlled entity 37,571 47,124

57,571 67,124

Share of post-acquisition reserves 2,402 (3,272)

59,973 63,852
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32. LI E R E @)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. Investments in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2008:

hHEEEZED L

Percentage of

effective interest

in ownership

= 1A ith 2 FTEXEBREE I

8 Place of Principal activities
Name incorporation and place of operation
R AR A R A A BB REZKR - BB
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding,
Hong Kong

RN SRR ERA

REETEER AT BB ZHREARSE - HE
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Trustee and custodian

AEBERBERER AR 2 EmmfBATAKR
FIRTTRA - MRBEEAR QA RBHZR A
BARZZEAKBAT -

L HEZEHERZ ERERRAGIER - 1R
—REBERGEREDL °

33. FHE A A #E

services for retirement
fund schemes, Hong Kong

13.333%

13.333%

The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by

DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company

Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank Consortium Holding

Limited.

The loan receivable from a jointly controlled entity is secured and is

extended on normal commercial terms.

33. Investments in subsidiaries

—EBEENE —ZTTLF
NG Company 2008 2007
’E - EEASR Investments at cost:
B EmRGD Shares listed in Hong Kong 1,564,566 1,546,110
JEETRRR D Unlisted shares 357,636 328,022
1,922,202 1,874,132
A N EENGTE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,710,495 1,333,869
3,632,697 3,208,001
FERTH B A Al ZkIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (39,587) (39,974)
3,593,110 3,168,027
kD TE Market value of listed shares 3,810,472 12,619,283

FEUL,/TF BN R 2 FURS R - 2 8RR

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a full list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31
December 2008:

Fris B 40 B 4t = £h)
FEMib 25 Percentage of shares held 3 IR AR AN
AR EHE FEEWR Place of HiE LiEE2 Particulars of issued
Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary shares
A BRTEEERD A" RERR £
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong 74.9% - HK$932,758,869
A EEBER AT REZMR BA
Dah Sing Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000
AFREERAT
(7118Dah Sing General
Insurance Company Limited) RirZE% BEE
Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited General insurance Bermuda 100% - HK$100,000,000
(formerly known as Dah Sing General
Insurance Company Limited)
REER BRE
Dah Sing Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
AFRBRREERA R REaAE £
Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited Insurance agency Hong Kong 100% = HK$500,000
A REBR AR R IR BA
Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited Insurance services Hong Kong 100% - HK$20
REEMR BRE
Dah Sing International Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
ASRBE BRE
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited  Life assurance Bermuda 100% - US$25,000,000
RERK RERAES
Dah Sing Medical Science Investment Inc.  Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% = US$50,000
TEex 0
Dah Sing Secretarial Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
Tmex BA
DSE Investment Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000
(Note (a)) (&£ (1))
REEKR Y
Filey Investment Corporation Investment holding Panama 100% - Uss$2
NERE ERELES
High Standard Investment Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% - Uss$2
MKEREBRDA TEeX BA
Newinner Investments Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% = HK$2
TEex 0
WOF Escrow Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
BREBR A REERK 0
World Prosper Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% = HK$1
REEMR KBRS
Upway Wealth International Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% - USS$1
TEex BA
DSFH Limited Dormant Hong Kong = 100% HK$2
TE2X ERELES
DSGI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1
TE2X ERELES
DSLI (BVI) (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
RERK RERAES
DSLI (2) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands = 100% US$1

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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33. MHEARIHEE @) 33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

PR B 40 B 4t 21T

s fith 25 Percentage of shares held B R AR A

YNCIECE FEEK Place of HiE EE3 Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary shares
REZMR KBRS

DSMI Group Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
TR RERUES

Four Winds International Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% Uss$2
REEXBRAA TEeX BA

Luen Fung Investment Company, Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$303,000
BRREERAE R £ R

Macau Insurance Company Limited General insurance Macau - 96% MOP120,000,000
RFEASRBRERAA ASRBE R

Macau Life Insurance Company Limited Life Insurance Macau - 96% MOP50,000,000
AHRITBEBRRA RAT BA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$2,300,000,000
RHRIT (PED) BRAF RAT mEARAME

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 74.9% RMB1,000,000,000
ERRTERAT RAT BA

MEVAS Bank Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$400,000,000
RPEERTERAA RAT R

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 74.9% MOP225,000,000
NERE KBRS

Channel Winner Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
AN EBRERERRAA TEeXx BA

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$20
AHBBEER R TEEX BA

Dah Sing Finance Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$25,000,000
A RBRERER A R BA

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$200,000
RE KBRS

Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
A ERBERRT REBAR BA

Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$100,000
REEMR BA

Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$10,000
TR KBRS

Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
REER BA

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$1
REEMR BA

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$1
TR RERUES

DSLI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
AFESERAA (RIBHER #HEE BA

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$10,000,000

(formerly known as Global
Courage Securities Limited)

RBAR BA

MEVAS Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$50,000
REER (FE)BRAR E2¥ BA

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$450,000,000

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

PR B 40 B 4t 21T

s fith 25 Percentage of shares held B R AR A

YNCIECE FEEK Place of HiE EE3 Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary shares
TR KBRS

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
NERE RERUES

South Development Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
HEREBR A NERE BA

Vanishing Border Investment Services Property investment Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$20

Limited

TEEX KBRS

Yield Rich Group Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
RAT BREAS

D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Banking Guernsey - 56.6% US$8,000,000

Limited

REZMR BRE

D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda - 56.6% US$1,000,000
MNBEERRAA NERE BA

Modern World Holdings Limited Property investment Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$1
MNEBEERRA NERE BA

Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Property investment Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$1
NERE KBRS

Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.9% USS$1
pISGESER [ ONG] TEEX BA

Ever Silver Holdings Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.9% HK$2

CERBBMARXSMEBRAR LT

*

Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

¥ D. A. H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands)
Limited - AFrER1T (FE) AR QA - RFIEER
TAERLAAE  RFIRER AR E ORI A SRR
BIRDE R Et5IBRAE S AN MK SZH) A F)
Sh - B RARIHEFTELS -

BAFRITEBERARRAFBITERAE R
RZBRARIN - LA AR RMAREHK
M I 78 LA SN 77 RE M AR SZ - AR BB R 1
FXSZZ Fh AR BB ARFELL

ARFRIT (PR BERABDR -_ZZENFLAES
BRI - YREPEARKMBEEREL R
[EREELQE (REREANBEE)]

i

(F?) DSE Investment Services Limitedf 2 17 & 58 A%
4N JRESTHE(E 700 TTEI B L AL -

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Except for D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited, Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Macau
Insurance Company Limited and Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified

above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Except for Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Bank, Limited
which are public limited companies, all the above companies are private
companies or, if incorporated outside Hong Kong, have substantially
the same characteristics as a Hong Kong incorporated private

company.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body)” under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.

Note:

(@) In addition to the ordinary shares issued by DSE Investment Services
Limited, it also has preference shares in issue totalling HK$700.
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34. P MR EE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Goodwill and intangible assets

wOER  BFEE
&0  BEKEE  BREE

BREE Core  Customer
B  Contract deposit  relationship Gk H

£H Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles Trade name Total
KA Cost
ZZEN\§-A-BRk At 1 January 2008 and

“EEN\E+-A=1—-H 31 December 2008 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
2ERE/ B Accumulated impairment/amortisation

“EE\£-A—H At 1 January 2008 - 19,661 35,005 21,576 - 76,242

FERLH (FE12) Charge for the year (Note 12) - 4,282 10,288 8,101 - 22,671
“ZE)\5+-A=1—H At 31 December 2008 - 23,943 45,293 29,677 - 98,913
REE Carrying value
—EZ\f+ZfA=1-H At 31 December 2008 950,992 2,556 35,290 39,579 80,927 1,109,344

wLER  EFEE
a8  BKEE  BREE

BREE Core  Customer
#%E  Contract deposit  relationship Gk H
£E Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles Trade name Total
KA Cost
ZZEt5-A-BR At 1 January 2007 and
“FE+E+-A=1+—-H 31 December 2007 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257

2RHE/EH Accumulated impairment/amortisation

“EE+5-A-H At 1 January 2007 - 12,725 22,684 13,618 - 49,027

ERi (WiE12) Charge for the year (Note 12) - 6,936 12,321 7,958 - 27,215
“EErE+-A=1—-H At 31 December 2007 - 19,661 35,005 21,576 - 76,242
REE Carrying value
“ZZ+F+-A=1-H 31 December 2007 950,992 6,838 45,578 47,680 80,927 1,132,015
EERAPRCBFEEREEGN  RLERRE Intangible assets with finite life including contract intangibles, core
FPRARERAESARBREBRERZANTHE+ deposit intangible and customer relationship intangibles are amortised
“EZAAFHEE  BRAERTRBRESS over the their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
B 5 LR E B 1B S AR AR H0 B R AR R E B 1R 5 balance method. Trade name is with indefinite life and is tested annually

2

for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less accumulated impairment

loss.

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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34. BELEEEE @)
EESRERTRLEMEREKSBEDREY
BeEEEn ((ReEEER]) UMERETE o
TREREBEEZ SR -

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to geographical area of operation and business
segment for impairment losses assessment. A summary of goodwill

allocation is presented below.

—EEN \Ft-A=t-HAK
—®22tF+-A=t-8
As at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007

[E3 ) B8 A SRAT
Commercial Personal BE £ R &t
£8 Group Banking Banking Treasury Insurance Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - - 318,667
A Macau 199,140 260,408 33,475 139,302 632,325
395,618 382,597 33,475 139,302 950,992

EFEEYEERBERARIBRESRER(CET
tF | o

BEASFERENN  BHEREFE ZERE
BEMEEzREELEMAOKEHE - ZtEE
RAHEEEEAEBMRHRESTSHECERER
=EZBARSR - RRAPHHEIZRARE
MERNEEREF - BABEFIERF2%HRER
FLREXENRDIN - AEAZARXRTER
RASBELERTEBESRESELEM 2 EEE
BB 2 BARRA MO - RITEBRE
FBEN 2B ER10.2%  MRBREBRSEE
Bz BEIRE/510.6% °

BB FHEIT 2 REARA T ERALRRAAEEBR
S 2B SRR E (RITHEBEH3% © (R EH
A2%) REMEMBEE =FEE 2 FEAKA
RgAFRETE 2 ERARSRENEZEERSF - B
LABIE FIE RER2% MR FERF AR EXENER S
e FTEAZMREDRENRAEERHERITE
B2 BEARKANETEE 2 RERREIT 2%
BENMAT10%E11% 2 -
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No impairment loss on goodwill and trade name are identified in the
year (2007: Nil).

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on value
in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections prepared
by the senior management and approved by the Board covering a three-
year period and extrapolated into five years using cash flow projections
in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth
rate after fifth year. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s and
its Banking Group’s weighted average cost of capital depending of type
of businesses carried out by the CGU, which are 10.2% for CGUs under

banking business and 10.6% for CGU under insurance business.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rates of 3% for banking business and 2% for insurance
business with reference to similar business services transactions, and
projected revenue in the approved budget covering a three-year period
and extrapolated into five years using cash flow projections in the
medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth rate after
fifth year. The discount rate in the range of 10% to 11% used is based
on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s weighted average cost of capital

depending of type of businesses carried out.
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35. A7 M It [ R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. Premises and other fixed assets

R
BRERAE
Furniture,

TE  equipment and =
£M8 Group Premises motor vehicles Total
BHE_ZZtF+-A=+—-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2007
FREFE Opening net book amount 1,486,140 111,351 1,597,491
i Additions 319 81,472 81,791
E#BE 2 EmRE Recovery of previous revaluation

deficits 21,317 = 21,317
HEE Revaluation surplus 541,124 = 541,124
EFNE Reclassification 81,000 = 81,000
wEZH (F:E12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (45,463) (48,494) (93,957)
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 2,084,437 144,329 2,228,766
—EE+E+-A=1—H At 31 December 2007
A/ & E Cost/valuation 2,084,437 438,533 2,522,970
ZBINE Accumulated depreciation - (294,204) (294,204)
REFE Net book amount 2,084,437 144,329 2,228,766
BE_ZZ/\F+_-A=1+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2008
FHEEFE Opening net book amount 2,084,437 144,329 2,228,766
i Additions 970 91,408 92,378
HE Disposals (11,479) (4,696) (16,175)
EREE Revaluation deficit (152,595) - (152,595)
ENNHE Reclassification 28,427 = 28,427
FEZ M (FHE12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (59,042) (52,065) (111,107)
FRIEAFE Closing net book amount 1,890,718 178,976 2,069,694
—EENFE+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2008
A/ fEE Cost/valuation 1,890,718 444,217 2,334,935
2BEME Accumulated depreciation - (265,241) (265,241)
R FE Net book amount 1,890,718 178,976 2,069,694

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(AEEEF ThIFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
35. A7 B H At [ s B A () 35. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)
AREBTESTZHERZZEZENFET A=+ The Group’s premises were last revalued at 31 December 2008.
—H#ETT o WFHERBLEESFAEME—K Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
FEMAEH (HERSEER) BRAR (BURE independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
7 K& N2 R E— KN TFELHT CRFT) Professional Services) Limited for premises in Hong Kong and Mainland
BRAE (RAUKRPIZYE) BARTSEEBEE China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for premises in Macau.
HEHEAT o

WITEREBRKAZEEN R - E&FEOT - If premises were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would
be as follows:
—EENE —TTLF
= Group 2008 2007
B AR Cost 1,266,991 1,308,082
2REE Accumulated depreciation (234,494) (211,317)
AR (B Net book amount 1,032,497 1,096,765
NEBEER_ZEZENF+_A=1+—B2ZKA%K The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2008 of the above
HEITAT : assets is as follows:
&R
RERAE
Furniture,

TE  equipment and B
£ Group Premises motor vehicles Total
EEDWIN At cost - 444,217 444,217
BEE-—TZN\F At valuation - 2008 1,890,718 - 1,890,718

1,890,718 444,217 2,334,935
NEBEER_ZEZLF+_A=1+—B2ZKAxK The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2007 of the above
HEITHOT assets is as follows:
LR
BRERAE
Furniture,

7  equipment and =i
£M8 Group Premises motor vehicles Total
B At cost - 438,533 438,533
REE-—ZTTtF At valuation - 2007 2,084,437 - 2,084,437

2,084,437 438,533 2,522,970

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008 195
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35. 472 K At [ B A ()

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

TEZEEFERSE The net book value of premises comprises:
—BRNFE —TTF
£H8 Group 2008 2007
GiskEpind Leaseholds
EBEBFA ZF ALY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ZERT+F2M) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,561,707 1,753,868
TEB B AINEE 2 EAME A Held outside Hong Kong on
(E+ER+FZM) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 329,011 330,569
1,890,718 2,084,437
36. EWIHE 36. Investment properties
—EZTN\F CZTTtHF
£ Group 2008 2007
—H—H At 1 January 547,574 484,465
g Additions 594 25,664
Ebiba ] Reclassification (28,427) (81,000)
k= Disposals - (6,700)
EHEAFE (BB W Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation (60,437) 125,145
+—-—A=+—H At 31 December 459,304 547,574

AEBREVESRHMZEER_ZZNE+_A
=+ —HET  BFHERBLEXRSTREMSE
— AN PR (BEREXEER) BRAR BLAR
BRRTEBEAZYE) kE—KFR & ORFI)
BERRA (GIRRFZ2E) mARTSEER

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2008. Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong

and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment

AT o properties in Macau.
BEWEZ REFEBE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
—EENE —TTLF
565 Group 2008 2007
T fE b Leaseholds
EBEBFA ZF ALY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ZER+F2M) lease (between 10-50 years) 419,578 480,392
TEB B AINEE 2 EAME 4 Held outside Hong Kong on
(E+t=Rt+F2H) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 39,726 67,182
459,304 547,574

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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37. RIBIFRCEE A MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

—EENE _—ZTTLF

S Group 2008 2007
—H—H At 1 January 1,015,538 810,778
FAFIRE S| B2 10 Additions from current year new business 201,028 183,404
EREBERREZE Movement from in-force business (20,069) (11,824)
HAth Others 77,955 33,180
+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 1,274,452 1,015,538
38. H b 38. Other assets
—EBEENE _—ZTTLF

& Group 2008 2007
DIREE Reinsurance assets 249,657 280,086
JFE W R IE K FE S IE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,951,544 3,147,173
FEETFIB Accrued income 838,240 1,049,589
H A Others 244,031 579,196

39. FrEEHBEMBMWALME

L]

3,283,472 5,056,044

39. Trading liabilities

—BENE —TTLF
Group 2008 2007

HEBERERBEEES

40. $RRELAPEFHE H I 2B E AR
% P ARk

Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 1,791,419 2,689,069

40. Deposits from customers designated at fair value
through profit or loss

—EBEENE _—ZTTLF

5 Group 2008 2007
EEETR Structured deposits 471,065 3,142,488

RER » REBARERIBIEREIEEEMNE P
ERANAFEFEBHEFHFABE(ZTE
+4F : #2{8592,400,00078 7T 2 & F 17 3R 1A 1
R ERAA T EFE EESB T ABR) -

REBENSEEFHFRIHKIZEOENNSE
B UL _EFT 2 BRE{ES 10,000,000/ T (—EZ+
£ : 5124,000,000/8 7T) °

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

During the year, the Group did not designate on initial recognition any
deposits from customers at fair value through profit or loss (2007:
deposits from customers totalling HK$592,400,000 were designated at

fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition).

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these deposits is HK$10 million higher (2007:
HK$124 million higher) than the above carrying amount.
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41. KPR FEXK

ESL]

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. Deposits from customers

—RRNE -TTLA

& ETE R R AR R
BEER
EH - RARESER

BEFO&BBSHIFEADEBET I HUEEE
YEH I 2 17 7010,862,000/8 7T (— T T L4 :
31,950,000/ 7T) ©

BREMESIN MERMEPERERTIET

Ko

42. BT E

%8

Group 2008 2007
Demand deposits and current accounts 7,977,794 8,928,130
Savings deposits 9,855,598 9,382,825
Time, call and notice deposits 62,113,686 57,273,894

79,947,078 75,584,849

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$10,862,000 (2007:
HK$31,950,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than fixed deposits, all other customer deposits carry variable
rates.
42. Certificates of deposit issued

—EENE _—ZTTLF
Group 2008 2007

BENARAFEFEBEEBFT ARR
R R E R T A FE R

RPN AR

o TELFN - ARBRERY
RHERE R E AR BT ER R AN R FE 8
BEZHEAER -

%ﬂﬂ

BT\ S
‘i_f

EEUNAFEFEAEEET ABRZERTRE
KA 5 AN TISEA (Bl : 2K« HNE) &
HEBERXREE 2 A AFTEEZH SR AN
4,619,000/ T (—ZZZ 4 : E1E/A11,045,000
#7r) K E5182,013,0008 T (ZEZ+F : Wk
4,584,000/ 7T) °

AEEENEE BT TEAEIHRZEOEND
SERIA LTSI 2 BRE{E1K36,000,0008 7T (=
T4 : {£21,000,000/&7T) °

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,605,722 4,160,268

At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 629,096 1,605,373
At amortised cost 2,420,167 3,077,773
4,654,985 8,843,414

During 2008 and 2007, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The change in the fair value of certificates of deposit issued and
designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to changes in
external market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of
HK$4,619,000 (2007: a loss of HK$11,045,000) and that attributable to
own credit standing is a loss of HK$2,013,000 (2007: a gain of
HK$4,584,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$36 million

lower (2007: HK$21 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. Issued debt securities

—RRNE -TTLA
Group 2008 2007

BEARTEFEBEEHFT ARR

RED R R E T QB R

R RPN AR

REZENER_ZTLFR  AEEREGRY
IRFERIS 18 E E M2 BITEB EHF B R FER
ERHEFF NG -

BEETEHESFBRE T

e  RHR1T2 2 AN E 2 FDah Sing MTN
Financing Limited:& {8 AR 1T 2 BUMN T 5
RHIZEE - R=ETME+ A B
1TILTE B AR R A 5 P T 2. 150,000,00055 7T
78 % 150,000,0005 0% BB EREBLERE
([ZEEREBERRE]) - ZEEREBLER
BERAFMBITER - AEEKR - RE2H
HR=-Z 771¢+ A—8" Eﬁﬁmiﬁiﬂ

RIRITETOMNE R RLHELZE
% o

o  RIBITBB/EBUNMIS T EHEEE
RZZZT+F+— A ABTWEI MK
X 5 B 0 2 450,000,000/ 7T M 4 B E B
ZBR((ZEREE]) - ZEERBZRR
FHMER413%  HBIFBA-ZTZN
F+—AZH AR BRAFIRITHET
R R B B R E B E%E o

EENAAFEFEBEE ST ABEZBBITE
%3 %Tﬁmlﬁl\%miﬁﬁ%(wum F=E - HNE)
RECEERRETE 2 ATFEZDHH R AEE
21,398,000/ 7T (ZZZ 4 : [E518 /237,395,000
#B7T) ki#£2,218,0008 T (ZEZLF : Wamm
3,672,000/ 1) °

AEEENECBRITEFEFERIRE QRN
K& EEE A L FT7I) 2 BRI B 1K.29,000,000/8 7T (=
TZ 4 : {K5,000,0005 7T) °
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Designated at fair value through

profit or loss 1,181,486 1,169,948

At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 459,654 454,778
At amortised cost 1,162,500 1,170,135
2,803,640 2,794,861

During 2008 and 2007, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any issued debt securities at fair value through profit or loss.

Issued debt securities comprises the following:

. The US$150 million fixed rate and the US$150 million floating
rate Senior Guaranteed Notes (the “Senior Guaranteed Notes”)
issued by Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of DSB, on 1 December 2004 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme which are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Senior Guaranteed Notes are
guaranteed by DSB, unsecured, and have a final maturity on 1
December 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the fixed rate Senior Guaranteed

Notes is determined on floating rate basis.

° The HK$450 million 2-year Fixed Rate Note (the “Fixed Rate
Note”) issued by DSB on 2 November 2007 under DSB’s Euro
Medium Term Note Programme, and is listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Fixed Rate Note
carries interest at 4.13% per annum and has a final maturity date
on 2 November 2009. Through interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by DSB, the cost of the Fixed Rate Note is

determined on floating rate basis.

The change in the fair value of issued debt securities designated at fair
value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external market
prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a loss of HK$21,398,000 (2007: a
loss of HK$37,395,000) and that attributable to own credit standing is
a gain of HK$2,218,000 (2007: a gain of HK$3,672,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these issued debt securities is HK$29 million

lower (2007: HK$5 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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44. BIEEB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. Subordinated notes

—EENE _—ZTTLF
2008 2007
150,000,000 TR =ZF — A FEIHH US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating
FEREGRE GEF) Rate Notes due 2015 (Note (a)) 1,162,500 1,170,135
150,000,000 TR = —EFEIHH US$150,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EERERRE (GEL) Rate Notes due 2017 (Note (b)) 1,040,438 1,163,688
150,000,0003 7T A = ZF — /N E 2 Hi K US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating
FRRERR GER) Rate Notes due 2016 (Note (c)) 1,162,500 1,170,135
200,000,0003 7T K A JE B & B E US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated
GET) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (d)) 1,903,278 1,643,879
5,268,716 5,147,837
NEEFEEAEZHTAER Designated at fair value through
profit or loss 1,040,438 1,163,688
RER R KRR AT E R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 1,903,278 1,643,879
T2 BR PR AN B BR At amortised cost 2,325,000 2,340,270
5,268,716 5,147,837

RZZBZNERZZBZLFA - REERERY
W RE RS (A 4 BT BIA A TR B AR
B A -

i
() WDBAHFSBITR-_ZETAFHA=-tTABETZ
150,000,000 JT 7£ B FR B A2 5 P £ T W 45 7 5E
AHTINERNZ S EEER ((EF]) - WEER
BR-_E—RERAA AR - RIEUHEERA
“T-ZHFRANBE c ARTAEHRENEER
B WEHZHSR=EAHETRITRZERS
MA+2F - UB=EABT—K - 2k HE
BAEEEUEERED  FANFEEETA
Eﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%%*ﬁﬁ+%¥°%
BEEBSERBEEAIME  RFRITAIRERE
3R A AR KRB NF R R E AREEEE
BIFTA (FEF6H) EH ©

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

During 2008 and 2007, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

of any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(@) This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 29 April 2005 (the

“Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Notes

will mature on 6 May 2015 with an optional redemption date falling on 6

May 2010. Interest rate for the Notes is set on a quarterly basis based on

3-month LIBOR plus 60 basis points from the issue date to the optional

redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest

rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 160

basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the

HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the

optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date.




B 265 i A P i

(AB®E T T3 7R)

44.

i
(2)

RAEAEH (80

(%)

D ARFRITR-ZEZTRAFENATNBETZ
150,000,0003 T4 B5.451 % EERER ST £
MWW AREAMMERNEERERERE ([E
®l) c WEBBHER_Z—+tENAT/\HE
HeoREMEERA-T——F//\A+/\A &
BOTRAEHBEBEEEER  £EK5451% &
FERME—IK - B MEBREEEEEER
e FRNFEEETAER AT HERRE
EHFEERM-_BE-T2T wEGSELESERE
SRR - REERITRI RN IB B M E R A A SR
BARFIENFBAEEEEERME GEEH) &
1 o REIRITINE B — BN ERTTR] S A K B &
A IS ETS B & E A SR R AR TTIRTT R F 47 8
RERNZEF SR -

T AFBITR ST AEAB-BEITZ
150,000,0003% 7T 1E #7 A3 32 5 Fr b i S 4% R 5E
ABHINERNZ SR ERER ((EF]) o LEERS
BR-E—R"FEAA=-HEH - BIEHEERA
A=A - ARTAEZHBEHESR
B WEHZHESER=EAHETRITRERE
ME+REEF  LE=EABET IR - Hi& - fn
EHEREREEEEABE  FRHOFNSSER]
REMBEABMETRITAZEFSM—BEHT - 58
BEBSEREEIE - KHFIBITAIAEZEE
BHSRERBEHRFEN KB AREEEER
FiE GER») & ©

W AFRIR =TT LE-_A+ BRI
200,000,000 7T 7£ ¥ 114 22 5 B £ 1 3 1% 5278
BEENMNEARNE B KAREER ([EH]) -
hEEHZREMBERA-S—tHF A+t
BEIH - AETHEHBREREER £84
6.253% ' FHFRNE—IR - Hi& - MEBRE
BEUEEEAELD  ARONEEEITA=EA
HETRTRERSN—BNTEHT - ERES
BB RTELIE - RFIRITAINEBEEER
FEFRISEARF SN KA UEEEERBRAS
GEZBD) &R - RFTRITIANE B2 —BIBRERITET L
=42 RS A I E 15 80 B e F S =R R A E TR
TREREABEWRNFEF EMRK -

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. Subordinated notes (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(©

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

This represents US$150,000,000 5.451% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 18 August 2005
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 18 August 2017 with an optional redemption date
falling on 18 August 2012. Interest at 5.451% p.a. is payable semi-annually
from the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the
Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will
bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus 220 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 2 June 2006 (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The Notes will mature on 3 June 2016 with an optional
redemption date falling on 3 June 2011. Interest rate for the Notes is set
on a quarterly basis based on 3-month LIBOR plus 75 basis points from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset and the Notes will bear
interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 100 basis points. DSB may, subject to
receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but
not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or for taxation
reasons on interest payment date.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Notes carry an optional
redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at 6.253% p.a. is
payable semi annually from the issue date to the optional redemption
date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset
and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 190 basis points.
DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption
date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An interest rate
swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to
floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an
international bank.
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44. REEH &)

EEAAFEE B RSB T ABR & EEKA
ERAEINEBTISER (BIEA : F=K « SNE) REEE
MEE 2 NFEEE) S R AE1E83,296,0007 7T
(ZZZ L F : £51846,013,000% 7T) KU =
199,292,000/ 7T (ZZZ4F : #132,451,0007%
7o) ©
AEEBENEREEHIBRIZSNENNSE

A FATAI 2 BREE£231,000,000/8 7T (Z 2=
+ 4 : {K77,000,00078 7T) °

45. HABER B KR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. Subordinated notes (Continued)

The change in the fair value of subordinated notes designated at fair

value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external market

prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a loss of HK$83,296,000 (2007: a
loss of HK$46,013,000) and that attributable to own credit standing is
a gain of HK$199,292,000 (2007: a gain of HK$32,451,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$231 million

lower (2007: HK$77 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

45. Other accounts and accruals

—EENE —TZTLHF

= Group 2008 2007
REE Rz EMhEE Other liabilities under

insurance contracts 1,122,461 984,480

E b Others 2,951,805 4,867,357

4,074,266 5,851,837

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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45, FARR H R R @)
RBAEHOZHMBEIROAT

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. Other accounts and accruals (Continued)

Other liabilities under insurance contracts are analysed below:

—ZENE
2008
2 RDE
k] Reinsurers’ FE

&M@ Group Gross Share Net
— RAR B General Insurance
RAIREZ RE RS Unearned premium reserve 139,966 (85,977) 53,989
BEEWMIRE Notified claims 237,170 (141,317) 95,853
ZENBARERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 6,908 288 7,196
A8 EAR B Unexpired risk reserve 1,191 1,268 2,459

385,235 (225,738) 159,497
=k Life
RELEHES Policy provisions 737,226 (2,679) 734,547
a5t Total 1,122,461 (228,417) 894,044
— RAR B General Insurance
AURBZRERE Unearned premium reserve
—A—H At 1 January 216,121 (156,652) 59,469
RERA Written premiums 252,807 (138,149) 114,658
BERMZIRE Earned premiums (328,962) 208,824 (120,138)
+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 139,966 (85,977) 53,989
CERRCARNERER2ZE R Notified and incurred but not reported

FRBHRRGHE claims, and unexpired risk reserve

BEEHRZRE Notified claims 184,817 (115,569) 69,248
FENERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 4,058 (726) 3,332
RBEHRRFERE Unexpired risk reserve - 2,202 2,202
—A—H At 1 January 188,875 (114,093) 74,782
EXfRE Claims paid (84,067) 34,875 (49,192)
BRANRE Claims incurred 140,461 (60,543) 79,918
+=-B=+—8~H At 31 December 245,269 (139,761) 105,508
BEEWMIRE Notified claims 237,170 (141,317) 95,853
ZENBARERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 6,908 288 7,196
KB R A Unexpired risk reserve 1,191 1,268 2,459

245,269 (139,761) 105,508
B Life
REEES Policy provisions
—A—H At 1 January 579,484 (2,600) 576,884
EXfRE Claims paid (542,469) 6,328 (536,141)
AN RE Claims incurred 700,211 (6,407) 693,804
+—A=+—8 At 31 December 737,226 (2,679) 734,547
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45, FARR H R R @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. Other accounts and accruals (Continued)

—TEtHF
2007
D RBE
g Reinsurers’ FE
£8 Group Gross Share Net
— AR B General Insurance
RABRE 2 RE G Unearned premium reserve 216,121 (156,652) 59,469
BEERZRE Notified claims 184,817 (115,569) 69,248
FENEREZRZIRE Claims incurred but not reported 4,058 (726) 3,332
N8 5 R B 1 1 Unexpired risk reserve = 2,202 2,202
404,996 (270,745) 134,251

1 Life
REEFES Policy provisions 579,484 (2,599) 576,885
&5t Total 984,480 (273,344) 711,136
— AR B General Insurance
KRURHZRERE Unearned premium reserve
—A—8 At 1 January 129,502 (92,431) 37,071
REWA Written premiums 372,656 (266,058) 106,598
BRI RE Earned premiums (286,037) 201,837 (84,200)
+-A=+—H At 31 December 216,121 (156,652) 59,469
EEHRREANERZRZEE & Notified and incurred but not

KBHEARGE reported claims,

and unexpired risk reserve
BEERCRE Notified claims 93,520 (44,266) 49,254
FENERERZIRE Claims incurred but not reported 3,012 (1,124) 1,888
RAHEREE Unexpected Risk Reserve 1,146 1,206 2,352
—A—H At 1 January 97,678 (44,184) 53,494
BYXNRME Claims paid (39,688) 8,918 (30,770)
EANZRE Claims incurred 130,885 (78,827) 52,058
+-A=+—8~ At 31 December 188,875 (114,093) 74,782
BEE®mZEE Notified claims 184,817 (115,569) 69,248
FEANERERIRE Claims incurred but not reported 4,058 (726) 3,332
KBHRREE Unexpired risk reserve = 2,202 2,202
188,875 (114,093) 74,782

1 Life
REEES Policy provisions
—A—8 At 1 January 469,869 (2,656) 467,213
EXRE Claims paid (225,376) 4,085 (221,291)
BERNRE Claims incurred 334,991 (4,028) 330,963
+=-A=+—8H At 31 December 579,484 (2,599) 576,885

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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46. ERWREEEARESE A AR

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. Liabilities to policyholders under long-term insurance

contracts
—EBEENE —ZTTLF

5 Group 2008 2007
HEHRBEEHNREREAZRAREEER Gross future liabilities to policyholders

under long-term insurance contracts 4,494,456 3,613,540
DIR1DEE Reinsurers’ share (21,240) (6,742)
HEHRBEEHNREREAZRAREEFH Net future liabilities to policyholders

under long-term insurance contracts 4,473,216 3,606,798

RHRRBAVRERBAZRKEBEZEZ AL
LI

The movement in future liabilities to policyholders under long-term

insurance contracts is summarised as below:

—EENE —ETETLHF
£8 Group 2008 2007
—H—H At 1 January 3,606,798 2,283,647
BEEfMZRE Claims incurred 866,418 1,323,151
+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 4,473,216 3,606,798

47. BEIEHLIE

RIENMIBEE R BENEHERERAB G AT
ST 85 BN BT 18 & A= AN BN AR 18 B (B R RIBEE R IE
HL[A — TS HAE R AR 5 A 1T o HIHZ S
T s

47. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against

current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

—EENE _—ZTTLF
5 Group 2008 2007
EERIEEE Deferred income tax assets 162,804 10,385
FERIBERE Deferred income tax liabilities (9,910) (98,562)
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47. EFEBLIE ()

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. Deferred income tax (Continued)

—EENE _—ZTTLF
& Group 2008 2007
RIEFIBE E - Deferred income tax assets:
-AIETZEAKKE 2 EERIEEE - Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than
12 months 358,519 165,075
BEEFIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
-EET_ERAREEZELEREAR - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled after more than 12 months (205,625) (253,076)
-EBET_EAREEZELEREAR - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled within 12 months - (176)
(205,625) (2583,252)
RERIRBEEN AT The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
—EBEENE _—TTLHF
£H Group 2008 2007
—A—A At 1 January (88,177) (140,879)
Rk SR AR IER R () Tax credited/(charged) to the
(Mt5E19) income statement (Note 19) 11,974 (25,831)
FAHE 25 BR P 7 78 o] B Tax credited to equity 229,097 78,533
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 152,894 (88,177)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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47. EFEBLIE ()

BEERBEEERABRANFE2EE) - TEER
HRTORE SEE N RE AT

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

9% JOE 8 JE A - Deferred income tax assets:
BEXH
REERRERE NERBAE REf
Impairment  Accelerated REEM Deferred
allowances and tax BEBER  Investment  expenses &it
8 Group provisions  depreciation Tax losses  revaluation  and others Total
“EE+F-A-H At 1 January 2007 15,169 681 3,061 - 5,126 24,037
RREEREE/ (R i) Credited/(charged) to the
income statement 14,785 (69) (1,904) - 933 13,745
REREREE Credited to equity - - - 127,644 - 127,644
EEipE Reclassification - - - (351) - (351)
“E2tETZR=1-H At 31 December 2007 and
kR=2EN\E-5-H 1 January 2008 29,954 612 1,157 127,293 6,059 165,075
R A e Credited to the income statement 5,725 12 1,895 - 12,635 20,267
RERRAEE Credited to equity - - - 179,236 - 179,236
gy Reclassification - - - - (6,059) (6,059)
“EEN\E+ZR=1-H At 31 December 2008 35,679 624 3,052 306,529 12,635 358,519
7 JE B TE £ A - Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE REMEE
Accelerated ~ fTEEfE Investment  REEf
B tax  Premises  properties Investment Hth ait
£@ Group Provisions depreciation  revaluation revaluation  revaluation Others Total
“EZt5-A-H At 1 January 2007 3,495 15,587 127,171 18,136 351 176 164,916
REERAT Charged to the income statement 1,038 14,116 - 24,422 - - 39,576
RERRAT I Charged to equity - - 49,111 - - - 49,111
EEig Reclassification - - - - (351) - (351)
“E2tETZR=1-H At 31 December 2007 and
R-EEN\5-B-H 1 January 2008 4,533 29,703 176,282 42,558 - 176 253,252
REEEAT L/ (BE) Charged/(credited) to
the income statement 29,419 (9,836) - (14,041) - 2,751 8,293
RERER (EE) /it (Credited)/charged to equity - - (49,965) - 104 - (49,861)
EEig Reclassification (6,059) - - - - - (6,059)
“8E\5tZR=1-H At 31 December 2008 27,893 19,867 126,317 28,517 104 2,927 205,625
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47. BIEBLIE ()

T FEARRRRABE, (X H) 2 EEHR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

47. Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity during the year is

18 - as follows:
—EENE _—ZTTLF
£5 Group 2008 2007
R R w2 A ERFE Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
- 1772 (Ft7%51) - premises (Note 51) 49,861 (49,111)
- Al E RS (FiEE51) - available-for-sale securities (Note 51) 179,236 127,644
229,097 78,533

48. HLHE AT Z &tk

BEERBRARABEEARBZHBAR &

48. Balances with Group companies

Included in the following balance sheet captions are balances with a

EREFAIANT ¢ subsidiary of the Company detailed as follows:

—EENE —ZTALF
AT Company 2008 2007
RITHE R Bank balances 7,095 3,436

49. BRAR A fE KR
(H) G AR

REERERB AR REREEEHIRE MEA

BEEEZERALELT :

49. Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of project and acquisition of fixed assets

at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows:

—EENE —ZTTLF
£H Group 2008 2007
EREEREZN ZHAX Expenditure authorised
but not contracted for 766 -
EENERERER 2R Expenditure contracted
but not provided for 98,821 83,904
99,587 83,904

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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49. SRR KRN 8D
(&) fHE&E

AEBEERBRIMERETEFPZERTA

BHeERECEERRIMERENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-

balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

EHEHE
Contract amount
—EBEENE _—ZTTLF

5 Group 2008 2007
BEEEFERE® Direct credit substitutes 704,420 692,615
R ZEE AR Transaction related contingencies 6,898 2,521
HE PR 2 ATEE Trade-related contingencies 364,258 883,271
AR A BUE M SR TR 58 Commitments that are unconditionally
BN 2 E cancellable without prior notice 32,922,775 30,758,565
H Other commitments with an
RAHR & original maturity of:
- DR —%F - under 1 year 2,673,642 3,902,908
-—FRNE - 1 year and over 938,980 1,301,489
EETFR Forward forward deposits placed 73,547 640,102
37,684,520 38,181,471
EEREINESEE
Credit risk
weighted amount
—EENE C—TTLHF
3 Group 2008 2007
ok A B 18 R IE Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,286,256 1,729,744
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49. AR AR KRS (a)
(H) ORI &
TRDBDEREBBETERERRTEELER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)
(c) Assets pledged

Assets pledged as collateral with the HKMA and with unrelated financial

MR ESREBE EE ¢ institutions under repurchase agreements are as follows:

—EZTN\F CZZTT+tHF
= Group 2008 2007
FEEERZ 2 F 5 (i24) Trading securities (Note 24) - 2,033,947
At B F# (fI3E28) Available-for-sale securities (Note 28) 399,022 704,530
BEIEHES (5F29) Held-to-maturity securities (Note 29) 178,918 -

BREEER N ERFIREEAR
Z@HrE (Maxar)

(T) REME RS

IARKEAEEA - HATEEYERLLEEM
MARRAX NN 2 REBENRATEMT :

Investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category
(Note 27) 57,429 -

635,369 2,738,477

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessee, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:
—EENE —TZTLHF
£H Group 2008 2007
—FE AR Not later than 1 year 73,112 80,865
—FUBERF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 49,419 87,288
FFAE Later than 5 years 24,300 -

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(T) RBMEARYE @)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

(d) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:
—ETN\F —TTLF
£ Group 2008 2007
—FLAR Not later than 1 year 26,736 16,047
—FURERSF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 27,590 13,187
54,326 29,234
50. JgAR 50. Share capital
—EENE —ZTALF
2008 2007
EERA Authorised:
300,000,000 J% & 3@ % 300,000,000 ordinary shares
BREE2ET of HK$2 each 600,000 600,000
—2ENs e
2008 2007
i 8 (&N AR & B
BEETRERRA Issued and fully paid: Number of Share Number of Share
Tak  BREE2ET Ordinary shares of HK$2 each shares capital shares capital
—H—H At 1 January 250,088,234 500,176 250,088,234 500,176
BITRAD TS 508 Proceeds from shares issued 8,461,376 16,923 - -
BITROHER Issue of shares in lieu of 2007
“ETLERBEE final dividend 1,721,045 3,442 - -
+=—A=+—H At 31 December 260,270,655 520,541 250,088,234 500,176
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50. A (41)

BR-OTTRHFMNA =\ BREILEZ FRR
B ([ZRREE) - BEZRREEIET
AR - 40 (ZZZE L F ¢ 401D) Al R B
2,850,000% (= ZZ+ 4 : 2,850,000%) Fh
E2BTZARARBRMZRBE  ERTFHHE
EREENERITERALR o

ZKEWEE%%&%—i&ﬁﬂl/\éﬁﬁzwﬂﬂéqﬂZlS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Share capital (Continued)

Pursuant to the new Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved
by the shareholders on 28 April 2005, 40 (2007: 40) options to subscribe
for 2,850,000 (2007: 2,850,000) shares of HK$2 each of the Company
had been granted to certain directors and senior executives of the
Group since the inception of the Scheme.

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share options

held by directors and senior executives during the year are as follows:

RBRERRGEE
Number of shares

in the options

—EENE —ZTTtHF

2008 2007

—H—H At 1 January 2,850,000 2,650,000
ERFAET Granted in the year - 200,000
1R A KRR Lapsed in the year = =
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 2,850,000 2,850,000

FEALEE T RKRB 2 BRE -

RTZA=+—BNARETEZ RIRE 40
T~

BRTARTER

Date of grant and exercise price

No share options were granted or lapsed during the year.

Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as follows:

ARETFRGEHE
Number of shares

RREHE

Number of options in the options

—EENF CZTTLF C—EENF CZTITLF
2008 2007 2008 2007
“ETRFENAZTARA 25 August 2005, at an exercise
RITEEERS1.718 T price of HK$51.71 per share 25 25 2,150,000 2,150,000
“EERFAALR 7 September 2006, at an exercise
R EFAR67.80/8 T price of HK$67.80 per share 5 5 500,000 500,000
“ZET+FAAZFNR - 28 September 2007, at an exercise
R EEAR61.93%8 T price of HK$61.93 per share 10 10 200,000 200,000
40 40 2,850,000 2,850,000
RFEeMEBMERLE —TTN\FFR
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. f#iffd 51. Reserves
TEEfE REEfR REBF
i i wE (i)
[RAHE  Premises Investment [ERXHE  —REHE  Retained
Share Revaluation Revaluation Exchange General Earnings i
£E Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Note (i) Total
T \F-F-A At 1 January 2008 984,286 870,800 (459,309) 217,899 574,612 7,970,839 9,969,127
AHMEES Fair value losses on
ATEER available-for-sale securities - - (1,283,752) - - - (1,233,752)
RESBMEHE Investment revaluation reserve
A ERFRAE transferred to income statement
QEEEYEES upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - 257,486 - - - 257,486
HEAHEEES Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - 7,751 - - - 7,751
REERGEES Deferred income tax assets
MERLZ recognised on movements in
FERBEE investment revaluation reserve - - 134,660 - - - 134,660
TEEMfZATERBE  Fairvalue losses on
revaluation of premises - (125,568) - - - - (125,568)
TEERRES Deferred income tax liabilities
ez released on movements in
ERHBAR premises revaluation reserve - 37,454 - - - - 37,454
RTERE Reserve transferred to retained
mEBEhEE earnings for depreciation
ZREABA of premises - (9,364) - - - 9,364 -
HEAEMEE Reserve transferred to retained
EfREERE AR earnings upon disposal
of premises - (3,636) - - - 3,636 -
BERINHEARIE  Exchange differences arising on
BRNERZR translation of the
financial statements
of foreign entities - - - 23,242 - - 23,242
FEBH Profit for the year - - - - - 106,193 106,193
BTLRRRH Issue of ordinary shares 567,200 - - - - - 567,200
IHETRNDER Payment of share issue expenses (60) - - - - - (60)
BABRK S5 Additional net assets acquired
MBAZFEE via scrip dividend arrangement - - - - 17,279 - 17,279
AR B 5T &l Subscription of additional interest in
WA B F5 a subsidiary via scrip dividend
B LA ER arrangement at a premium - - - - (18,456) - (18,456)
ZETLERARE 2007 final dividend - - - - - (193912)  (193,912)
“EE\FhHKRE 2008 interim dividend - - - - - (176,984)  (176,984)
“ZTZ\E+-A=+—H At 31 December 2008 1,551,426 769,686  (1,293,164) 51,141 573,435 7,719,136 9,371,660
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. feif (&0 51. Reserves (Continued)
TEEf REER REEF
& e (& (i)
[RAHE  Premises Investment [ERXME  —RHEHE  Retained
Share Revaluation Revaluation Exchange General  Earnings Bt

] Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Note (i) Total

“ZT+F-F-A At 1 January 2007 984,286 458,255 10,661 (33) 574612 7,516,785 9,544,566

AEHEERY Fair value losses on

ATEER available-for-sale securities - - (1,249,258) - - - (1,249,258)

&ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ I Investment revaluation reserve

At EERAE transferred to income statement
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?il&ﬁnﬁﬁ upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - 777,646 - - - 777,646
HEAHRHEES Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - (93,965) - - - (93,965)
HEESNTE Deferred income tax liabilities
BB R & B # released on fair value losses and
ZEERHEAR disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - 95,607 - - - 95,607
TEEMfZATERE  Fairvalue gains on
revaluation of premises - 440,908 - - - - 440,908
TEEMMERZ Deferred income tax liabilities
ETHBEAR recognised on premises
revaluation - (36,802) - - - - (36,802)
BITEEL Restatement of premises revaluation - 19,263 - - - (19,263) -
RUTEMEMES Reserve transferred to retained
EfRERRE AT earnings for depreciation
of premises - (10,824) - - - 10,824 -
BEBINHBARYE  Exchange differences arising on
BREMERZR translation of the
financial statements of
foreign entities - - - 27,932 - - 27,932

FERREN Profit for the year - - - - - 1,050,200 1,050,200

ZEERERAKRE 2006 final dividend - - - - - (400,141)  (400,141)

ZESLERHRE 2007 interim dividend - - - - - (187,566)  (187,566)

“EE+F+-H=1—H At31 December 2007 984,286 870,800 (459,309) 27,899 574,612 7,970,839 9,969,127

il Note:

(i) AEBRZZEZENFT+_A=1T—HZREEF (i) Included in retained earnings of the Group at 31 December 2008 is the
BEERBSBREBERRECBEEE value of long-term life assurance policies in force totalling
1,274,452,0007% 70 (ZZZ 4 : 1,015,538,000 HK$1,274,452,000 (2007: HK$1,015,538,000) which is currently not
HIT) o ILIRB AN SEEBR R AREERERS o available for distribution.

(i) AEEZEBHBIRITAR - KFRIT R LR (i)  The Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS, are
T ANEEBRRITERIILASEHEERENZ required to maintain regulatory reserve to satisfy the provisions of the
%EE HREERE RZZEZ/N\F+ZA=+ Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes. At
—H - RFRTREPRITED I BEGZE K 31 December 2008, each of DSB and MEVAS has earmarked a regulatory
B RIRBAFIFEE472,301,00087L (=2 reserve of HK$472,301,000 (2007: HK$734,327,000) and HK$12,714,000
+4F : 734,327,000 70) K& 12,714,000 7T (= (2007: HK$16,798,000) in the consolidated general reserve and retained
fﬁt@ 16,798,000/ 7T) 2 £ FE1E A EE i profits respectively. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly

cETRE B NEAERERAR WA through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.
Eﬁi%?/’éﬁ EREITEH °
KFcrmEBERLATE —ZZ \FFR
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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51. feif (&0 51. Reserves (Continued)
B% 17 % 8 ERfRE REEF

Share Capital Retained &5t
AT Company Premium Reserve Earnings Total
—EZE+F—F—H At 1 January 2007 984,286 256,027 1,456,106 2,696,419
& A Profit for the year - - 549,037 549,037
ZEERERARE 2006 Final dividend - - (400,141) (400,141)
—ETEFHRHRE 2007 Interim dividend - - (187,566) (187,566)
—EF+HF+_-_HA=+—H At 31 December 2007 984,286 256,027 1,417,436 2,657,749
—TT)\F—H—H WmF  At1January 2008, as above 984,286 256,027 1,417,436 2,657,749
BT TS FRIE Proceeds from shares issued 567,140 - - 567,140
F [ A Profit for the year - - 212,167 212,167
“EELFERBEE 2007 Final dividend - - (187,566) (187,566)
—EE\FERHEA 2008 Interim dividend = = (183,330) (183,330)
—EEN\F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2008 1,551,426 256,027 1,258,707 3,066,160

BRBEBRRIGHIFETBIKFTE - ARRAR-F
ENF+_A=+-BZAHEERER
1,258,707,000/8 7L (= T4 : 1,417,436,000

BIT) °

BE-—NN=F+=F—HRBZEIRER

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2008, calculated
under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$1,258,707,000 (2007: HK$1,417,436,000).

By a special resolution passed on 1 December 1993 and subsequently

WREER—NAN=F+-_A-THhaEERS =
Britiz - NR Bk = B HI R 256,027,000/ 7Tt
B A AN EBIRA © %256,027,00075 T E,
RERE R AR B B 8 o

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

approved by the Supreme Court of Hong Kong on 20 December 1993,
the share premium of the Company was reduced by HK$256,027,000
and this amount was transferred to a capital reserve account. On
consolidation the reserve of HK$256,027,000 has been applied against
goodwill.
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52.  #R A Bl il B A T A ik

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

52. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

(F) ETRERBEEEEWRKEIER 228 (a) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains on certain
i A B AR R BN @R A F R E IR R investments and fixed assets to net cash flow from
operating activities
—EENE T
2008 2007
A TIRE K EE & EW sk EE R 2 &8 % F Operating profit before gains or losses
on certain investments and fixed assets 808,628 2,073,815
F R B A Net interest income (2,369,465)  (2,214,694)
% B W e Dividend income (35,307) (21,903)
BEREBRZBIEEE Impairment losses on loans and advances 658,535 180,795
BERUREZEE 2R ERD Unwind of discount on loan impairment (6,326) (5,507)
e Depreciation 111,107 93,957
| A E 2 Amortisation of intangible assets 22,671 27,215
R B U 18 2 & S 6 58 Advances written off net of recoveries (162,211) (170,828)
FEIA Interest received 4,954,575 5,643,794
FEZH Interest paid (1,485,401)  (2,862,477)
& B A Dividend received 35,307 21,903
BEEERABBEEHF 2 EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,532,113 2,766,070
LEEENBEZEH Changes in operating assets and liabilities
RIEEERBNE S 228 Change in trading securities 136,140 2,446,299
TESRMIAZES Change in derivative financial instruments 932,935 263,242
EEUNAFEGFEREEEZHT ABEN Change in financial assets designated
ERMEEZEE at fair value through profit or loss (1,626,001) (420,686)
EFERZEE Change in advances to customers 295,558  (10,691,338)
RITERZEH Change in advances to banks (18,800) (5,323)
HMARE 228 Change in other accounts 1,536,941 (3,168,199)
BIEEERNIE 1451 K IE 28 Al Change in investments in securities
LRBAEEEZE included in the loans and
receivables category (377,163) -
ENHREFIEEER & Change in loans receivables
from jointly controlled entities 9,553 (16,124)
AR ERSF 2 EE Change in available-for-sale securities 2,388,966 1,688,985
HixJﬁsﬁfﬁ#zi’i@J Change in held-to-maturity securities (866,383) 202,693
RSREB 2 ANREBBEZEH Change in value of in-force long-term
life assurance business (258,914) (204,760)
RITERZE Change in deposits from banks (208,074) 541,571
FIEEERENBEAZES Change in trading liabilities (897,650)  (3,837,164)
=B T /TAZ #E) Change in deposits from customers 4,362,229 11,988,918
%b A #EHE“@U Change in deposits from customers
d‘)\?@ SR PR & designated at fair value through
profit or loss (2,671,423) (250,560)
HiRE kB2 EE) Change in other accounts and accruals  (1,788,803) 2,301,565
HEHREEHNREREAZAEBZE D Change in liabilities to customers
under insurance contracts 880,916 1,327,452
b 5, oA B Exchange adjustments (406,406) (19,035)
HEZEERANE S Cash generated from operating activities 3,955,734 4,913,606
INBEETREBEREBIESFZF L Interest paid on subordinated
notes and debt securities issued (391,533) (383,382)
XNBEBITHNERIZZHE Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (298,386) (397,327)
BB BFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (72,923) (159,812)
B AUE N R Overseas tax paid (32,889) (18,528)
KETFHRABR S FHE Net cash from operating activities 3,160,003 3,954,557




B 265 i A P i

(AB®E T T3 7R)

52. i E Bl i B A S AR M RE (D)
(2) EREREXRAN R RERBELBEA L

RRBEERGAEIR=ZEAZNRAZHE

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

52. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements
(Continued)

(b)  For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprises the following balances with less than three

months’ maturity from the date of acquisition.

—EBEENE —ZTTLF

5 Group 2008 2007
e REIRITHAER Cash and balances with banks 12,808,527 11,868,465
FERIT—E=+ =@ AR B FR Placements with banks maturing

between one and twelve months 1,656,950 1,919,342
HIEEERAZRNES Trading securities 913,421 2,552,154

53. WHANEBEXK

BREBNBEPIZE161BIE - ERXTRAA
BIBWENT

il
N

15,378,898 16,339,961

53. Loans to officers

Particulars of loans made to officers disclosed pursuant to section 161B

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

TZA=t+—B#&& FRERRSEER
Balance outstanding Maximum balance
at 31 December during the year
—®F/\F —TTLFE —FENF _"TTLHF
2008 2007 2008 2007
& RA B AR B Aggregate amount outstanding in
respect of principal and interest 81,690 79,275 90,849 109,070
ERERBE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees 149 149 149 149

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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54 AREANLZZ5

BREALRZFALARNERXHEEZFS
—7 B HEERPBREERKTET
EERTES - WEEMBTRALZE HKRZES
FHAEAFER > REALTRESBEHEEA
4 e

REZZFENFER_ZTTLF @ AEERERRD
PEEAEEATETRIIEERS - "AFE

TIATESERHARE M BRRE - B8
ZEBNRBERREZRFETEN - RXFES
REERMEAEEE AR RAEZHMHEE
MELXFHIRBARB ZIER XK - BAH
& —REEGHRRED - RATFERERNS
RRBRIREBEF AT

BEMEALZERARZUNT :

(F) 5Lt Jg 2 ] 9 52 5
) MARZH

ARG RAEBEENE AR RFE NI
2EMBRIT ARSI 2 FHEBAERS (E
ERBEBHERSMBRARES LR
B ([EMARBI] S514A145%) EIREAET
HZ2WARTH - %ER 52 BREXRBHR
1R 4& £ R Bl 55 14A.35(2) E% 2 14A.36(1)
B BARASEEZEE LR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control

or common significant influence.

During 2008 and 2007, a number of banking connected transactions
were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business
of the Group. These, being continuing connected transactions, had
been reviewed by the Company’s independent non-executive directors
in their review of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their
review and enquiry with management, the Company’s independent non-
executive directors were satisfied that all of the continuing connected
transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual course business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries
(i) Income and expenses

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from
the continuing connected transactions (within the definition of
Rule 14A.14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”))
entered into with the non-wholly-owned banking subsidiaries
during the year. The aggregate value of these transactions are
within the respective annual caps applicable to the Group under
Rules 14A.35(2) and 14A.36(1) of the Listing Rules.

—EBEENE _—ZTTLF

5 Group 2008 2007
B U FILE GE() Interest received (Note (i) 35,580 23,928
ENRITFEE () Bank charges paid (Note (j)) (6,884) (5,228)
ENffHeREERAEEREERAXS Rentals and related building management

(& (i) fee and charges paid (Note (ii) (11,166) (11,210)
EWHESRERAEEEE KA Rentals and related building management

(& (iii)) fee and charges received (Note (jii)) 4,522 -
ENEREE (Fv) Management fees paid (Note (iv)) (18,254) (18,159)
EREBAS GEV) Insurance commission paid (Note (v)) (27,135) (33,656)
B IRER R & (FE(vi) Insurance premiums received (Note (vi)) 10,258 9,502

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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(ii)

WA R X ()

REBFEREMBRITARERREER
B BERERAREMERRITRE o

ERA S TIARR Z KB R RFHR =
F2ENMBRITAR - RFRTT - 28
R1TRBFIR S IRTT 2 17 KA FBHA o
FRZIFFERIN Ll 2 fI7E48 o

RFRTT - BHARITIORPIFRRITRIR
HERRITIRG - BEXREHE  REH
BRBE - 12— R X EFUEURTT T &
o o RIEMB AR BEATASFR
RARRAF ([KRMAF] - REEPHA
ERARARRENR S  BHHREX
EPRBER - ZFRITRE L HALEEE
EFHY A RIS ERLL -

MF2EMBRTARNEERDHEYE

RFRIT  BRPIBERTEES KB
RASBEREERAR (HENEHER
NEETEENREBEYMETARRZHE
RBARAFAS - AFTRERBBERA
B (TRFRERRTS]) - RIRBRARIEER
RA([R#FREBAIE]D) RORFRBER A
Bl (DRPIRERD) (EE MR EME - KHTR
17~ HEXRPIBERRTRAEL ZER
KRAKBERES =#HE  KEEEERE
MAKREER - MEHER-TTRF
E#R]  A—ETEF A BREER

EAEBOERE - AEBER_FF)N\
FERBIHMOELN  A_FTTNF—A
—BREXR  REME -

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)
Note:
(i)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Income and expenses (Continued)

Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of
deposit taking and other standard banking services by non-wholly
owned banking subsidiaries

Interest was received by the subsidiaries of the Company from
three non-wholly-owned banking subsidiaries, namely DSB,
MEVAS and BCM on deposits placed with them. The balances of
deposits outstanding as at the end of the year are set out in Note
48 above.

Bank charges were levied by DSB, MEVAS and BCM on the
provision of standard banking services covering cheque clearing,
investment dealing services, etc. on normal commercial terms. In
addition, merchant fees were charged at market rates to the
insurance subsidiaries including Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited (“DSLA”) on settlement of insurance premiums by its
customers using credit cards. These banking arrangements are for
an indefinite term and can be terminated in accordance with market
practice.

Lease and sub-lease of properties from non-wholly-owned banking
subsidiaries

DSB, BCM and another subsidiary, Vanishing Border Investment
Services Limited (“VB”), have leased and sub-leased certain of their
owned and rented properties to the insurance subsidiaries of the
Company, DSLA, Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited (“DSIS”),
Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”) and Macau Insurance
Company Limited (“MIC”) as their office premises. DSB, VB and
BCM received the lease rentals, and air-conditioning charges,
building management charges and other utilities charges based on
the actual amount of costs incurred. All leases were entered into at
the end of 2006 for a two-year period effective from 1 January
2007.

Upon the expiry of the above leases, new leases have been entered
into at the end of 2008 for a two-year period effective from 1
January 2009.
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54. HEHEANLZRZ5 @)
() B2 i g 2 w1 B9 32 5 ()

()

WA R X ()

it ()

(i)

HEMETH2EMBRITAR

RITASEREDHD B EWE T AIRIT
EES1T BT EEF+=ZA=1+N\HRH
BAENGE - BE=F -

BAHTIRTT RORFIR R ERTTIR B B I R 1T
AR 75

ARRBEAFRT (REMBE AR SER
FIRERIT N _ZEZRF+_A =+
BRI ER R ITHRBHE - A%
ZHFE-A-ARER  RE-F - RIE
Ut e R IRIT AR AR B R H A THE
RBREQR (BERTAS - KHFRBR
% REREAE - KFREBRERA A
(TRFfRiR)) - RFIRIRFIRPIATRR
BERAR(DRMASD REEEER
% BREZEATRMSHEESE B
RS - BEE - BBNFRE - HER
% BRERXEREMITHRRE  EWH
RIWOTBN 2 BARNFESREHRZE
R 2 B BERAXERE

RZZZENF+TZA=+H  ARREKX
FTERTTRER] R HO B S AT HURTS sk
“ETNFE R —HREXN - REWEFE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

()

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

RFERHEBERDA

Lease of property to non-wholly-owned banking subsidiary

DSLA has leased a portion of its owned property to DSB as its
branch office for a term of three years effective from 28 December
2007.

Provision of computer and administrative services by DSB and
BCM

On 28 December 2006, the Company entered into a new computer
and administrative services agreement with DSB (and its
subsidiaries including BCM) for a fixed term of two years with effect
from 1 January 2007. Pursuant to the service agreement, DSB is to
provide to the Company and certain of its insurance subsidiaries
including DSLA, DSIS, DSIA, Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited
(“DSI”), MIC and Macau Life Insurance Company Limited (“MLIC”)
management support services including retail branch and
marketing support, computer services, operations support,
autopay services, treasury services, risk management support and
other administrative services. The fee payable to DSB is determined
at the end of the year by reference to the estimated actual cost of
providing the service.

On 30 December 2008, the Company entered into a new Computer
and Administrative Services Agreement with DSB for a fixed term
of two years with effect from 1 January 2009.

—ZENFFR
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v

EURHTIRTT - BRI RORPIFERRITE
Rl 27 #H R R %

TR B AR TS B R AR B (X 3 B AT SR 1T
LEHIRTT R B R 2 #H MAAREKE T

% URORFIRIR SORPIA B BRI 3
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IRITRRIEER D HEAS R —RRBRE
oo BUE o KRR - RFRBREK
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ORFIRER FORFIA

AKFASBREEESHRRERZ (REGE
BREAFRITREARTEREZEAAE
F o ERAREBEERERBER RAHIRIT
R ERRTIRRRRE - REUBIEE
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RHTIRER KR PR R A AR HTERAT B RHT R
TREEMKERRZEE  MARES

Xm ARt R  REBEBER
B PEE2R AREE 28 BFR

# EEREXEBEARN - RETDK

HRER SORPIRIBIZE — R EE R E GR
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(a)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

()

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

V)

(vi)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB, MEVAS and BCM

DSIS and DSIA have entered into distribution agreements and
agency agreements with each of DSB and MEVAS, MIC and MLIC
have entered into distribution agreements and agency agreements
with BCM, for the marketing and distribution of life and general
insurance products through their network of bank branches. DSIS,
DSIA, MIC and MLIC are required to pay commissions calculated
on normal commercial terms. The agreements entered into in 2006
and expired in 2008 has been renewed on 30 December 2008 for a
fixed term of two years commencing 1 January 2009.

Insurance services provided by DSLA, DSI, MIC and MLIC

Under the Credit Life Insurance Policy Agreements which cover
personal loans, credit card lending and mortgage loans extended
by DSB and MEVAS, DSLA provides insurance cover to DSB and
MEVAS in return for a premium which is calculated based on the
outstanding balances of the relevant loans on normal commercial
terms. DSLA also underwrites insurance policies to cover the death
and/or critical illnesses of certain loan customers. Policies entered
into with DSLA in 2006 and expired in 2008 have been renewed on
30 December 2008 for a fixed term of two years commencing 1
January 2009. Both DSLA and MLIC underwrite insurance policies
to cover staff of the Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG
Group”) and are subject to renewal annually. Premiums received
by DSLA and MLIC from DSBG Group in 2008 totalled
HK$5,273,000 (2007: HK$5,147,000).

DSI and MIC underwrite general insurance policies in the name,
and for the benefit, of DSB and other companies of DSBG Group
including policies covering domestic motor, property all risks,
public liability, money, electronic equipment, employees’
compensation and group personal accident. The policies are
subject to renewal annually. The policies are provided to DSBG
Group on DSI and MIC’s normal, written commercial terms.
Premiums received from the companies under DSBG Group in 2008
totalled HK$5,111,000 (2007: HK$4,355,000).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Related-party transactions (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key

management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Company’s key management personnel, their spouses and

companies which the key management personnel have significant

B 2RI ¢ influence. For the year ended 31 December, the following
balances were outstanding:

—EENE —ZTTLF

£ Group 2008 2007

ER KRB Loans and advances 63,712 69,418

T Deposits 374,755 447,803

ER Guarantees 149 149

FRNERRBR R AR

(i) FEEEASHZ

RARTEEEABAHITES - HBRI
ERREEKZIAKFE14 -

(W) fif LR T - S

AEBENFEARA —MEZERR 2B
RAFFETZETERESR - RZZEZEN
F+ZA=+—H XxEEHHZ
4278 5687,011,0008 T (Z 2 £ F
666,230,000/ 7T) ° ZEH 5 2 Ak EIR
—REXEBRRETEBBEFREA o

55. DAt 7 5 o e it 3B

AREBEBARNR R 2R & ([RF 2B
) RE2EMBRARKHBRITERFRARZ
REER B ([RFRITEEE]) REARD A
ERHNHMTEEERSRITHAS - BHAES
AR R E R R 2 ANET 2 5P FE14 o

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

Maximum aggregate amount of

loans and advances during the year 63,869 70,425

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive

directors and their remunerations are included under Note 14.

(¢) Holding of securities issued by a substantial shareholder

The Group also held certain debt securities issued by a subsidiary
of a substantial shareholder. As at 31 December 2008, the total
amount held was HK$687,011,000 (2007: HK$666,230,000).
These securities were acquired in the normal course of the

Group’s business on normal commercial terms.

55. Share-based compensation plan

Share-based compensation through the Company’s Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of the
wholly owned subsidiary, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “DSBG
Scheme”), is available to Directors and senior executives of the Group.
Details of the share-based compensation paid to Directors are

disclosed in Note 14.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
(a) DSFH Scheme

The Company issues to certain directors and employees of its
subsidiaries share options on terms that allow the Company or its
subsidiaries to make cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic
value of each share option, to the directors or employees at the date of
exercise instead of allotting newly issued shares. DSFH has adopted
the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this practice in

respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the new Share Option Scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 April 2005. The exercise prices of
the options granted was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”) prevailing in force, being the higher of
the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the
date of grant, or the average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.

(b) DSBG Scheme

DSBG issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSBG or its subsidiaries to make
cash payments, determined based on intrinsic value of each share
option, to the directors or employees at the date of exercise instead of
allotting newly issued shares. DSBG has the intention to adopt this

cash settlement practice in respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance to the terms and
conditions of the Scheme. The exercise prices of the options granted
was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK prevailing in force,
being the higher of the closing price of DSBG'’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant, or the average closing price of DSBG’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.
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ANE&EE B ER5,171,0008 L (ZFEZ+F :
57,781,000 ) R EMZERREATEZE
& o W AFEDUA=EAHEEEERIETRMA
Mz RETE - AEENEZERRE  RZF
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)

The Group has recorded liabilities of HK$5,171,000 (2007:
HK$57,781,000) in respect of the fair value of the share options. Such
fair value is determined by using the Trinomial Pricing Model using the
major assumptions set out in the following table. The Group recorded a
reversal of expenses for the share options of HK$52,610,000 in 2008
(2007: total expense of HK$26,435,000). The total intrinsic value of the
share options for which the grantee’s right to receive cash had vested
as of 31 December 2008 is nil (2007: HK$24,183,000).

The inputs into the Trinomial Option Pricing Model are as follows:

kA HE |
DSFH Scheme
—BENE S 3
2008 2007
“EEtE  CZBERE  CZEERF CZTTHF ZEETRE  ZETRE
AR=1+NA AAtA NB=+EB ALAZT+AH NAtE NAZ+EA
R¥H Grant date 28Sep2007 7Sep2006 25Aug 2005 28 Sep2007 7 Sep2006 25 Aug 2005
AARRT-—A=1—H Share price of the Company
ZHfE (B7T) as at 31 December (HKS) 19.88 19.88 19.88 77.10 77.10 77.10
1168 (Bx) Exercise price (HK$) 61.93 67.80 51.71 61.93 67.80 51.71
B IE GE() Expected volatility (Note (i) 62.4% 62.4% 62.4% 30.3% 30.3% 30.3%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <5 <4 <3 <6 <5 <4
|ERA % (i) Risk free rate (Note (i) 1.16% 0.95% 0.71% 317% 3.05% 2.89%
AR (3 (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (i) 7.19% 7.19% 7.19% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05%
RRTREHE
DSBG Scheme
“FENE 23t
2008 2007
CERtE CERtE CEERE CESRE C§SRIF CEEME CEStE CERtE CEESE CEERE CERERE CEEmA
tAthE tAtAE AA=tEE +=A=t+B NA=tERt-A=tEB +AthB +A+thB AAZtER tZA=+R NAZ+ERA+-A=t&R
19 Jul 19 Jul 25 Sep 30 Dec 25 Aug 25 Nov 19Jul 19Jul 25 Sep 30 Dec 25 Aug 25 Nov
s Grant date 2007 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2007 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004
ARGSE Share price of DSBG
RtZA=+-A as at 31 December
ZREGET) HKS) 557 557 557 557 557 557 1810 1810 1810 1810 1810 1810
ABEET) Evercise prce (HKS) 178 18 17.30 1432 1440 1670 1784 1784 1730 1432 1440 1670
RG] Expected volatity (Note ) 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 54.3% 543% 543% 27.9% 27.9% 279% 27.9% 27.9% 27.9%
£ (F) Time to maturiy (years) <2 <5 <4 <3 <3 <2 <3 <6 <5 <4 <4 <3
BRI () Risk free rate (Note (i) 043% 1.12% 0.96% 0.79% 0.11% 0.53% 2.71% 3.15% 3.06% 2.94% 2.89% 2.78%
TRt 2 % (&) Expected dividend rate
(Note (i) 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 5.92% 3.87% 3.87% 3.87% 3.87% 3871% 3871%

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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55. VAo 7 5 1 S I 5t 8 (D) 55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)

(&) Kprsifr L5 H &) (b) DSBG Scheme (Continued)

P& Notes:

(i) TEER IR R IRRERTE B ZAAT —FHKIE (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
MetE o WERFRBTERFIRITERERR AIRE the share price during the one year period immediately preceding the
ZKNE - B ERBARRBRE 2 FEAZTET K measurement date and is based on the assumption that there is no
B WEEANER - material difference between the expected volatility over the time to

maturity of the options and the historical volatility of the shares in DSBG
and the Company set out above.

iy ERRINEXAEHFTHIAEBINEESREZK (i)  Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
R o time to maturity

@iy TEHREEDZBEREME © (i) Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

BT 2RRESE REMEFHITEERAT Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

RF & ma AFBRTEBHE
DSFH Scheme DSBG Scheme
ZBENE “ZTE “BEN\E —ZTFE
2008 2007 2008 2007
RFUBE RYAEE RFUBE RYAEE

AHEw mEFH Nk METY AFRTEE MELY AHRTEE MEFH
ARER k@ AE 3 ARER k@ AE 3
RO #A (A7) R %8 (&) RO #A (A7) R %8 (&)
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted ~ Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

DSFH shares average DSFH shares average DSBG shares average DSBG shares average
in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise in share exercise
options price options price options price options price
granted (HK$) granted (HKS) granted (HK$) granted (HK$)

—-A-A At 1 January 2,850,000 55.25 2,650,000 54.75 1,500,000 15.77 1,150,000 15.13
B Granted - - 200,000 61.93 - - 350,000 17.84
BAM Lapsed - - - - - - - -
BT Exercised - - - - = = - -
RECL Expired - - - - - - - -
+-A=+-H At 31 December 2,850,000 55.25 2,850,000 55.25 1,500,000 15.77 1,500,000 15.77
TZA=+—HAU{f Exercisable at

31 December 1,530,000 54.08 960,000 53.39 820,000 15.51 490,000 15.21
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55. VAo 7 5 1 S I 5t 8 (D)
) R ERAT 4R [t ) ()

RARRZZEENF T A=+ —BRTEZR
&%ZHEEMWMﬂ%nimsm&ﬂ:%%
+F  ITEENT51.718 L 267.808T) « KE
IEFHFIRE LHTERR2.98F (ZSTLF -

3.98%F) - REBEHEERSRITHAER-Z

ENF+ZA=+T—BRITEAFBRITERRR
BZITHEEN T14.328TE217.848 T (ZEZ+
FATEEN T14.328 L E17.8487T) + KEM
BEFHFERE NITER B2.90F (ZTTLF ¢
3.904)

RFALERRER T AR RMRITERAS (Z
%%t¢:§1ﬂﬁa—hﬁ%h%zm%¥ﬁ
AFEA25.0587T) ° RFENLEAFIRITES
2%%%ﬁ%$%§%mﬁﬁAEL47t¢
BETES —RFIBREZINETEHAFESR
3.60/8 L) °

56 mﬁﬁ H 1&%1/@

—EENFE=A-+AHH AR Tﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
%ﬁﬁk%ﬁmmlﬁﬁﬂﬂh%
1,000,000,000/87C 2 B HIE K °

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

55. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
(b) DSBG Scheme (Continued)

The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2008
have a range of exercise price of HK$51.71 to HK$67.80 (2007: in the
range of exercise price of HK$51.71 to HK$67.80), and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.98 years (2007: 3.98 years). In
respect of Directors and senior executives of the Group, their applicable
DSBG'’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2008 have a
range of exercise price from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84 (2007: in the range
of exercise price from HK$14.32 to HK$17.84), and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 2.90 years (2007: 3.90 years).

No share options were granted to senior executives of the Company
during the year (2007: a weighted average fair value of HK$25.05 per
new share option to purchase a share). No DSBG’s share options were
granted to senior executives of the Group during the year (2007: a
weighted average fair value of HK$3.60 per new share option to

purchase a share).

56. Event after the balance sheet date

On 25 March 2009, the Company extended to Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited a term loan facility of HK$1 billion on normal commercial terms.




il 70 B 25 R

(AB®E T T3 7R)

AT B AN B A R FE R 5k i Y o
B U TBREERMBHRRZ —& 0 -

1L &P &R

() AT 2 % PR A (DAL
38 5 B DL 3 HR A b DR B 43 Bl )
1)

Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does

not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. Loans and advances to customers

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

covered by collateral

—EENE —ETLF
+=HA=+-—H +=-—A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2008 As at 31 Dec 2007
EXAR BRiE
F K F mRE ZEABRE
ZEDL ZBt
% of gross % of gross
RERBLEER  advances KEEFEH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
EBBFERHER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITrEert Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEERE - Property development 448,282 83.6 389,293 95.6
- MEIRE — Property investment 10,102,405 92.4 9,523,416 85.7
- - Financial concerns 373,243 91.4 528,728 47.5
-RELL — Stockbrokers 9,707 53.4 55,432 59.8
- JrEETEX - Wholesale and retail trade 1,187,833 87.3 1,204,904 78.2
- Bl — Manufacturing 885,724 78.3 1,277,385 69.4
- B B & - Transport and transport
equipment 4,241,249 93.5 3,755,326 93.1
- [REED) — Recreational activities 23,507 25.7 58,083 -
- BB — Information technology 418 - 2,214 27.4
- Hitb — Others 2,140,815 88.7 1,671,503 80.2
19,413,183 90.9 18,466,284 83.9
& A Individuals
-BEIEERHEEZ - — Loans for the purchase of
[FhAZEEEE R flats in Home Ownership
[HEBEHEFGEIETF Scheme, Private Sector
B3 Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,625,129 99.9 1,776,573 100.0
-BEEMEEMFEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,715,925 99.7 11,330,250 99.6
-EARER — Credit card advances 3,371,802 - 3,311,174 =
- HAl — Others 6,513,226 58.5 6,195,711 52.8
22,226,082 72.5 22,613,708 72.2
EBABFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 41,639,265 81.1 41,079,992 77.5
ZomE Trade finance 4,457,618 64.0 5,393,581 54.0
BB AIMER R ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 14,902,190 82.2 14,821,058 78.7
60,999,073 80.1 61,294,631 75.7

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008

227



228

il 70 B 85 R

Supplementary Financial Information

(AB®E T T3 7R)

1L FPRER&E @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

() AT B2 % PR s (DA s (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

38 o 8 S DA AR i R I 4 4 bl A

#r) (&)

B SBR TP EREE10%H A EHNTT
¥ - HEGREERE - B8 E 5 M E R MR

BRIENETREERENT

covered by collateral (Continued)

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting

10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the

attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, and individually

and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances are as follows:

BEXREE
R EE
HB=A 18 Bl FE mATh
Gross HEEE AEERE
advances  Individually  Collectively
REZER BMEER  overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over impairment impairment
—EENF+-HA=1+—H As at 31 Dec 2008 balance loans 3 months  allowances allowances
EBRBEFERNER Loans for use in
Hong Kong
Tyt Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MEIEE — Property investment 10,102,405 14,785 - 5,429 17,862
(EPN Individuals
-BEAEMIENMEER - Loans for the
purchase of
other residential
properties 10,715,925 1,111 1,839 407 3,211
BEXREE
R ER
BB=M@A 18 Bl 7 ATy
Gross HEEE AEERE
advances Individually  Collectively
REEBEH HWEER  overdue for as d assessed
Outstanding Impaired over impairment impairment
“EZ+t&E+-"H=1+—H  Asat31Dec 2007 balance loans 3months  allowances allowances
ERBERNER Loans for use in
Hong Kong
Iraest Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MERE - Property investment 9,523,416 1,540 1,550 741 15,957
A Individuals
-EEHEMEEMEER — Loans for the
purchase of
other residential
properties 11,330,250 2,071 6,301 997 4,553

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

covered by collateral (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year were

disclosed in the tables below.

KEEREE
REFEEBEER HMEZEX
#Mi85% Recoveries of
Loans advances
HMILEE written off  written off in
New as previous
—EENF 2008 allowances uncollectible years
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 5,205 542 -
A Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 133 921 957
5,338 1,463 957
KEEREE
REFEEBEER HMEZEX
HMmERE M $5% Recoveries of
(EHEER) Loans advances
New allowances/ written off  written off in
(Allowances as previous
—EEtHF 2007 written back) uncollectible years
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 8 2,067 -
A Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties (5,477) 2,294 918
(5,469) 4,361 918

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2008
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(&) H kB IERAT R P AR E (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures
—E2BN\F+=HA=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2008
18 Bl S &
EEEER BEEE/X BEEE
AR EREE NI EREE Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet #@EREE  impairment
REHFEE Type of counterparties exposure  exposure Total allowances
B R E Mainland entities 2,484,332 - 2,484,332 -
¥R B K BELAINA B &2 Companies and individuals
BA - md Rk ER outside Mainland where the
AR B K B {5 A credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 8,184,005 420,865 8,604,870 314,368
Hth 22 5 % F i E =2 b Other counterparties the
R E BB IERTT exposures to whom are
HEP R considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 50,138 - 50,138 -
—E2EtE+=-A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2007
11 51 FF 14
EEEER BEAEX BEERE
A ERER I BRER Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet MEXEE  impairment
RBZEFEE Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total allowances
H BRI Mainland entities 1,921,468 - 1,921,468 -
R B K BE BASNA B K Companies and individuals
A - mFREER outside Mainland where the
AR B K e {5 AR credits are granted for use
in the Mainland 9,918,810 599,287 10,518,097 92,503
H h 32 5 3 T A = B Other counterparties the
HWRE BB RIERTT exposures to whom are
EEFPRE considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 90,234 1,100 91,334 -
F: FERBREEERFERREREMEERR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and

BZEHE -

other balances of claims on the customers.

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH
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Supplementary Financial Information

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue loans

by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advances is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of

the counterparty.

At 31 December 2008, over 90% of the Group’s advances to customers,
including related impaired advances and overdue advances, were
classified under Hong Kong (a position unchanged from that as at 31
December 2007).

2.  Risk management
(A) Banking Group

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it

through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on the five major areas of risk — credit
risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial, wholesale and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase

financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly in Treasury and is associated principally with
the Group’s on-balance sheet positions in the trading book, and off-
balance sheet trading positions including positions taken to hedge

elements of the trading book.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition

resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.
Liquidity risk arises across the Group’s balance sheet.
Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from

inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from

external events.
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(FF) EEBRITR (#)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Risk management (Continued)
(A) Banking Group (Continued)

Apart from the description of financial risk management disclosed in

Note 3 to the financial statements, the other risk management aspects

are disclosed below:

() FEEEEEEE

E=gHMARNINEREER FBEXN
BfE - BRERENIE BEFENEE

B

- HUEERBRORE MBURARREEER
HREAEEEEEREEREM
[\ g2

- BB IENRBRER B8
EENITEIES - BESEERE
B RIRRIE 5 %%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ(th%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ) =
38 40 5T N B SR FE RR M Y BE

=

- UHEE  RERENSTEEIEY
IRIR

THZEEREZEEENREREERR
HBMEREEESTEEEREEN R
B AR -

(i)  FEER AR A E

SENBYRRTEERRAEEEEN
BERATEMES - SERBRBERLFEB
RREEZEERTREZECNESSE
BEERBRAMRN - FIEHBRBRMER T
EZNRE - REREEMKEMIIENB
B R EEMB T EMRERE - £EE
REEHMZEMEARENEER

HE - BREYEHmE  SBETE - A8
EEERMSASEELEERAHRR
M ETANKE - ERERFEERERK
RE  SERRISERELESHEER
(IBAE2ERD HIEMNIESl - RBETRAR
RERBHBHERKRIR - SEERES I
FEEZENFIMEENEEXRREZR

@ o
=
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(i) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board

in relation to risk control are:

- the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both

the transaction and portfolio levels;

- the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit
Committee; review of key results (against forecasts),

operational statistics and policy compliance; and

- financial performance by analysis against approved
budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial

measures.

The Executive Committee has been delegated the authority to
oversee and guide the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by Group Risk and

different functional committees.

(i) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring
that policies and mandates are established for the Group as a
whole. Group Risk monitors and reports the Group risk positions
to the Board via the Risk Management Committee and the
Executive Committee, sets standards for financial risks and data
integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully considered
in the product planning and pricing process. Group Risk reviews
and approves all credit and risk exposure policies for the Group
including the approval of exposures to new markets, economic
sectors, organisations, credit products and financial instruments
which expose the Group to different types of risks. In determining
risk policies, Group Risk takes into account the guidelines
established by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”),
business direction, and risk adjusted performance of each
business. Group Risk is also represented on the lending or risk

committees of the Group’s operating divisions and businesses.
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Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

(i) EEERRELABE (B
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(i) Group risk function (Continued)

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance
the overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables
the Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and
enter into credit exposures with the confidence that it

understands the associated risks and rewards.

The Group is continuing to evolve its risk management
capabilities under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk, increasing
the focus of its risk strategy on risk and reward and returns on
capital. The Group uses a range of risk measurement and
analytical tools in its management of the various risks which it
faces in its day-to-day businesses and these are continually being
enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-changing business
needs and the requirements of the regulators. The Risk
Management and Control function is part of Group Risk and

reports directly to the Head of Group Risk.

(i)  Business division credit committees

Each of the operating divisions of the Group has its own credit or
risk committee responsible for approving and recommending
policies, limits and mandates for risk control within their
respective business areas. This is consistent with the Group’s
approach of devolving responsibility for risk management to the
individual business areas under the aegis of the Group Risk
function. As such, each business credit risk function reports to

both Group Risk and the business area which it supports.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

AFERMEBERAT —ZT/N\FFEH

(iv)  Market Risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of
the risk management policies and procedures adopted are set

out in Note 3.3 to the financial statements.

(v)  Operational Risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management and
operational risk officers from each business and support function,
and operating through a set of operational risk policies, risk tool-
kits, operational risk incident reporting and tracking system, and
control self assessment and key risk indicator tools. Together with
a well established internal control systems, operational risk in
most situations can be adequately identified, assessed,
monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk framework
to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to

time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operational
recovery policies and plans have been established and tested for

all critical business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic
independent reviews of internal control systems by external and
internal auditors. Reporting and assessment of the performance
of operational risk management are monitored by the Group Risk

and reported to the Group’s Risk Management Committee.
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Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)
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(vi)  Reputation risk

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational
errors or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause
customer concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base

or market share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; proper staff
training and supervision; proper handling of customer complaints
or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound business practices.
Standards are set and policies and procedures are established
by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce vulnerability to

reputation risk.

(vii) ~ Strategic risk

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, improper
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to

the market changes.

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is
directly responsible for the management of strategic risk.
Directors formulate the strategic goals and key direction of the
Group, ensure business strategies are developed to achieve these
goals, oversee the strategic development and implementation to
secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic goals, review
business performance, deploy proper resources to achieve the
Group’s objectives, and authorise management to take

appropriate actions to mitigate risks.
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Risk management (Continued)
Banking Group (Continued)
(viii) Implementation of the Basel Il Capital Accord

The revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il has
come into force for all locally incorporated authorized institutions
in Hong Kong from January 2007. To implement Basel Il, the
HKMA published the final Banking (Capital) Rules and Banking
(Disclosure) Rules at the end of 2006.

Basel Il is structured around three “pillars”. Pillar 1 sets out the
minimum capital requirements for a bank’s operational risk, in
addition to revising the “Basel |” treatment of credit risk and
market risk. Pillar 2 requires that banks should have in place
sound internal processes to assess the adequacy of their capital,
based on a thorough assessment of their risks including those
risks not covered under Pillar 1, and that supervisors should carry
out supervisory review of this process. Pillar 3 complements Pillar
1 and Pillar 2 through enhanced market transparency and market
discipline by requiring banks to make public disclosure of
information on their risk profiles, capital adequacy and risk

management.

(viii) Implementation of the Basel Il Capital Accord (Continued)

Starting January 2007, Dah Sing Bank, Limited and MEVAS Bank
Limited adopt the standardised approach for credit risk and
market risk, and the basic indicator approach for operational risk.
These are the default approaches as specified in the Banking
(Capital) Rules. Accordingly, the Group has overhauled its
systems and controls in order to meet the standards required for

these approaches.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.  Risk management (Continued)
(B) Insurance Group

The Groups insurance business is exposed to multiple risks, including
insurance risk, product risk, investment risk and business risks. We
believe that effective risk management is an integral part of our
insurance business’ control process and operations, and that effective
control of risks assists to maintain the profitability and stability of our

business.

The key risks of our insurance business and related risk control process

are as follows:

(i) Insurance risk

The Group’s insurance operation is in the business of underwriting
insurance risk and retains various maximum amounts per risk or
event dependent on the type of risk with the excess being
reinsured through various reinsurance and related agreements
which are regularly reviewed. Catastrophe cover arrangements
are also in place whereby a number of claims relating to a specific
incident in aggregate would represent a material risk to the Group

are reinsured.

Underwriting and claims practices and procedures are
documented and reviewed. External independent actuaries are

engaged to evaluate the adequacy of the insurance reserves.

(i) Product risk

New products and major revisions to existing products undergo
a product approval process with the profitability being reviewed
and where appropriate assessed by internal and external

independent actuaries.
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(B)

Risk management (Continued)
Insurance Group (Continued)
(iii)  Investment risk

Our investment practice is to maintain a conservatively invested
portfolio which attempts to maintain value whilst matching assets
and policyholder liabilities as appropriate, by yield, duration and
currency taking account of the associated risks, taxation and

regulatory requirements.

(iv)  Business risks

DSLA and DSl follow the policies and procedures of the Group in
assessing business risk in terms of contingency and interruption
planning as well as providing training for staff and agents to
comply with the relevant rules and regulations covering their
businesses. MIC and MLIC, have their own policies and

procedures to comply with the relevant requirements in Macau.

(C) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective

assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on enhancing

and sustaining sound internal control in all business and operational

units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the Group Audit

Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Division conducts a wide variety of internal control activities such

as compliance audits and operations and systems reviews to ensure

the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control of

the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 226, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2008, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2009







